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Ms. Blanco Bayo

Director

Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Re:  Application of Concert Communications Sales LLC

Dear Ms. Bayo:

Enclosed for filing with the Florida Public Service Commission (“Commission™),
please find an original and 12 copies of Concert Communications Sales LLC's Application for
authority to provide alternative local exchange service on a resold basis. Also enclosed is a
check for the requisite $250 filing fee.

Finally, also enclosed is a duplicate copy of this filing and a self-addressed
stamped envelope. Please date-stamp the duplicate upon receipt and return it in the envelope
provided. Please do not hesitate to call me if you have any questions. .

Respectfully submitted,
Brian D.
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AﬁLiCA‘I’ION FORM FOR AU‘I*RITY TO
PROVIDE ALTERNATIVE LOCAL
EXCHANGE SERVICE WITHIN THE STATE
OF FLORIDA

1.  This is an application for ¥ (check one):
(XX) Original authority (new company)

¢ ) Apprmml of tramfer (to anomer certmuted oornpany)

( ) Approval of assignment of existing certificate

(

2. Name of applicant:
Concert Communications Sales LLC
(hereafter “Applicant” or “CC8")

3. Name under which the applicant will do business (d/b/a):

Same

4. If applicable, please provide proof of fictitious name (d/b/a) registration.

Fictitious name registration number N/A

DCOIHUGHI/74370.1  / 1
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& APPLICATION FORA®

5. A National mailing address including street name, number, post office box,

city, statc, zip code, and phone number.
Concert Communications Sales LLC
Reston Town Center

11821 Freedom Drive
Reston, Virginia 20190

B. Florida mailing address including street name, number, post office box,
city, state, zip code, and phone number.

Applicant does not have a Florida address.

6.  Structure of organization Vv Check Appropriate box(es)

( )Inc vidual ( )Corporation

( ) Foreign Corporation ( )Foreign Partnership

( ) General Partnership ( )Limited Partnership

()Joint Venture (XX) Foreign Limited Liability Company

7. If applicant is an individual, partnership, or joint venturs, please give name, title
and address of each legal entity.

Please see Aftachment A, appended hereto.

8. State whether any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders
have previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of
any felony or of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending

proceedings. If so, please explain.

None of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders have
previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty
of any felony or of any crime.

9. If incorporated, please provide proof from the Florida Secretary of State that the
applicant has authority to operate in Florida.

Please see Attachment B, appended hereto.

DCOIHUGHB/ 743701 2




10.

141

12.

13.

14.

. APPLICATION FOR’

Please provide the name, title, address, telephone number, Internet address, and
facsimile number for the person serving as ongoing liaison with the Commission,
and if different, the liaison respcnsible for this application.

Application Ongoing

Brian D. Hughes Maria Silveira

Kelley Drye & Warren LLP Concert Communications Sales LLC
1200 19" Street, NW, Ste. 500 11921 Freedom Drive

Washington, D.C. 20036 Reston, Virginia 20190

(202) 955-9781 (703) 467-2563

(202) 955-9792 (703) 707-4080
bhughes@kelleydrye.com maria.silveira@concert.com

Please list other states in which the applicant is currently providing or has applied
to provide local exchange or alternative exchange service.

Applicant is not currently providing service in any jurisdiction. However,
Applicant expects to file applications for local exchange authority
simultaneously with this filing in a number of other states.

Has the applicant been denied certification in any other state? If so, please list
the state and reason for denial.

Applicant has not been denied certification in any other state.

Have penalties been imposed against the applican: in any other state? If so,
please list the state and reason for penalty.

Applicant has not had penaities imposed against it in any other state.
Please indicate how a customer can file a service complaint with your company.

Applicant is committed to providing telecommunications services of the
highest quality to customers in Florida and will emphasize customer
satisfaction. Applicant's customers will be able to reach customer service
representatives 24 hours a day, seven days a week, by dialing toll-free, 1-
877-428-2862. Customers will be able to register service complaints
immediately via telephone, and may do so in writing by sending complaints
to the customer service address listed on customer bills and on file with
the Florida Public Service Commission.

DCOIHUGHB74370.1 3



. APPLICATION FOR'

15. Please complete and file a price list in accordance with Commission Rule 25-
24 835. (Rule attached).

Please see Attachment C, appended hereto.

16. Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the applicant has
the following capabilities to provide alternative local exchange service in Florida.

A.

Financial Capability

Applicant has access to ample capital to compete effectively in
the competitive local exchange market in Florida. In particular,
Applicant will be able to draw upon the substantial financial
assots of its parent, British Telecom (“BT”), as required, to
provide the proposcd services. For the fiscal year ended
March 31, 1998, BT's annual revenues exceeded
$25,649,000,000. A copy of BT's most recent annual report
and report for the nine month period ending December 31,
1998, is appended hereto as Attachment D.

Managerial capability.

Please see Attachment E, appended hereto.
Technical capability.

Please see Attachment E, appended hereto.

(If you will be providing local intra-exchange switched telecommunications
service, then state how you will provide access to 911 emergency service. If the
nature of the emergency 911 service access and funding mechanism is not
equivalent to that provided by the local exchange companies in the areas to be
served, describe in detail the difference.)

Applicant will enter an arrangement to resell an underlying carrier’s local
exchange services, including 911 emergency service. Therefore, the nature
of Applicant's 911 service access and funding mechanism will be the
equivalent of, if not identical to, that of its underlying carrier.

DCOIHUGHR/T74370.1




. APPLICATION FOR'

AFFIDAVIT

By my signature below, |, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of the
information contained in this application and attached documents and that the applicant
has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to provide
alternative local exchange service in the state of Florida. | have read the foregoing and
declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information is true and correct.
| attest that | have the authority to sign on behalf of my company and agree to comply,
now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules and orders.

Further, | am aware that pursuant to Chaptcr 837.06, Florida Statutes,
“Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to
mislead a public servant in the performance of his official duty shall be
guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s.

775.082 and 775.083."
Official: March 19, 1999
S Date
Title: Assistant Secretary, Manager 703-707-4000

Telephone Number

Address: __Rpeston Town Center

DCOIHUGHBT4370.1 5
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. Conu‘ommunlclﬂom Sales LLC
Application for Local Exchange Authority
Attachment A

On July 26, 1998, British Telecommunications plc ("BT") and AT&T Corp.
(“AT&T") announced that they would create a $10 billion global venture (the “Global
Venture”) to serve the communications needs of multinational companies and the
international calling needs of individuals and businesses around the world. AT&T is a
New York corporation that provides domestic and international voice and data
telecommunications services. Upon consummation of the transaction, Applicant will
become a part of the Global Venture, specifically it will become an indirect subsidiary of
VLT Co. LLC, a joint venture in which AT&T and BT each will indirectly maintain a 50
percent ownership interest and share control. Consummation of the transaction is
subject to receipt of various approvals from the Federal Communications Commission
(“FCC") and other agencies. At present, the parties expect to consummate the
transaction in July 1989. Applicant will notify the Commission in writing in the event the
transaction is consummated and CCS becomes part of the Global Venture.

DCOIHUGHB/ 74370 1
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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Katherine Harris
Secretary of State
March 23, 1999
MARIA STEPHENS
CcsC

Qualification documents for CONCERT COMMUNICATIONS SALES LLC were
fled on March 23, 1999, and assigned document number M99000000420.
Please refer to this number whenever corresponding with this office.

Your limited liability company is now qualified and authorized to transact
business in Florida as of the file date. :

A limited Ilabtlngw annual report will be due this office between January 1
and May 1 of year following the calendar year of the file date. A Federal
E::glorar Identification (FE!) number will be required before this rt can be
filed. If you do not already have an FEI number, please apply NOW with the
Intemal Revenue by calling 1-800-829-3676 and reque sting form SS-4.

Please be aware if the limited liability company address changes, it is the
responsibility of the corporation to notify this office.

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please telephone (850)
487-6051, the Registration and Qu tion Section.

Tammi Cline

Document Specialist

Division of Corporations Letter Number: 899A00014390
Account number: 072100000032 Account charged: 285.00

Division of Corporations - P.0. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314




APPLICATION BY FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY FOR AUTHORIZATION TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN FLORIDA

IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 608.503, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE FOLLOWING IS SUBMITTED TO REGISTER A FOREIGN
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA:

1. Concert Communications Sales LIC
(Name of foreign limited liability company)

2, Delaware ;L :5. 5 ey
UMMMMMMMHM liability ( FEI number, i applicable)
company is

4. __ Fehruary 22, 1999 3. 30 _yeacs
(Date of Organization) (Duration: Year limited liability company will cease to
exist or "perpetual”)

6. Will begin upon approval.
mmmmhM(wmmml.mm.uun.m.fs.)
7. 11921 Freedom Drive

Reston, VA 20190

(Street address of principal office)

8. List name, title, and business address of each managing member{MGRM] or manager[ MGR]who
will manage the foreign limited liability company in Florida: (attach additional page if necessary)

NAME & ADDRESS: TITLE: NAME & ADDRESS: TITLE:
< =]
See attachment, _&g‘;
o%
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AFFIDAVIT OF MEMBERSHIP AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF FOREIGN
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

The undersigned member or authorized representati

1) the above named limited liability company has at least one member;

ZJﬂ:mm:mounloIad:conﬁhmdbyuwmcmber(s)is $1000.00 .

3)if|ny.tt:|grmdvtiueofpmpmyothﬂﬂnnmhconuibutedbyn'tcmbem)is s |:;J :
(Aducriptionofmepmpmyinmctwdudmdupmhmm.)

and
4) the total amount of cash and property contributed and anticipated to be contributed
by member(s) is
(This total includes amounts from 2 and 3 above.)

$.1000.00 .

ure o representa o 2
(In with section 608.408(3), Florida Statutes, the execution of this @O Sun
v constitutes an affirmation under the penalties of perjury that the facts x 2m
stated herein are true.) = 9%
o =m
N Bz
Chery Schne; Sot
eral  Luwy/ nerder Z 35c
" Typkd or printed name of signec S . Pa
=
u —
w 27
w

Filing Fee: $250.00 for Application and Affidavit




CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION OF
REGISTERED AGENT/REGISTERED OFFICE

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 608.415 or 608.507, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE
UNDERSIGNED LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY SUBMITS THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT
TO DESIGNATE A REGISTERED OFFICE AND REGISTERED AGENT IN THE STATE OF
FLORIDA.

1. The name of the Limited Liability Company is:
Concert Communications Sales LIC

2. The name and the Florida street address of the registered agent and office are:

Corporation Service Company

(Name)

1201 Hays Street = ‘ ’\
Florida street add= -~ " k= ¥ T ACCEPTABLE)

e

[ % i - .

. y J e T e -:r,
v ‘5;?..:,' ._-_. e

Having been named as registered ¢ "2« 7 .2 (0 accept service of process for the above stated limited
liability company at the place desigruted in this certificate, I hereby accept the appointment as registered
agent and agree to act in this capacity. I further agree 1o comply with the provisions of all statutes
relating to the proper and complete performance of my duties, and I am familiar with and accep!t the
obligations of my position as registered agent.

Filing Fee: $ 35 for Designation of Registered Agent




EXHIBIT 1
LISTING OF MANAGERS

By a vote of the Member the following Managers were elegted to operate the Company
pursuant to Article 5 of the Agreemeént: -

NAME: ADDRESS:

Peter Macleod 11921 Freedom Drive
Chief Executive Manager Reston, Virginia 20190
Steve Clutton 11921 Freedom Drive
Chief Financial Manager Reston, Virginia 20190
William Flynn 11921 Freedom Drive =
Tax Manager Reston, Virginia 20190 ~
Geoff Webster 11921 Freedom Drive
Secretary Manager Reston, Virginia 20190
Geoffrey Beedham BT, 81 Newgate Street
Assistant Secretary Manager London, UK EC1A 7AJ
Cheryl Schneider 11921 Freedom Drive
Assistant Secretary Manager - Reston, Virginia 20190
Cindy Perkinson 11921 Freedom Drive
Assistant Secretary Manager Reston, Virginia 20190
Kha Nguyen 11921 Freedom Drive
Assistant Secretary Manager Reston, Virginia 20190
Michelle Gallagher 11921 Freedom Drive
Assistant Secretary Manager Reston, Virginia 20190

The above listed Managers will serve in their capacities until they are removed for é.n'y .
reason by a vote of the Member as defined by Article 5 or upon their voluntary

resignation.

Signed and Agreed this 6 day of March, 1999.

2

BAL NETWORKS (USA) INC.

Member
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CONCERT COMMI‘:\TIOHS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2
Original Sheet |

TITLE SHEET
FLORIDA TELECOMMUNICATIONS PRICE LIST

This price list contains the descriptions, regulations, service standards and rates
applicable to the furnishing of service and facilities for alternative local telecommunications
services provided by Concert Communications, LLC, with principal offices at 11921
Freedom Drive, Reston, VA 20190. This price list applics for services fumnished within the
state of Florida. This price list is on file with the Florida Public Service Commission, and
copies may be inspected, during normal business hours, &' the Company's principal place of
business.

Issued: March 30, 1999 EfMective:
By: Manager, Rates and Tariffs
11921 Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190

DCO1/HUGHR/75778.1



CONCERT CO ATIONS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2
Original Sheet 2

CHECK SHEET

The sheets listed below, which are inclusive of this price list, are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of
the respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the onginal
price list and are currently in effect as of the date of the bottom of this sheet.

Sheet Revision

Title Original

! Original

2 Original

3 Original

4 Original

5 Original

6 Original

7 Original

] Original

9 Original

10 Original

11 Original

12 Original

13 Original

14 Original

15 Original

16 Original

17 Original

18 Original

19 Original

Issued: March 30, 1999 Effective:
By: Manager, Rates and TarifTs
11921 Freedom Drive

Reston VA 20190

DCOL/HUGHB/75778.1




CONCERT COMM\‘ATIORS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2

Original Sheet 3

Application of the TarifY.................
Technical Terms And Abhmviamm

2 Section 2 — General Regulations......................

-1

il Lnul]-:;ms-vh,.._.... T T I T e SENCOI TR TITSSHARONTTF | |

4.1. Local Exchange Service.... _Io

Issued: March 30, 1999 Effective:

By: Manager, Rates and Tariffs
11921 Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190
DCO1/HUGHB/ 75778 .1




CINCERT CO TIONS SALES LLC

. Florida Price List No. 2

Original Sheet 4

SYMBOLS SHEET

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below:

- Delete or Discontinue

« New

4®=ZZ-0

- Change Resulting In An Increase to A Customer’s Bill
- Moved From Another Price List Location

- Change Resulting In A Reduction To A Customer’s Bill
- Change in Text or Regulation But No Change In Rate or Charge

Issued: March 30, 1999

By:

DCO1/HUGHB/758778.1

Effective:

Manager, Rates and Tariffs
11921 Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190




CONCERT COMM!'?AT!ONS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2

Original Sheet 5

EXCHANGE SERVICE LIST

(Intentionally Left Blank).

Issued: March 30, 1999

By:

DCO1/HUGHB/T5778.1

Effective:

Manager, Rates and Tariffs
11921 Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190




CONCERT CDMM[’A‘I’IGNS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2

Original Sheet 6

1.L

LI1.L

1.1.2.

L.L3.

SECTION 1. —~ GENERAL TARIFF INFORMATION
TarifT Format

Sheet Numbering — Sheet numbers appear in the upper right hand comer of each sheet. Pages are
numbered sequentially, when a new sheet is added between pages it will be numbered with an
additional number preceded by a “.". A shect inserted between pages 10 and 11 would be sheet
10.1.

Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of the sheet. These
nuinbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file. For example, the 4th revised
sheet 34 cancels the 3rd revised sheet 34. Because of deferrals, notice periods, etc., the most
current sheet revision number on file is not always the tarifi sheet in effect. Consult check sheets
and supplements for the sheet currently in effect.

Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of alpha-numeric numbering. Each level is
subservient to its next higher level. The following is an example of the numbering sequence used
in this tariff. Alpha-numeric coding is used for paragraph identification. Each level is subservient
to the previous higher number/letter. Following is the sequence used in this tariff.

2

2.1.

2.1.1.

2.1.1.A.
2.1.1AL
2.1.1.A.1(a)
2.1.1LA. 1L (a)l
2.L1LA L (a)Li
2.L1LA.L(=)Li(1)

1.1.4. Check Sheets - When a price list filing is made with the FPSC, an updated check sheet
accompanies the price list filing. The check sheet lists the sheets contained in the price list, with a
cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, the check sheet is
changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an asterisk
(*). There will be no other symbols used on this page if these are the only changes made 1o it (i.c.,
the format, etc. remains the same, just revised revision levels on some pages). The price list user
should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular sheet is the most current on file with
the FPSC.

Issued: March 30, 1999 Effective:

By:

Manager, Rates and Tariffs
11921 Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190

DCOL/HUGHB/75778.1



CONCERT COMML‘ATIDNS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2
Original Sheet 7

SECTION I. — GENERAL TARIFF INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

1.2, Reference to Other Tariffs - References made in this Tarifl to other tariffs of this Company or to tariffs of
other companies are 1o the tariffs in force as of the effective date of this TarifT, and to amendments thereto
and successive issues thereof.

1.3.  Trademarks and Service Marks - The following marks, to the extent, if any, used throughout this tariff,
are trademarks and service marks of CCS.

Trademarks Service Marks

1.4.  Application of the Tarifl

1.4.1. General - This tariff applies to the furnishing of Local Exchange Service by Concent
Communications Sales LLC (herein referred to as the “Company™ or “CCS”). Services are
furnished fo: the use of Customers in the transmission of communications between LATAs located
in the State of Florida . In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Tariff and the

of any Service Order submitted by the Customer to the Company, the provisions of this
TarifT shall control to the extent required by law.

The provision of Local Exchange Services are subject to existing regulations and terms and
conditions specified in this tariff and the Company's other reiated tariffs, and may be revised by

superceding filings.
Issued: March 30, 1999 Effective:
By: Manager, Rates and Tarifls
11921 Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190

DCOL/HUGHB/75778.1




CONCERT COMHIJ’ATIOHS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No, 2

Original Sheet 8

1.5,

SECTION 1. — GENERAL TARIFF INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Definitions - Certain terms used generally throughout this TarifTf are defined below, The terms defined in
this TarifY include the plural as well as the singular. Unless otherwise expressly stated, the words “herein,”
“hereof,” “hereunder” and other similar words refer to this Tarifl as a whole and not to any particular
subsection. The words “include” and “including™ shall not be construed as terms of limitation.

Authorized User: A person, firm, corporation or any otlier entity approved by the Customer and the
Company to use the Service fumished to the Customer.

Availability: The ability of a Connection to transmit and receive the Customer’s voice, data and other
electronic signals between the Network Termination Points at the ordered bit rate.

Charges: The rates and charges, including but not limited to Usage Charges, Monthly Charges, Special
Construction Charges, Installation Charges and Termination Charges, assessed the Customer in accordance
with this Tariff.

Commission: Public Service Commission of Florida
Communications Channel: A path for the transmission of communications between two or more points.
Company: Concert Communications Sales LLC

Company Equipment: Any telecommunications equipment owned or leased by the Company and that
forms part of the Network, including any such Company Equipment situated at any Location, but excluding
Customer Premises Equipment. Company Equipment also includes Company Facilities.

Company Facilities: Facilities, equipment, software or wiring supplied by or on behalf of the Company
For the purpose of furnishing Service. Company Facilities do not include the facilities, equipment, software
or wiring supplied by Other Facilities Suppliers.

Connection: A Communications Channel over which voice, data and other electronic signals can be
transmitted by the Customer or User,

Customer: A person, firm, corporation or any other entity that orders Service and is responsible for the
payment of Charges and compliance with the Company’s regulations. A person, firm, corporation or any
other entity that reasonably appears 1o be acting with the Customer's authority shall be deemed to be acting
on behalf of the Customer.

Customer Premises: The Customer’s or User's place(s) of business, residence or other location for the
origination or termination of Service.

Customer-Premises Equipment (*CPE"): Equipment owned or leased by the Customer or Authorized
User at a Location and connected to the Network on the Customer’s or Authorized User's side of a Network
Termination Point. CPE also includes Customer-Provided Equipment.

Customer-Provided Equipment; Facilities, equipment, softwarc or wiring supplied by the Customer or
User in connection with Service.

Issued: March 30, 1999 Effective:

By:

Manager, Rates and Tariffs
1192] Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190

DCOL1/HUGHB/75778.1




CONCERT CO ATIONS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2

Original Sheet 9

SECTION 1. —~ GENERAL TARIFF INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Definitions - (continued)

Demarcation Point: The point at which the Company Facilities are interconnected with Customer-
Provided Equipment.

Dollars: United States Dollars

Due Date: The date that has been established for completion of the installation, change or disconnect of
service component

Economy Period: 11:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. local time at the originating point of a communication.
Entity: Any corporation, public limited company, limited company, partnership, trust or other legal entity.
FCC: Federal Communications Commission.

Location: The premises owned or occupied by the Customer (or any Authorized User) that forms one end
of a Location-Pair and at which a Network Termination Point is located.

Local Access and Transport Area (LATA): A geographic area established for the provision and
administration of communications services. LATA locations can be found in NECA TarifT F.C.C. No. 4 as
filed with the Federal Communications Commission in Washington DC.

Minimum Service Period: The minimum period that a Customer may subscribe to Service,
Monthly Charge: A flat charge assessed the Customer each mouth for the use of the Company's Service.

Network Interface Specifications: The specifications relating to the interface between the Network and
any Customer-Premises Equipment attached to the Network.

Network Termination Point: A point representing the physical and management boundary between the
Network and Customer Premises Equipment. The Network Termination Point is on the Network side of the
Customer Premises Equipment.

Operational Service Date: The date when any Service, or any part of it, is first made available 1o the
Customer by the Company or the date when the Customer first starts to use such Service (or any part of it),
whichever date is the earlier.

Other Facilities Supplier: An entity other than the Company that provides facilities or services in
connection with the Service furnished by the Company under this Tariff and not as a part of a joint
undertaking with the Company to furnish Service under this Tariff.

Outage: A period during which Availability of a Connection during the Service Hours has ceased.

Issued: March 30, 1999 Effective:

By:

Manager, Rates and Tarifls
11921 Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190

DCO1/HUGHEB/ 75778 .1




CONCERT COHMUIATI‘DNS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2

Original Sheet 10

SECTION 1. ~ GENERAL TARIFF INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

1.5 Definitions - (continued)
Point of Presence (POP): A physical location at which a local access channel, the public switched
telephone network, or other Communications Channel interconnects with Company Facilities for the
origination or termination of communications.
Rate Center: The specific geographical location used {ur determining mileage measurements designated
by Vertical and Horizontal coordinates..
Rate Center Area: The area encompassed by the central office codes (NNXs) that are assigned 10 a rate
center.
Scheduled Service Date: The date upon which Service is scheduled to commence.
Service: The telecommunications service or services offered by the Company under this Tariff.
Service Interruption: A period of time where a service is interrupted or unavailable for use by the
Customer. An interruption or outage scheduled by the Company or beyond the Company's control is not
considered a Service Interruption.
Service Order: The submission of a Company order form containing billing, technical and other
descriptive information designed to enable the Company to furnish Service to the Customer.
Service Term: The period that the Customer subscribes to Service. The Service Term may be longer than
the Minimum Service Period.
Subsidiary: Any lower-tiered Entity affiliated with another Enity that (i) holds more than :fy percent of
the voting rights, (ii) has the right to appoint or remove a majority of directors or trustees, or (iii) controls,
alone or pursuant to an agreement with other shareholders or members, a majority of the beneficial
ownership or voting rights of such lower-tiered Entity. Any Subsidiary of an Entit; that, in wm, is itself a
Subsidiary shall also be a Subsidiary.
Tariff: The Company's Tariff P.5.C. No. 2, Local Exchange Service.
United States: The forty-cight (48) contiguous states and the District of Columbia, Hawaii, Alaska, Puerto
Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands.
Usage Charge: A charge assessed the Customer for the use of the Company's Service. Usage Charges arc
Assessed per second or minute of use or multiple thereof, as specified in Sections 3.3 and 5 of this TarifT.
User: A person, firm, corporation or any other entity that uses the Service furnished to the Customer. A
User includes an Authorized User.
Year of Service: The period of twelve (12) months commencing on the Effective Date and, thereafier, each
successive period of twelve (12) months from such date.

Issued: March 30, 1999 Effective:

By: Manager, Rates and Tariffs

11921 Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190
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CONCERT C’OMMI.‘ATIOHS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2

Original Sheet 11

SECTION 2. - GENERAL REGULATIONS

1. Undertaking of the Company

2.1.L

2.1.2

2.1.3.

2.1.4.

2.1.5.

2.1.6.

Scope — The Company undertakes to provide Local Exchange Service at exchanges in the State of
Florida described herein, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Tariff. The
Company does not transmit communications, but offers the use of Company Facilities, where
available, for the transmission of communications.

The Company shall maintain sole and absolute discretion over the routing of Service furmnished
under this Tariff.

Availability of Service — Service is available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per
week, subject to the availability of facilities and subje-t to transmission, atmospheric, topographical
and like conditions. The Company may limit or interrupt the use of Service because of (i) the lack
of transmission medium capacity, (ii) the need to perform maintenance, modifications, upgrades,
relocations, testing or other similar activities necessary for the provision of Service, or (iii) any
cause beyond its control.

The use and restoration of the Service during emergency conditions shall be in accordance with
Part 64, Subpart D, Appendix A, of the FCC rules and regulations, 47 C.F.R. Part 64 (1993), which

specifies the priority system for services.

The Company reserves the right, when necessary, to arrange for Service to be furnished through the
facilities of Other Facilities Suppliers or other entities or through the use of agents or
subcontractors.

Transmission Medium — The Company will sclect and arrange for the network components used
to provide the services provided under this tariff. Any suitable technology or combination of
technologies may be used. The Company may modify or change the components used to furnish
service,

Customer Premise Equipment (CPE) - The Company does not provide CPE under this tarifl,
however, CPE may be used by the Customer.

Through Transmission of Signals — CCS is responsible for the provision of service from station to
station up to the network interface, but is not responsible for the quality of transmission or
signaling on the Customer’s side of the network interface.

Liability of the Company - Except as stated in this Section the Company shall not be liable for
damages of any kind, including without limitation consequential, special or indirect damages,
arising out of or related to events, acts, rights or privileges contemplated in this Tariff. This Tariff
does not limit the liability of the Company for willful misconduct, if established as a result of
judicial or administrative proceedings.

The liability of the Company for damages ari<ing out of mistakes, interruptions, omissions, delays,
errors or defects occurring in the course of furnishing Service under this Tariff, and not caused by
the failure or negligence of the Customer or Customer-Provided Equipment or service, shall in no
event exceed the amount set forth in Section 4.
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SECTION 2. - GENERAL REGULATIONS (CONTINUED)

Undertaking of the Company (continued)

2.1.6. Liability of the Companv- (continued)

THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTY, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, BY
OPERATION OF LAW OR OTHERWISE, CONCERNING THE COMPANY'S FACILITIES,
EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE OR SERVICE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION,
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THE
COMPANY DOES NOT AUTHORIZE ANYONE, WHETHER A COMPANY EMPLOYEE,
AGENT, SUB-CONTRACTOR, OR OTHERWISE, TO MAKE A WARRANTY OF ANY KIND
ON ITS BEHALF AND THE CUSTOMER SHOULD NOT RELY ON ANY SUCH STATEMENT.

NEITHER THE COMPANY NOR ANY OF ITS MANUFACTURERS, SUBCONTRACTORS OR
SUPPLIERS WILL BE LIABLE TO THE CUSTOMER FOR LOST REVENUES, LOST PROFITS,
LOST DATA, OR OTHER SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGE OR FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR EXPENSE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING
FROM THE CUSTOMER'S OR ANY OTHER PARTY'S USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE
EQUIPMENT, SERVICES OR SOFTWARE EITHER SEPARATELY OR IN COMBINATION
WITH OTHER EQUIPMENT OR FOR COMMERCIAL LOSS OF ANY KIND, WHETHER OR
NOT THE COMPANY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE OR
LOSS, NOR SHALL ANY RECOVERY AGAINST THE COMPANY, WHETHER IN
CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE) BE
GREATER IN AMOUNT THAN THE CHARGES PAID BY THE CUSTOMER TO THE
COMPANY UNDER THIS TARIFF. THE CUSTOMER ASSUMES ALL RISKS AND LIABILITY
FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR INJURY TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY OF THE CUSTOMER OR
OTHERS ARISING OUT OF USE OR POSSESSION OF THE EQUIPMENT, SERVICES AND
SOFTWARE PROVIDED UNDER THIS TARIFF.
2.1.6.A. With respect to any other claim or suit, by a Cvstomer or by any others, for damages
associated with the installation, provision, termination, maintenance, repair or restoration of
the service(s) provided in this tariff.

2.1.6.B. The Company is not lisble for damages associated with service, channels, or equipment
which it does not furnish.

2.1.6.C. The Company shall be indemnified, defended, and held harmless by the Customer and
User against all claims, losses, or damages arising from the use of the service(s) provided in
this tariff.

2.1.6.D. The Company does not guarantee or make any warranty with respect 1o the service(s)
provided in this tariff, when used in an explosive atmosphere. The Company shall be
indemnified, defended, and held harmless by the Customer and User against all claims, losses
or damages by any person relating to the service(s) provided in this tariff, provided pursuant to
this tariff when used in an explosive atmosphere.

2.1.6.E. Nolm:mﬁ'mwnu(mlmmmunlimhndlmmm)isgmudbyﬂw
Company or shall be implied or arise by estoppel, with respect to any service offered under
this tariff. The Company will defend the Customer and User against claims of patent
infringement arising solely from the use by the Customer or User of the service(s) provided in
this tariff, offered under this tariff and will indemnify such Customer or User for any damages
awarded based solely on such claims.
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SECTION 2. ~ GENERAL REGULATIONS (CONTINUED)

Undertaking of the Company (continued)

2.1.6. Liability of the Company - (continued)

2.1.6.F. The Company shall not be liable for any failure of performance hereunder due to causes
beyond its control, including but not limited to any acts of God, fire, lightning, explosion,
flood, extreme weather conditions or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, directive,
action or request of the United States Govemnment, or any other govenment, including state
and local govemments having jurisdiction over the Company, or of any department, agency,
commission, bureau, corporation or other instrumentality of any one or more of said
governments, or of any civil or military authority; any national emergencies, insurrections,
riots or wars; or any labor difficulties.

Obligations of the Customer

1.2.1.

223

Service Ordering—A Customer shall provide the Company with a written Service Order
specifying the date on which Service is requested to commence. Such Service Order shall also
contain, but is not limited to, the following information: (i) name; (ii) address; and (iii) telephone
number.

After receipt of an initial Service Order, the Company will indicate its acceptance by signing that
Service Order and providing to the Customer a Scheduled Service Date, which will be an estimate
as to when the Service will commence. An application for Service may be cancelled prior to the
Scheduled Service Date by the Customer upon written notice to the Company.

Payments and Charges

2.2.2.A. Application of Charges - The rates and charges that are in effect for the services
provided in this tariff when furnished are the rates and charges used to determine the
Customer's bill. If the rates for services fumnished on a monthly basis change after a bill has
been rendered, the bill will be adjusted to reflect the new charges.

2.2.2.B. Payment for Service - The Customer is responsible for payment of all Charges for
Service fumnished by the Company to the Customer. Charges shall commence on its
Operational Service Date and are due and payable upon receipt. Usage Charges shall be
assessed in arrears. Monthly Charges will be assessed in advance. Invoices will be submirted
monthly.

The Customer shall not be excused from paying the Company for Service provided to the
Customer or any portion thereof on the basis that unauthorized use or misuse occurred over the
Service. The Customer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Company against all costs,
expenses, claims or actions arising from unauthorized use or misuse of any nature of the
Service.

Miscellaneous Rates and Charges - CCS may adjust its rates and charges or impose additional
rates and charges on its Customers in order to recover amounts it is required by governmental or
quasi-governmental authorities to collect from or pay to others in support of statutory or regulatory
programs. Examples of such programs include, but are not limited to, the Universal Service rund,
the Primary Interexchange Carrier Charge, and compensation to payphone service providers.
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SECTION 2. — GENERAL REGULATIONS (CONTINUED)

2.2 Obligations of the Customer (continued)
2.23. Miscellanecous Rates and Charges- (continued)

2.23.A. Universal Service Fee (USF) - A charge equal to ____ percent of total Local Exchange
Service charges will be applied 1o invoices of Customers.

2.2.3.B. Carrier Line Charge - Customers are subject to an undiscountable Carrier Line Charge
(CLC) which is a monthly recurring charge. The Carrier Line Charge will be applied subject
10 billing availability.

223.C. Payphone Compensation Charge - In addition 1o all other charges for service under
this tariff, an undiscountable Payphone Use Charge of $0.35 shall apply to each non coin call
phcdfmmadmcﬂkpuypbumbyorwﬂnmmuwmulhnmimumhyme
Company for the use of the payphone instrument 1o access services provided by the Company.

2.23.D. Optional Billing Arrangements - When a call is not billed to the calling station, the
Company offers certain billing options depending on the type of call. These options are:

2.2.3.D.1. Collect Calls - This option allows a call to be billed to the called station, if the charges
are accepted by the called party, station, or number. Collect Calls are not acceptable at a
public or semi-public coin station.

2.2.3.D.2. Calling Card - This option enables a Customer to charge a call to a Calling Card (CCS
or a Local Exchange Company). Calls charged to a commercial credivcharge card must be
made from a suitably equipped telephone or from international locations where available.
Charges for the call will be reflected on the statement issued by the respective commercial

2.2.3.D.3. Third Number Billing - This option allo'vs a call to be billed to a telephone number
identified with a station other than the calling or called one. Charges to be billed to a third
number are subject to verification by the Company that they will be accepted at the third
number, prior to completion of the call. Other efforts may be undertaken subsequently by the
Company, as necessary, 1o determinc responsibility for payment of such calls.

223.E. Gross Receipts Tax - When utility or telecommunications assessments, franchise fees,
or privilege, license, occupational, excise, or other similar taxes or fees. based on interstate
receipts are imposed by certain taxing jurisdictions upon the Company or upon local exchange
mplnhsmdpuudonmtluCumpmymmuworwith interstate access charges, the
amounts of such taxes or fees will be billed 1o Customers in such a taxing jurisdiction on a
prorated basis. The amount of charge that is prorated 1o each Customer's bill is determined by
the interstate telecommunications services provided to and billed to a Customer service
location in such a taxing jurisdiction with the aggregate of such charges equal to the amount of
the tax or fee imposed upon or passed on to the Company.
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2.2,

2.2.4.

SECTION 2. - GENERAL REGULATIONS (CONTINUED)
Obligations of the Customer - (continued)

Advance Payments and Deposits - The Customer may be required to provide suitable security,
including but not limited to a deposit, bank letter of credit, or advance payment, 1o be held by the
Company as a guaranty of the payment of Charges. Such security may be applied at any time, at the
option of the Company, in payment of any unpaid Charges for Service furnished to the Customer or
in payment of applicable Termination Charges. Such a deposit will not exceed an amount equal to
an aggregate of three (3) months’ recurring a:d nonrecurring charges for all Services and Company
Facilities 1o be provided to Customer plus, where special construction is necessary in order to
install the Services and/or Company Facilities, an amount equal 1o the estimated aggregate
nonrecurring charges (if any) for such construction, whenever incurred. The Company shall refund
deposits to Customers in accordance with Section 2.4 below,

2.24.A. When a Service Order is canceled, at the Customer's request, prior to the
commencement of Service, the deposit will be applied to all applicable Charges.

2.24.B. The Company, upon the termination of Service, will refund within sixty (60) days the
Customer’s deposit, or the balance in excess of unpaid Charges, if any, for Service

2.2.4.C. The fact that a deposit has been made neither relieves the Customer from complying
with the Company's regulations or from the prompt payment of bills nor constitutes a waiver
or modification of the regulations of the Company providing for the termination of Service for
nonpayment of any sums due the Company for Service rendered.

Billing Disputes

When the Customer disputes a bill for the Company’s Service, the Customer shall: (i) pay any
undisputed portion of the bill or, at the Customer'. election, pay the disputed portion pending
resolution of the dispute; (ii) advise the Company in writing that the bill or any portions thereof are

by the Customer; and (iii) provide a written explanation of the basis for the dispute within
30 days of the invoice date in question

The Company will review the Customer’s bill and notify the Customer within a reasonable time of
the outcome of its review. If the Company agrees with the Customer, it shall credit the Customer’s
account for any disputed amounts paid by the Customer. If the Company disagrees with the
Customer, any disputed amount unpaid by the Customer shall become payable upon notice to the
Customer,

If there remains a disagreement about the disputed amount after investigation and review by the
Company, the Customer may file an appropriate complaint with the Florida Public Service
Commission. The address of the Commission is:

Florida Public Service Commission
160 East 300 South, 4* Floor
Salt Lake City, Florida 84145

Billing inquiries may be directed to the Company at its toll free number; 1-877-42¥-2862.
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SECTION 2. - GENERAL REGULATIONS (CONTINUED)

Obligations of the Customer (continued)

2.2.6.

1.2.9.

Use of Service - Service may be used to transmit communications of the Customer or User in a
manner consistent with the terms and conditions of this TarifT and the policies and regulations of
the Commission and other suthorities involved.

Service is furnished subject to the condition that the Customer or User not use such Service for any
illegﬂpu'pm.orinamnmernulvioluuﬂulw.nrfamyingmypﬂm,minlmmma
interferes with the reasonable use of the Compan: ‘s Service by other customers or users.

The Customer shall ensure that the use of Service by the Customer or User shall not (i) interfere
with any other Service offered by the Company; (i) endanger the safety of the Company's
employees or the public; or (iii) damage or require change in or alteration of Company Facilitics or
interfere with the proper functioning of such facilities. If any equipment, facilities or services
provided by the Customer or User is causing or is likely to cause such hazard or interference, the
Company may suspend or terminate Service, and the Customer shall take such stcps as shall be
necessary to remove or prevent such hazard or interference

Customer Premises - The Customer shall provide to the Company all reasonable personnel, power
and space required to operate all Company Facilitics installed on the Customer Premises.

Provision of Customer Equipment and Facilities - The Company shall not be responsible for the
installation, operation or maintenance of Customer-Provided Equipment. Where Customer-
Provided Equipment is connected to the Service furnished under this Tariff, the responsibility of
the Company shall be limited to the fumnishing of Service under this TarifT and to the maintenance
and operation of such Service; subject to this restriction, the Company shall not be responsible for:
the through transmission of signals gencrated by Customer-Provided Equipment; or the reception
of signals by Customer-Provided Equipment; or network control signalling where such signalling is
performed by Customer-Provided network control sign1ling equipment.

Customer-Provided Equipment for use in connection with this Service shall be so constructed,
maintained and operated as to be technically compatible with Company Facilities and Service 1o
the Company’s satisfaction, shall not be capable of transmitting or receiving any message or
communication over the Service except in accordance with this Tariff, and shall be in compliance
with all FCC rules and regulstions. Any special interface equipment or reasonable security
procedure pecessary to achieve compatibility between Customer-Provided Equipment and
Company Facilities or Service shall be provided at the Customer’s expense.

Automatic Number Identification/Charge Number Service - Customers who obtain a telephone
subscribers information through Automatic Number Identification or Charge Number service must
comply with the following regulations adopted by the Federal Communications Commission
regarding the use and sale of information derived from Automatic Number Identification or Charge

Number services:

- Customers are permitted to use the telephone number and billing information for billing and
collection, routing, screening and completion of the originating telephone subscriber’s call or
transaction, or for services directly related to the originating telephone subscriber’'s call or
transactions,
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SECTION 2. — GENERAL REGULATIONS (CONTINUED)

Obligations of the Customer (continued)

1.2.9.

Automatic Number Identification/Charge Number Service (continued)

- Customers are prohibited from reusing or selling the telephone number or billing information without

first 1) notifying the originating telephone subscriber and 2) obtaining the affirmative consent of
such subscriber for such reuse or sale; and

- Customers are prohibited from disclosing, except as permitted by above, any information derived from

2.2.10.

2.2.11.

2.2.12.

the Automatic Number ldentification or Charge Number service for any purpose other than: 1)
performing the services or transactions that are the subject of the telephone subscribers call, 2)
ensuring network performance security and the effectiveness of call delivery, 3) compiling, using
and disclosing aggregate information, and 4) complying witl. applicable law or legal process.

Proof of Authorization for Carrier Change - A Customer that is a telecommunications carrier (or
that is acting on behalf of a telecommunications carrier) may not submit an order that will result in
a change in a telecommunications subscriber's Primary Interexchange Carrier (PIC) (including PIC
changes that do not involve CIC changes) unless it first has obtained authorization from the
subscriber, in compliance with any applicable Commission rules and without misleading the
subscriber as to the identity of the carrier soliciting the carrier change or the relationship of tha
carrier to the Company. A Customer that submits such a carrier change order shali provide 1o the
Company adequate proof of authorization and compliance within fifteen days afier the Company
makes a written request therefor.

Agency Agreement - The Company will accept orders from an agent appointed by the Customer,
An agency appointment must be sent to the Company in writing. If directed by the Customer, the
bill for the service(s) provided in this tariff will be sent to the agent. The bill will be issued in the
name of the Customer, in care of the agent.

The Customer retains responsibility for compliance with tariff regulations and any act or omission
of the agent, regardless of any limitations the Customer may place on the agent's authority.

Availability for Maintenance, Testing or Modifications - The Customer must make the service
available for maintenance, testing, or implementation of changes it has ordered, at any reasonable,

mutually agrecable time.

Liability of the Customer - The Customer shall be liable for any damages to or loss of Company Facilities,
Company Equipment or Service or for any injury to the Company's employees, agents or sub-contractors
caused by the negligence or willful act of the Customer’s officers, employees, agents or sub-contractors or
the Customer's Users, patrons or lessors.

The Customer shall be responsible for the payment of all costs and expenses, including reasonable counsel
fees and disbursements, incurred by the Company in connection with any legal or other proceedings and any
appeals therefrom to collect any Charges due pursuant to Service under this TarifY or to enforce any terms or
conditions of this TarifT against the Customer where the Company substantially prevails in such

proceedings.
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3.1 Local Exchange Service — This section contains regulations and rate applications for Local Excharge
Service and applies to dial station and Calling Card where applicable.

311

3.1.2.

Application of Charges - The determination of specific charges for calls can be found in the
rate schedules in Section 4 of this tariff. The ratc in effect at the calling station at the
time the connection is established shall apply to the entire call.

3.1.1.A. Initial Period - The Initial Period applied to a call is the minimum amount of time used
for call charge purposes. The specific length of the Minimum Period can be found on the
applicable Rate Schedule.

3.1.1.B. Additional Period - the Additional Period is the increment used to bill for a chargeable
call when the call extends beyond the Initial Period. Additional Period rates apply for each
Additional Period or fraction thereof that the call continues beyond the Initial Period.

3.1.1.C. Payphone Use Charge - In addition to all other charges for service under this tariff, a
Payphone Use Charge applies to each non coin call placed from a domestic payphone by or to
the Customer. This charge is instituted to cover the cost incurred by the Company for the use
of the payphone instrument to access services provided by the Company. The Payphone Use
Charge can be found in Section 2.2.3, Miscellancous Rates and Charges.

Availability - Local Exchange Service is available throughout the State of Florida Company has
authorization to provide service and the billing capability exists.

Issued: March 30, 1999 Effective:

By:

Manager, Rates and Tarifls
11921 Freedom Drive
Reston VA 20190

DCO1/HUGHB/75778.1




COMNCERT COMMU.A‘I‘IONS SALES LLC . Florida Price List No. 2
Original Sheet 19

SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES
4.1. Local Exchange Service

4.1.1. Rate Periods = The Rate Periods used in this tarifl include Standard, Discount and Economy, are
based on the time of the originating end at the start of the call and are applied as follows: Standard
time is from 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM, Discount time is from 7:00 PM to 12 midnight and Economy
time is from 12 midnight to 7:00 AM.

4.1.2. Mileage Measurements - Mileage measurement, when applicable, is the distance in airline miles
between locations. The mileage is the distance between the rate center of the originating station
and the rate center of the terminating station and is measured using the calculation of airline miles
is as specified in NECA Tariff F.C.C. No. 4.

4.1.3. Rates - The Rates for Local Exchange Service are based on the Exchange location, time of day,
day of week, length (in miles) and duration. The Initial Period is 30 seconds and the Adamional
Period is 6 seconds. Following are the rates for the different types of calls.

|[RATES FOR LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE ARE TO BE DETERMINED]|
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Concert Communications Sales LLC
Exhibit F
Key financial figures from
British Telecommunications plc
“Annual report and accounts 1998"
(conformed to U.S, SEC Form 20-F)
Tumover (Revenues) §  25,649,000,000.60
Profit before tax 5,279,000,000.16
Profit after tax 2,838,000,000.84
Earnings per share 0.52
Net dividends 0.31
Capital expenditure 4,969,000,000.20

Exchange rate: £1.00 = $1.64
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Chairman’s statement

The 1098 financial year proved to be & very
important chapter in the BT story, even i not
quite in the way we anticipated 12 months ago.

This time last year, we expected that there was a
good chance that our prospective merger with MCI
Communications Corporation would be completed
by the end of the calendar year. In the event, of
course, this did not happen. WorldCom tabled a
considerably higher bid for MCI and we did not
feel that it would be in shareholders’ best interests
to match it

In our view, the preferable course was to

accept the offer WorldCom made for our 20 per
cent holding in MCL. On completion of the
MCI/WorldCom merger, BT will receive around
USS7 billion (more than £4 billion). This, added
to the break-up fee and expenses, represents over
US$54 per share for a holding we acquired for
just over USS32 per share in 1694, As | write, the

MCI/WorldCom merger is awaiting regulatory
clearance in the USA and Europe.

Nor has the success of Concert Communications
Services, our joint venture with MCI, been
compromised. Indeed, Concert has continued

to lead the world in providing global managed
network services to multinational customers.
MCI WorldCom will, for a period, have
non-exclusive rights to distribute Concert
products in the USA. Beyond that, we shall
ensure that enduring distribution arrangements
are put in place for the longer term.

In other important respects, this has been a good
year for your company - both in the UK and In

other markets around the world.

Turnover has grown by 4.7 per cent and we
have seen strong growth in demand. Customers
have benefited from sound quality of service,
price cuts worth over £750 million in the year,
and a range of new and exciting services. Our
Internet-related business is growing fast and we
are seeing considerable demand for second lines
and ISDN connections. We have also announced
a major upgrade to our broadband network to
match the ever-increasing volumes of data we
are required to carry.

Earnings per share were 26.7 pence and ] am
pleased to report a final dividend for the year of
11.45 pence per share, which brings the total
dividend for the year to 19 pence per share,
which is as forecast. This represents an increase
of 6.4 per cent on last year, adjusted to take
account of the special dividend that we paid in
September 1997,

Relations with the new Government have been
good. Notwithstanding the so-called “Windfall
Tax", which we did not and do not believe was
appropriate to BT, the Government’s interest in
the social and economic benefits that Information
technology can bring is clear and undiminished.
We are proud to support the Government's New
Deal welfare-to-work initiative, and have been a
key player in developing the “national grid for
learning” in the UK

Outside the UK, liberalisation has been gathering
momentum. The World Trade Organisation Is
committed to opening telecommunications
markets; and, In Europe, give or take the odd
derogation, there has been full competition in

the market since 1 January 1998. BT has now
established a presence throughout the European
Union, and we are engaged in turning long-awaited
opportunities into action, across the world.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Our capacity to address such opportunities and
to meet the challenges of change depends to
a great extent on the skills an’ commitment of
our employees and ] thank all BT people for the
continued dedication which they have shown

to the company over the year.
In a word, we have the right people, the right
strategy and the right positioning for success.
And we aim to continue to translate that strategy
into long-term shareholder value.
I also wish to pay tribute to those directors
who retired from the Board during the year,
Birgit Breuel, Yve Newbold, Bert Roberts Jar,
Dr Alan Rudge and Gerald Taylor, each of whom
made a much appreciated and distinctive g & SaE Al AP
contribution to the company’s progress during ' Dividends per shars - ordinary  10.00p°  198% 1870
their term of office. [N RERA, RGN L
S .';11.4‘;@1;2"'-%“1 i “’1 . WS T
We are pleased to welcome our new non-executive Mot cash flow from 1.« . .\ LD
directors, Helen Alexander and Neville Isdell, to  operating sctivities ' '*n.wl- £6,182m  £5,834m
our Board. We also welcome Sir John Weston, who | . %% 09/c fonlgnm A
will join the Board in the autumn. Boneoie copur X T, Bee Gma

In a break with tradition, I would like to close
this Chairman's statement on a personal note.

I announced earlier this year that, with effect from
31 July, I will become parttime Chairman, having
been fortunate enough to serve as your company’s
fulltime, executive Chairman for over ten years.

BT new has a strong and experienced senior
management team in place, under the leadership
of Chief Executive, Sir Peter Bonfield. There is
no longer a need for two fulltime executives at
the helm. "

l( Lia J@.LLQM,,L
That said, I shall continue to play a full part in the
Life of the company and I can assure you that my Sir lain Vallance
permdmnﬁummmkrmdloﬂuhduﬂy Chairman
is undiminished. 26 MAY 1898
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An interview with Chief Executive, Sir Peter Bonfield

A lot has been sald about BT's strategy over the
past year. How would you describe it?

Quite simply, our strategy is lo seise the opportunities
for growth in the communications market worldwide.

In practice, that means continuing to stimulate and
meet growing demand In the UK; moving Into new
growth markets such as the rest of Europe; and
maintaining our world-eading position In serving the
needs of multinational companies through Concert
Communications Services. Across all of those markets,
we will also look to take advantage of the explosive
growth in advanced services such as mobility, data,
multimedia and the Internet.

Communications technologies are the engines of
change and growth in the world's economy at the
moment - and that gives us a wealth of opportunities.
Our task is to seize those opportunities, deliver
excellent value for shareholders and, In doing so, realise
our vision of becoming the most successful worldwide
telecommunications group.

There's a lot of competition for these opportunities.
How can BT make sure It makes the most of them?

BT is uniquely well-positioned. We have proved that

we can please a wide range of customers. We are highly
experienced in competitive situations. We have significant
financial strength and we are already an established
global player, with operations in all major markets
around the world.

Can there be any growth left in the UK market after
over a decade of competition?

Yu&mrh-mwhhhhmﬂh
sicadily increased revenues and call volumes. Usage
of residential lines continues to increase. It now stands
at more than 11 minutes per line per day, a rise of more
than two minutes since 1994. Remember also that UK
usage is still only 60 per cent of that in the USA - which
mmmummmhm
We're now stimulating the market for phone calls with
marketing campaigns and, at the same time, developing
2 whole new market in advanced services.

What are you doing to take the opportunities for
growth in mobiiity, data end multimedia?

We've taken several steps this year to make sure that
mobility is a top priority for the company, and that

means all gervices which help people communicate
free from location restraints - including services such
as calling cards and messaging ss well as mobile
telephones. Cellnet ~ In which we have a 60 per cent
stake - has & reputation for innovation. It was the first
operator to enable customers to send and receive faxes
umwmmuhmumuu
launched an Internet-linked service, Celinet Gene, that
delivers Information such as news, share prices, football
scores of job opportunities to your mobile phone.

In mainland Europe, we are ploneering the merging of
mobile and fixed line services, with one network, one
bill and, ultimately, one handset.

The market for data communications is experiencing
explosive growth and is set to overtake voice traffic

in the next five years. This trend, known as the
“datawave”, is being driven by developments such as
the spectacular growth of the Internet. Already, BT's
Internet business is growing faster than 100 per cent
per annum. In the UK, we've announced that we will be
making s £1.1 billion investment in our networks Lo meet
the demand for data communications and Internet
services. In Europe, data revenues are growing very
strongly, and Concert offers globs! companies a choice
dumwmum
around the world.

In the UK, we are also helping the next generation

10 use data networks by connecting schools to the
Net st afiordable prices. We're also on the brink of a
multimedia innovation that will transform the domestic
communications market: digital interactive television.
Subject to the necessary regulatory clearances, our
Joint venture, British Interactive Broadcasting, will
enable people to do some shopping, check thelr

bank statement, have an on-line tutoral or buy a CD,
all from their homes. They will be able to receive and
respond to information via the TV set using & combination
of satellite transmission and the telecommunications
network.

How can BT give sufficlent attention to both UK
and glabal activities?

We have structured the company to ensure that we
can pursue these various opportunities with clarity and
determination. | have established a small team (o drive
group siralegy and take an overview of BT's operstions
in the UK and Internationally. BT UK, under

Bill Cockburn, ls focused on the domestic UK market,




with the objectives of achieving sustained growth from
the core telephony business and maximising value

in growth markets. Meanwhile, BT Global, under
Alfred Mockett, Is concentrating on lavesting In, and
developing, new markets around the world. The team
which handles mobllity and multimedia opportunities
reports directly lato me and provides & strategic focus
on two of the major worldwide opportunities.

a-mhm_vmm<
at the moment - how would you describe BT

operations there?

“Fast-moving” s the best description. Europe Is &

huge opportunity - a market which has been opea

to competition since 1 January 1998, We have joint
ventures operating In every major country and they
have already won 11 licences for fixed or mobile services.
Taken together, our European alliances are expected to
have annual revenues of £2.5 billion this yesr, a rise of
around 50 per cent. They expect to recrult 4,000 people
In 1998. Our partners are companies with local influence
and established Infrastructures. They include financlal
services providers, media conglomerstes, transport
companies and retallers, and they all supplement BTs
technology skills and competitive experience with a deep
understanding of their own national markets.

Beyond the UK and Europe, what have been the
other highlights of the year?

First, it's been another good year for Concert
Communications Services, the jolnt venture we

have operated with MCI since 1994. Concert leads
lhemhthrlhhdm‘ﬁmnudhlhh
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year, serves 40 per cent of the Fortune 500 top
companies and was rated number cne global outsourcer
in the Yankee Group's survey of customers, Other
highlights were winning fixed and mobile licences in
w-mﬂmmmdm
signing a Memorandum of Understanding 1o co-operate
with China Telecom: and sanouncing that we would

be the first European communications company to
mw-mmhﬁuwnm
like Compaq and Microsoft to look at setting standards
for new high-speed services.

. INTERVIEW WITH CHIEF EXECUTIVE

i-h-dnrnu-u-hhuunlmnm
with MCI?

I otill believe that merging on the terma which we
negotiated would have been a good result for BT and
its sharcholders, but we decided not to go shead at a
price which would have been uneconomic for BT, Had
we chosen o maich the rival bid, we believe It would
have been against shareholders’ interests. As it was,
we took action to secure a good return, maintained
our services to US customers through Concert
Communications Services and kept open our options
1o pursue new growth opportunities.

So what now In the USAT

We now havz two objectives. The first Is to make
sure we have the most comprehensive possible
sales, service and support for customers of Concert
Communications Services In the USA. Second - and
this is a separate issue - there may still be Investment
opportunities in growth aneas of the US domestlc
market. It Is a valuable market, with over one-third of
the world's lelecoms revenues. We are looking at all
the options but we will only take an opportunity if it
will deliver real value for shareholders.

In overall terms, what's your vision for BT?

To be a company that delights customers and
sharcholders, and Is a good place to work. To seize
growth opportunities around the world. To help people
use communications technology to improve their
education, their health, their
business. To ensble people to use
communications to expand their
horizons and to get more out of
their lives, as employees, as
consumers and as citizens.

Ay

Sir Peter Bonfield CBE
Chigf Executive
26 MAY 1888




BT Is one of the world's leading suppliers of fixed that made by BT and the BT Board did not feel it would
and mobile communications services. In the UK, be in sharéholders’ interests to raise its offer.
we support around 27 million customer lines and, WorldCom has ! to pay BT ¢ USS7 bill
through our 60 per cent staka «1 Cellnet, over three than £4 billlon) for our share in MCL Thia,
milion mobidle connections. Our main services are
sdded to the US$465 million break-up fee and partial
local, national and international calls (with direct st e
expenses, represents over USSS4 per
Gl o over 830 counbies warkbatiek: o share for & holding that was scquired for US$32
supplying telephone fines, equipment and private i
. for e share n 1994. At the date of this report, the proposed
MCl/WorldCom merger was awaiting the necessary
Outside the UK, our strategy is to expand in chosen regulatory clearances.
markets by developing a series of alliances and joint BT is now e i i We
venture partnerships, and we have put in place one of Sagtaing the opfiene roup.
remain commitied to securing appropriate distribution
Sho Moot comppshamis SR I ol oy o, e Gt dlioery of saroioen s o (B
In Concert Communications Services, we have the channels for the delivery of services to our US customer.
world's leading supplier of global network solutions
multinational customers. Concert
We are also at the of the deved and Through the highly successful Concert Communications
Services, BT will continue to deliver global networking
marketing of a comprehensive range of advanced data
and ; Mismedia sol ik ; solutions (o our multinational customers, more than
ta b 40 per cent of whom are headquartered in the USA.
Concert already has 3,800 major corporate customers
As businesses Increasingly operate internationally, and s in more than 50 countries.
more and more people are travelling and working abroad, £ 40 per cont of the P Global 500 :
0 the demand for International communications grows.
use Concerl services, and around 60 per cent of Concert's
In the past ten years, International communications ~ Rt 4o mars e ademaret
phone, fax, video, data - have more than doubled from
33 billion minutes a year to 68 billion minutes. Concert has committed future revenues of almost
This b o & i b : by USS1 billion per annum and has been rated the
the liberal of el _ _ best-positioned global networking outsourcer and top
global provider of international voice services In a survey
the world. At the beginning of the 1990s, only about
20 by the Yankee Group, & leading telecommunications
Eiisﬂiﬂfillﬁ ¢
decade, only about ten per cent will mof be. MCI WorldCom will continue to distribute Concert
We i i s hies - North Eﬁirﬁ-ﬁrﬂ-é;r-
America, Europe and Asia-Pacific - and our strategy Is to po
work with local partners. We now have 2 number of key
partnerships around the world and significant investment  Europe
in international services. In mainland Europe, it is a time of grest opportunity
for BT. By 1 January 1998, the major European Unlon
The USA countries had to open their telecoms markets to full
In the USA. the principal news in the year was the competition. Some of Europe’s business and mobile
announcement by MCI Communications Corporation ca markets have been open for some time but now, with
10 November 1997 that It was recommending s merger Just a few exceptions, there s open competition for the
with WarldCom to form MCI WorldCom and that business of 300 million residential customers across the
WorldCom would be buying BT"s stake in MCL continent, in & market that will be worth an estimated
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Because we believe that in international business it is
essential o think global but act local, we have already
moved fast in many countries to establish curselves,
with our partners, as the major alternative to the
incumbent operators.

‘We have bullt partnerships or established distributorships
in each of the markets that are opening up. Typically, our
partners have not been other telecoms operators but local
companies with strong reputations and experience which
complements our own. In Germany, our maln partner is
Viag. s major energy and industrial group with whom we
have formed Viag Interkom; la France, we have leamed
up with a group headed by Vivend to form Cegetel. In
ltaly, we have partnered with energy group ENIL, media
organisation Mediaset, and Banca Naszionale del Lavoro
to form Albacom; and in the Netherlands we have formed
Telfort in partnership with the state railway company
Nederlandse Spoorwegen.

In total, our ventures cover 85 per cent of the EU market.
We have already invested almost £2 billion in European
ventures and expect (o make further substantial
investments over the next few years.

In Germany, France, Italy, the Netherlands, Switserland,
Ireland and Sweden we, alone or in partnership, already
have licences to run Bxed line services, and we

will benefit from mobile network licences in Germany,
France, the Netherlands, and Spaln to0. In other
countries, bidding for licences Is still in progress.

BUBINESS REVIEW

In February 1998, it was announced that Telfort had

won one of two new national Dutch mobile icences,

1o go with the fixed line licence it already holds. Initial
coverage, which will start at the end of this year, will be
confined to metropolitan areas, but we aim for 99 per cent
national geographic coverage by the end of 1999,

BT's new joint venture ln Switserland, Newtelco, woo no
fewer than 25,000 customery In the first moath when its
Sunrise service opened for business In January 1996,
Jolntly owned by BT, TeleDanmark, Swiss rallways, Unlon
Bank of Switzerland and the retail giant Migros, Sunrise
means that, for the first time, Swiss customers have s
chaice of telecoms supplier for some of the calls they
make ¢utside Switzerland.

In September 1997, we completed our deal o take

2 26 per cent stake in Cegetel, the new French
telecommunications group which, in 1997, had revenues
of over El bilion. Cegelel will provide the full range of
telecommunications services - both fixed and mobile -
and is already positioned to be the main competitor to
France Telecom. Cegetel's fixed network service was
launched at the beginning of February 1998 and, in the
first two months, attracted around 140,000 customers.
It also holds & majority stake ln SFR, the number two
mobile operator in France, with more than 2.5 million
customers and s market share of approximately

40 per cent of new subscribers.

In Spaun, our fixed line operator - BT Telecomunicaciones
= has the second largest data network and has trebled its
revenues since it was set up In 1994. And Alrtel, in which
BT has a 16 per cent stake, has more than a million
mobile customers and 40 per cent of the Spanish

digital market.

In December 1997, BT and the Electricity Supply Board
in the Republic of Ireland announced that they had
reached agreement ln principle to form a joint venture lo
offer communications services In Ireland, one of western
Europe's fastest growing economies.

Asla-Pacifio

The Asla-Pacific telecommunications market ks one

of the fastest growing in the world, and BT already hus
offices or ventures in Japan, China, Taiwan, South Korea,
Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Thalland, the Philippines,
Australia, New Zealand and India.
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In April 1997, BT+ NIS (a joint venture between BT
and MarubenD began trading In Japan as & Concert
distributor, Internet service provider and supplier of
advanced voice and data services. In February 1998,
BT NIS announced lts intention to apply for a Ecence
to take advantage of the newly-liberalised telecoms
market in Japan.

China Is one of the most exciting markets In the region
and, potentlally, one of the largest In the world. For the
last few years that market has grown st a rate of sbout
20 million lines & year.

In March 1998, BT took a further step into this market by
signing a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the
state-owned operator, China Telecom. Although the Mol
does not Involve lavestment, it will foster co-operation and
understanding between the twe companies, and ensble

us to swap technology and examine mutually beneficlal
business opportunities.

And, in Singapore, BT Is part of a consortium which has
mﬁmnhﬁﬂam&m-ﬁﬂ'hb
compete with Singapore Telecom from April 2000,

In the UK
mwmhmdﬁQMMEﬂu
world, and we have Invested nearly £30 billion since we
were privatised in 1084, Investment at this level ensures
that we can continue to deliver reliable and Innovative
services to all our customers.

Twemmﬂnumumudwﬂ
fibre in the UK network, 7,500 local exchanges and
69 main switching units.

Business communications

One of the key growth areas for BT has been the
hnrmhhﬂnmhu.mhbhhmm
&m.‘lhlmmlhnhluudhmhﬂthr
Internet access.

Amwhyhﬂmmm;hhnm
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advantage by using & single supplier 1o provide them with
wmmmm
Solutions is at the forefront of this rapidly growlag
outsourcing market.

And, as the value of transactions In the world's capital
markets Is expected to continue to increase rapidly, BT -
through it systems integration business Syntegra - has
become the global market leader In the desian and
provision of dealing rooms and trading systems. Syntegra
has a global market share of 25 per cent of dealing boards
and our -ystems are used by 45,000 financial traders
around the world,

Currently, only a third of small and medium-sized
businesses use electroaic mail, compared with two-thirds
dhn&mdmbnwhmlhm
compared with around half of large corporations. But the
market for information technology and communications In
this sector is expected to grow by around 50 per cent in
the next five years and we believe that this is a market of
huge importance to BT,

BT and the Confederation of British Industry are jointly
sponsoring the Information Soclety Forum, which focuses
In particular on the impact of new technology on the small
business market. We are also working closely with the
mmummm“
10 all their members. And, i South Wales, BT and the
European Commisslon are financing the work of the
world's first chair of electronle commerce st Cardif
University. The University has become the hub of the
mmwmwhm

2 number of small businesses are discovering how
technologies such s the Internet and videoconferencing
mhdp&nﬂmmbmhhﬁﬂmﬂﬂ
down on travel costs, get closer to their customers and
suppliers, and trade internationally.

We have also teamed up with Comet, a leading UK
retailer of consumer electronle equipment, to test a

new concept [n retafling. Called LT: Works, this ks a

store dedicated to the information technology and
communicstions needs of smaller businesses. Perzonal
computers, software and peripherals are on sale along
with the latest in communications technalogy. If the trial
proves successful, LT, Works stores will be opened across
the UK.

Quality of service

BT places great emphasis on quality of service and our
customers’ satisfaction with the service we provide, We
conduct over 22,000 Interviews every month with our
residential cusiomers and with the genera! public, ss well
nwlmmﬂmmw



For the period October 1997 to March 1998, 83 per cent of
our residential customers and 88 per cent of our business
customers said they were satisfied with the services we
provide. Satisfaction with inland calls was 85 per cent.

Some residential customers were badly hit by the weather
problems In late December and early January - the
number of faults cleared in nine working hours or by
successiul appolntment dropped to just under 80 per cent.
However, for our business customers, the number of
faults cleared In five working hours or by successful
appointment increased to over 89 per cent.

Ninety two per cent of customers are satisfied with our
Operator Assistance Service (100) and 80 per cent are
satisfied with our Directory Assistance Service (192).

BT s investing £84 million in new technology to improve
the standards of its directory enquiries service, including
an expansion of the database o that, by 2000, it will also
be able 1o provide the numbers for mobile phones,
radiopagers and fax machines,

Network reliability remains consistently high - less
than one call in 200 fails because of the network, and
_ @ customer s unlikely to experience a network fault
more than once every seven years on any one of his
or her lines.

The number of BT payphones in the UK has grown to
Just over 138,000,

Regulation

Since August 1997, BT has operated under a price cap
formula ~ agreed with Oftel ~ of the Retail Price Index
(RPI) minus 4.5, covering the services used by those
residential customers whose bill size was in the Jowest
80 per cent. Under the formula, the price cap applies to
less than 20 per cent of BT's total revenues, In contrast
to the previous formula of RPI minus 7.5 which ran for
unbum:nﬂmuddjwlm&wldh
about 50 per cent of revenues.

In March 1998, Oftel instigated & Moaopolies and
Humcmm*muh Issue of
mmdﬁmummmmh
still underway and will report to Oftel In early September.
BT believes that the prices of its services reflect the
competitive nature of the UK market and are fully
justified. However, we acknowledge the objective
approach that an MMC referral will bring and we are

BUSINESS REVIEW

co-operating fully with the MMC's Investigation.

m"mmmmhm
regulatory approval for the British Interactive
Broadcasting venture, which we are seeking to launch In
conjunction with BSkyB, Matsushita and Midland Bank.
Scheduled to be launched later in 1998, it will provide

a range of services, Including home shopping, home
bar'-ing, home education and information services, as
well as Internet, e-mail access and computer games,
through a televislon set-top box.

Internet

‘The Internet is & key market for BT - our Internet
business Is currently growing faster than 100 per cent
per annum and BT Internet Is one of the largest

UK Internet service providers.

In March 1998, United News & Media jolned BT and
News International as an equal partner in LineOne, the
Internet-based Information and entertalament service for
residential customers. LineOne brings customers news,
sport, entertainment, business information and home
shopping and is the caly UK-focused on-line service of
its kind.

For businesses, BT WebWorld is a quick, easy and
cost-effective web hosting service for creating and
operating Inisrnet sites. BT WebWorld offers a full range
of web hosting functions, together with web site design
packages. Customer support s available seven days a
week by e-mail, fux or telephone. Features Include high
avallability systems, regular back-ups and high capacity
connections to the Inlernet.

In addition o the Internet, private corporate intranets
have emerged as a source of new business. For example,
ET Intranet Complete is a “ready-o-go™ solution for
companies keen to get started on their own intranet.
And BT latranet Builder offers a "one-stop-shop” for
companies wishing to develop their own Intranets,
providing a comprehensive range of the best components
and support services.

Multimedia

In the last 12 months, BT has stepped up its research into,
und trials of, interactive multimedia services. Multimedia
embraces the Internet, interactive television, and video
and sudio material delivered over networks 1o the home
or office.
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Multimedia Is already growing fast, with 10 million e-mails
sent each day in the UK and 30 new web pages set up on
the Internet every minute. Around five per cent of local
call traffic carried by BT is now Internet-related.

Multimedia’s popularity s set to increase rapidly. BT trials
show that 60 per cent of people would prefer their
television service to feature interactivity and the ability to
call up videos on demand.

The network
Multimedia's uptake will depend on the capacity of
networks lo deliver its material and to provide return
channels through which consumers can respond to what
is broadcast or distributed. BT is therefore working to
provide the best possible networks, while keeping costs
within affordable limits.

During the year, we announced that we would spend an
additional £300 million on upgrading our network to
enable it to carry more data at faster speeds. Such an
upgrade will help the network support new services such
as Home Highway. Home Highway Is a new digital
communications service that will transform a customer's
existing home telephone line into 2 high-speed Internet
and multimedia connection.

Much of our current network investment is focused on
the ways that technology can make our existing network
investment carry all the latest services by - for example -
delivering video services over the existing copper
network. This will enable us to provide new services

at the most affordable price.

nummmumww
subscriber loop) technology, which uses compression
techniques to increase the capacity of a phone line 30-fold,
giving high-speed Internet access, TV-quality video and
CO-quality sudio.

Variants on this theme are also In development, Including
the highly economical DSL Lite and the more expensive

VDSL (very high-speed digital subscriber loop).

In March 1998, it was announced that BT will be working
with Microsoft subsidiary WebTV Networks in » trial of
the WebTV service, for which BT will be the Internet
service provider.

Mobility selutions
BT is also enhancing and sharpening its focus on the
mmmmmw

1t has traditionally thought of customers’ mobility
requirements.

Analysts predict that, withia five years, the mobile
communications market will account for 30 per cent of all
telecommunications revenues, with some 12 1o 14 million
people in the UK having a mobile phone, compared with
nine million today,

Colinet

BT has a 60 per cent stake in Cellnet, the mobile
telecommunications network operator, and - through
BT Mobile - offers curtomers a range of integrated
and innovative mobility solutions, enabling them to
stay in touch wherever they are.

Cellnet has more than three million customers, the vast
majority of whom are connecled to the digital GSM

network.

[
Cellnet was the first UK network to offer a full, two-way
digital fax and data service. In effect, a fax number is
assigned to an individual rather than a machine, Mobile
phone users can now receive and send data securely while

on the move in many of the countries with which Cellnet
has “roaming” agreements.

September 1907 saw the launch of Cellnet Genle, a world
first and one of the UK's most comprehensive free
Information sources on the Internet. The Genle website
brings together the very latest Information on news and
current affairs, sport, finance, entertainment, travel and
careers on one web site. Customers acoessing the site can
sk for information to be delivered Lo their mobile phone
via lext messages or (0 an e-mail address. -
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Cellnet plans to launch a radic-on-demand service,
allowing people to access personalised news and sports
woice reports - beginning with football - at the touch of
a button on a Celinet digital phone.

Card Services *

BT's Card Services have developed and launched

Card, BT's first truly International calling card for the
global marketplace. Launched initially in three European
markets in association with our jolnt venture partners in
with BT's global capacity to offer a seamless service to
international customers outside of the UK. It Is positioned
specifically to appeal to business travellers from abroad
who have a need to call internationally.

Pricing
Since December 1993, BT has cut call prices by more
than £2 billion.

Al the same time, we have Introduced 2 wide range of
flexible optional discount schemes tallored to suit the
needs of all our business and residential customers.

BT has & minimum call charge of 5p st basic rates - 3.8p
with PremierLine and Friends & Family discounts.

SUBINESS REVIEW

The biggest reduction In the year came In May 1997 when
BT cut the price of national daytime calls by ten per cent.
Al the same time, regional daytime calls were cut by

3.8 per cenl.

In September 1997, the pricing structure of BT payphones
ﬂwmlﬁMhmw
and customers now recelve up Lo 50 per cent more time
for their money on UK long-distance daytime calls,

And the cost of calling has coatinued falling since the year
end. On 29 April 199% *he cost of local calls made In the
evening and overnight, Monday to Friday, came down by
maore than ten per cent = from 1.7p a minute to L5p.

In December 1997, BT welcomed a High Court decision
to lift a temporary injunction preventing us from
circulating a report which compared our prices favourably
with those of Cable & Wireless Communications.

BT recognises that customers need Lo compare what each
supplier has to offer and assess which is best for them.
But, to make a realistic comparison between BT and other
suppliers, customers need (o be able to compare like with
like. In competitors’ advertising activity, it is often thelr
best call discounts that are compared with BT's base call
rates and no account is taken of our discount packages.

Marketing

Marketing campaigns have played a key role in relaying
the message that BT is committed to cutting prices and to
changing the way people In the UK regard the telephone.

Thanlks to campaigns such as II's good io falk and
discount packages such as Friends & Family, sverage
residential telephone usage has Increased by more than
two minutes per day since 1994, to a level which ls still
only around 60 per cent of that In the USA. Usage per line
per day has increased by more than 42 seconds in the
past 12 months.

Last year saw the launch of several new marketing
campaigns alimed st Increasing the number of residential
customers connecled to BT.

Our Acquisition campaign, involving a mailing to all

UK households not benefiting from a telephone service,
has resulted In over 45,000 new customers choosing to
connect to BT.

Our Reconnection campaign has been even more
succesaful, attracting a further 100,000 customers who

-
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had previously givea up BT service to reconnect for just
£9.99, This campalgn Includes mailings, telemarketing, a
new feld marketing operation and television advertising.

Finally, nearly 300,000 BT customers opted for a second
line during the year, eucouraged by marketing special
offers promoting halfprice installstion and other
incentives.

Reglonal dimension

The regional dimension of UK business is becoming
Increasingly important and BT Is working in close
partnership with customers In all regions 10 aid soclal

and economic development.

Examples include some of the more remote parts of the
Scottish Highlands and lslands. Since distance is no
obstacle, and location is no longer a constraint, the vast
majority of 939 calls on the UK mobile network are
handled in Inverness, bringing much needed local
employment.

And, in Thurso, BT has recently opened a state-ofthe-art

call centre which is helping us to build those allimportant
relationships with our customers, and enabling us to treat
them in a more responsive and customer-friendly manner.

In February 1998, the Secretary of State for Northern
Ireland opened BT's new £9 million call centre in south
west Belfast, & project on which we worked with the
Northern Ireland Industrial Development Board.

And, In April 1998, BT announced the creation of 800
new jobs over the next 12 months In a new £6 million
call centre in Dundee.

As well as using call centres Lo contact our customers
on & regular basis to tell them about BT's products
and services, we are increasingly using them to rus

telemarketing operations on behalf of other companies.
In fact, BT now runs more than 100 call centres In the UK.

BT people

Al BT, we understand the link between belng our
customers” “supplier of cholce™ and our people’s
“employer of cholce™. | hat ks why we have such & deep
cmﬂlmmtomrp.ukduhmn“t
up by secking accreditation as an /xvestors in Poople
company.

By the end of March 1998, around 124,700 people were
employed by BT, compared with 227,000 seven years ago.

However, during the year, there were Increases In certain
parts of the business as we have been bullding oa people-
Intensive activities such as telemarketing and delivering
our commitment to world-class quality of service.

We recruited over 500 high-calibre gradustes and 500
modern spprentices in the year. BT Is a key supporter of
the UK Government's New Deal welfare-to-work Initiative
and plans to help 250 unemployed people get back to
work during 1998. We encourage our people to gain
appropriate National Vocational Qualifications.

Through our leading-edge policies and programmes, we
seck to promote real equality of opportunity throughout
the company and actively encourage the employment,
training and career development of people with
disabilities. We also try to continue to employ any of
our people who develop a disability in the course of
their career.

In March 1998, BT woa top prize in the Opportunity 2000
Awards scheme. These awards recognise UK employers
who demoastrate Innovative working practices to further
women's development at work.

Al the 1997 UK Quality Awards, both BT Business
Division and BT Northern Ireland were recognised for
achievements that led to success for themselves and
their custoc.em.

BT is the largest company ever to have won & European
Quality Awards prise, and we did 80 in both 1996 and 1997,

We also run a comprehensive in-house Quality Award
scheme. This year's winners Included the team which woa
the bid for the supply and management of an advanced
services network for Halifax plc, and the team responsible
for a nationwide updating of payphones and phonecard
technology.

We conduct a wideranging programme of employee
opinlon research, lachding an snnual company-wide
survey. Managers are required (o put in place an action
plan to address the issues ralsed by their teams.

The allocstion of shares to employees under the BT
Employee Share Ownership Scheme amounts to
two per cent of annual pre-tax profita.

BT continues to consult and negotiate with recognised
unlons In the UK as an Integral part of our employee
relations strategy. We have also set up 8 European
mmmwhw
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Environment

A company of BT's size inevitably has an Impact on the
environment through its signifzant use of energy and
other resources, as well as its waste streams. Since an
initial review in 1989, we have developed a whole lifecycle
approach to environmental management in line with the
international environmental management system standard
(15014001). Targets are set In line with ISO14001 and

indusiry best practice.

Our policy, first published in 1990 and regularly reviewed,
covers all significant environmental impacts: procurement,
fuel and energy, emissions to air, local Impacts, and
wastes.

BT now trades electronically with 90 per cent of its largest
suppliers, and we have saved at least £10 million as &
result. In the majority of these transactions, our supplier
does not print or post orders or lnvolces - everything Is
done electronlcally. We aim to expand our electronic
trading 1o include all of our smaller, localised purchasing,
covering around 400,000 orders a year and around

1.5 million invoices.

New targets for environmental Improvement are set each
year and progress ls documented in our award-winning
Environmental Performance Report.

Later this year, we shall publish a comprehensive set
of reports that describe BT's social, environments! and
technological interactions with society. Through these
reports, we aim to stimulate a wider debate into how
BT can contribute to an improved quality of life for all.

Further Information
More information about BT and its operations can be
found on our Internet site at https//www.bt.com






moved from fully allocated historical costs to long-run fixed network to Cellnet and Vodafone's networks. The

incremental costs. Annual determinations have been MMC Is expectad 1o report in sutumn 1998, The company

replaced with a system based on RPI minus price caps. believes that the impact of the Investigation Is not likely to

There has been an initial reduction in charges of 10% be significant to the group's financlal position In view of the

followed by annual reductions over a fouryear period cootinuing redu-tions In prices.

Eaiod 0 1 mlinn Ui S0 The group has seen some diversion of demand from its

The regulatory environment in the UK has had, snd will fixed network ss a result of the growth of other Beenced

continue to have, a significant adverse impact on the operators’ activities.

group’s turnover and operating profit. As the group extends Por ke operations s a whole, BT expects the competitve

its operations to other countries, BT has to consider the o persiot and It v/l o il B mmarkink

regulatory regimes in those countries. Generally, most St ot by and fairly.

countries have regulstory regimes that are currently less

liberal than those in the UK and North America. The strength of the UK economy is an important determinant
of BT's business volumes and the gross domestic product

Oampafifian fud Sap N commevy grew by 2.9% in the year ended 31 March 1993, compared

BT hes » significant macket sharw ln Mo mala UKmarkets © o, o o 1 208 n the ARREE yoin.

for 1elephone calls and provision of exchange lines.

Competition has eroded BT's market share significantlyin =~ Turnover

key market sectors, in particular areas of the UK and for Total turnover grew by 4.7% to £15,640 million in the 1998

certain products and services. Figures published by Oftel financial year after growing by 3.4% In the 1997 financial

showed that BT had 77% of the market for national calls year compared with the 1996 financial year. The strong

for the six months ended 30 September 1997, compared growth in demand for the group's products end services

with 79% and B1% in the 1997 and 1996 financial yoars, of approximately 10% in the 1908 financial year and

respectively, and supplied 89% of the exchange lines In the approximately 8% in the 1997 financlal year was partially

UK at 30 September 1997, compared with 905 and §3% st offset by the e.lect of price reductions which averaged

31 March 1997 and 1996, respectively. Additionally, BT had  approximately 5% across the business in each of the

E7% of the market for local calls for the six months ended two years.

50 Seplenbor I07, compared with 00K and BTN ln the 1007 b aasivaed e

for cutgoing lnternational calls from the UK for the six

1004 1997 1904
months ended 30 September 1997, compared with 61% and o= - =
70% in the 1997 and 1996 Sinancial years, respectively. irkend csls e G A

International calls 1,883 1,008 1,980
The growth in networks of cable operators In the UK is Exchange lne rentais 2,087 281 2,085
having an adverse effect on BT's share of the residential Private clroults 1,440 1,124 1,056
market. [n the last three Gnancial years, BT has Mobile communications 1,000 943 258
line connections a9 a result of incressing competition kn equipment supply 208 Ll B0
certain geographic areas from these cable operators. Yellow Pages and other
This reduction Is expected to continue as they bulld out ciractories D - "
their networks. Other sales and services 2,008 2.0 1633
Tolal tumover 835 14,448
—nliill.l;garls e
of the market ot 31 March 1998, compared with 38% at
31 March 1967 and 41%'st 31 March 1996. There has also  Price reductions had s major impact on turnover from

been & downward pressure on prices. Ofiel has referred ~ inland calls made over the fixed netwok for the fourth year




"""

In the 1998 financial year, inland call volume growth of 7%
was largely offset by the price reduction effect, resulting
in total call turnover increasing by 1% la the year to

£4.924 million. Fixed network to mobile calls and inbound

igitﬂfﬂgii
in total call turnover remaining static compared with the
previous year.

lllll

FINANCIAL REVIEW

reductions sveraging 20% and 13% in the two years,
respectively, and the impact of the streng*hening of
sterling, partially offset by strong volume growth of 9% and
T, respectively, BT Is reducing prices substantially on most
International routes. :

was the combined re-ult of the growth In business lines and

due to the competition from cable operators. Overall, BT's

in the 1998 financlal year after growing by 0.9% In G

Private circult turnover rose by 2.2% In the 1998 Enancial
year to £1,149 million aller increasing by 6.4% in the
1997 financial year. Demand for digital KiloStream




4% and 12.9% growth In Cellnet's customer-base In the _“ .ﬂ ..-_"
two years, respectively, offset by the effect of reductions - . =
in mobile call prices. Celinet had 3.1 million customer o-i!“ -..”.. ..MH ...H“_
connections st 31 March 1998, 75% of which were on its _
Depreciation 2,308 2265 2180
digital GSM network. .
The strong growth in BT's sales of ks sdvanced services, ~ Uecommunsation G . e
including FeatureNet, iis Syncordia Solutions operation, ﬂl: — i 7% e -
incorporating managed data networks, and Syntegra, the #ll!lm_nll.
group’s sysiems integration business, were the main .__I___._E-
elements in the increase of 20% in other sales and services  charges 12,849 11420 11,008
in the 1998 financial year to £2,606 million and the 23% Redundancy chargss 108 7 a21
growth in the 1997 financial year. Other significant Total oparating costs 2,388 11,798 11,448
increases in turnover came from BT's overseas operations
and interconnect charges. Stafl costs increased by 3.7% in the 1998 financial year to
3,917 million, after rising by the 1997 financial year.
BT's turnover from lts overseas operations grew strongly. Ty jncrease in the 1998 financial year was the result of the
Concert services to multinational customers provided much effiects of the annual pay swards and compensation for the
of the growth in the 1998 financial year. Newly-acquired special dividend, offset by savings resulting from reduced
systems integration businesses in Europe accounted for 400 costs. The compensation of £120 million for the
about halfl of the growth in the 1997 financial year with special dividend Is for those employees holding
Concert services providing much of the balance. unexercised rights, mainly under group-wide sharcsave
Turnover from UK operators for interconnect charges rose  2chemes, which lost value on the payment of the special
from £265 million in the 1996 financial year 10 £319 millicn  dividend in September 1997.
in the 19™" financlal year and to £496 million In the 1998
financial year These Increases reflect the growing market [P ————
share of B . UK competitors and the incressing level of
traffic flowing Into BT from their networks. There wasslso  §
a corresponding increase in the payments made by BT to B 5 =
these operators for traffic passing 1o thelr petwarks. LA m
Other operating Income
Under the terms of an agreement among BT, MCl and
WorldCom, BT received US $465 milllon on 12 November
1997 as the break-up fee and partial reimbursement of
expenses incurred on the BT/MCl merger agreement.
This receipt, net of relevant expenses incurred In the 1998
financial year, has been inchuded as an exceptional profit TR
£238 million in other operating Income In the group's profit
and loss account for this year.
The allocation for the employee share ownership scheme
Operating costs in the 1998 and 1997 financial years was £64 million,
Total operating costs increased by 4.7% in the 1998 representing 2% of pre-tax profit for those years. In the 1096
financial year to £12.355 million after increasing by 3.0% financial year spproximately 1% was allocated. In the 1967
in the 1997 financial year. As & percentage of tarnover, financial year, the increase in stafl costs was the result of




iil!ﬂi;gr
The depreciation charge lncressed by 7R inthe 19008 povwur of the propeesd MCL/WertdCom smerper, BT

rl!tﬁgitﬂ”lllllci!rﬂﬁ ceased treating MCl as aa sssociste from 1 November 1997,
level of inks . of The group's share of its sssociates’ results for the 1998
financial year incorporstes a loss of £27 million,
Payments to other telecommunication operators grew representing BT's share of MCT's results up to that date,
by 8.4% in the 1998 financial year to £1,600 million after which include a special charge of £63 million.
increasing by 6.7% in the 1997 financial yesr, primarily as a
result of the growing number of calls terminsting on UK~ =cieding MCL, the group's share of losses of associates
competitors’ networks. Payments to oversess operstory for  ‘0aled £225 milion in the 1998 financial year. The principal
incoming calls terminating in the UK fell significantly loss arose ln Viag lnterkom which ks bullding ks lniial
strengthening of steding more hen ofisttng coll were incurred by Telfort in the Netherlands and Cegetel in
volume growth. France, which has been an associate since September 1997,
Other operating costs, which rose by 10.5% in the 1098 The group's £139 million share of profits of associsted
financial year to £4,761 million and by 2.50% In the 1997 undertakings in the 1997 financial year consisted primarily
financial year, include the maintenance and support of the  of the company’s share of MCT's profits less BT's share of

of BT's overseas operaticas and the cost of sales of were commencing establishing their businesscs. BT's share

customer premises equipment. la the UK's Increasingly of MCI's pre-tax profit for the 1997 financial year amounted
competitive telecommunications market, BT is spending to £175 million, under BT's accounting policies, and was
significantly more on its marketing programmes, including  significantly higher than the corresponding figure of
extensive TV advertising, and this has been oae of the £101 million for the 1996 Snancial year which had been
three main factors behind the increase In costs. The others  adversely affected by & restructuring charge, BT's share
have been the costs Incurred in supporting the recent of which was £73 million.
rapid expansion of Cellnet and Concert.

BT expects that its associates in Europe as a whole
Redundancy costs of £106 million were lncurred in the will continue to incur losses for the next two to three
1998 financial year, compared with £367 million in the financial years.
1997 financial year and £42] million in the 1996 financial
year. The significant reduction in costs In the 1998 financla]  Inlerest charge and bond repurchase premium
year is a consequence of 8 surplus arising in BT's main Following payment of the special dividend in
pension scheme. In view of this surplus, described below, September 1997, described below, the group’s borrowings
redundancy charges for the 1998 financial year do not risen commensurately. Consequently, in the 1998 financial
include the costs of the incremental pension benefits year, the group's net interest charge of £249 million was
provided 1o early retirees. In the 1997 and 1996 financial £120 million higher than the Interest charge In the
years, redundancy costs included £258 million and previous year. Interest cover represents 14.7 times
£265 million relating Lo incremental pension benefits, operating profit and is expecied to continue at &
respectively. comifortable level
Operating profit The net interest charge of £129 million for the 1997
Operating profit for the 1998 financial year of £3,657 millice  financial year was £41 million lower than the Interest charge

was £412 million (12.7%) higher than in the previous year, in the 1996 financial year. The group's strong positive cash

than in the 1996 financial year, was covered 25.2 times by operating profit.
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1o repurchase two of the three thenremainlng series of

the 1997 financial year in accordance with UK sccounting

overall effective interest rate on BT's borrowings.

Profit and tazation
The group's profit before taxation for the 1998 financial
year was 3,219 milion, con pared with £3.203 million in

£510 million share of the UK Government's windfall tax on

first £255 million instalment wes pald on 2 December 1997

The ordinary tax charge of £578 million 23 a percentage of
profit before taxation was 30.4%, compared with 34.4% for
the 1997 financial year and 34.0% for the 1996 financial year.
The group's ordinary tax charge for the 1998 financlal year
is an effective 31.5% of pre-tax profit, excluding the MCI
merger break-up fee which ks effectively subject o a
lower tax charge under UK capital gains tax legislation.
This effective tax charge reflects the lower 31% rate of
corporation tax set for the year, compared with 3% set
for the previous two financial years. The higher effective
rale in the 1997 financial year was due 1o the premium

the bond repurchase only being partially deductible
for tax purposes.

year of £1,706 million, were 26.7 pence. Earnings before
the two exceptional items were 31.7 pence per share, In

As originally announced in November 1996, the company
lsiilli‘ili

TEE?E&!‘E

take Into account the effect of the special dividend.
This adjustment was first made for the Iaterim dividend
for the year ended 31 March 1998
The ordinary dividends paid and recommended for the
1998 financial year of 19.0 pence per share represent a 6.4%
increase on Le previous year, adjusied for the effect of the
special dividend, and are covered 1.8 times by earnings,
excluding the effect of the windfall tax. These dividends
comprise the interim dividend of 7.55 pence per share,
which was paid in February 1968, and the proposed final
dividend of 11.45 pence per share which, If spproved at the
annual general meeting, will be paid on 21 Seplember 1998
to shareholders on the register on 7 August 1998. The

years, ordinary dividends of 19.85 pence and 18.7 pence per

Net cash inflow rom

Net cash outfiow for

Acquisitions and

§
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cash and cash

Net cash inflow from operating activities of £6,076 million In
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working capital in the 1997 financial year. short-term investments. In the two previous financial
Tiex paid in the 1998 Sinancial year totalled £1,886 millce. !Eﬁ”ﬁ”ﬂ“? .
It was particularly high because <. £561 million advance ' ' v
corporation tax paid la October 1997 In respect of the The cash outflow caused mainly by the special dividend
special dividend and £255 million paid In December 1997 as . payrent and the investment in Cegetel resulted In net debt
the first windfall tax instalment. This advance corporation  rising to £3.977 million st 31 March 1998. Balance sheet
tax will reduce the group’s overall tax payment in the 1999  gearing stood st 36 per cent st that date,

financial year. The tax paid in the 1997 financial year, e e i -
Py T e A N s s b dosgpires loans 20 Tongterm dobt sosnld
£1,065 mlliog 4 B Jnarsnss o 2001 suilion on the totalled £338 millior. BT issued a USSLS billioa fiveyear
PUGSAOUS JURES HY 08 0000 M M 0000 o Mawationd o Al 1907 il UBEL.6 bkt
made In the 1996 financial year compared with the prior year. 7% Burobond in May 1997 In preparation for the group's
The UK Government is changing the pattern of corporation  cash requirements later in 1997,
Spymes Sun Ak BRIy g ot L v prrmmtst has bove radeced Iy
pay tax in quarterly instalments starting at the half year 10 il 00 €0 Gompess bcrte Vidend schesss
T L Ao i oaed eontod ficihie S oo 0 2000 Sl
A B WSS S S S GUPMIOR - o g il o dhires weos Mol 20 5 Comsmquency o8
tax payment made nine moaths after the financial year end S tar Soicriod I Gite S e s Saaidad

and advance corporation tax payments assoclated with
dividends. It s expected that the effect of these accelersied  1ygaqury policy
payment arrangements will be to increase the tax payments The group has a centralised treasury operation. Its primary
to be made by the group In the 2000 and 2001 financial role s to manage liquidity, funding, investment and the
years, notwithstanding the reduction in the standard rate group’s Gnancial risk. including risk from volatility In
of corporation tax to 30% announced by the Government currency and inte est rates and counterparty credit risk.
for those years. The treasury operation s not a profit centre and the
Net cash outflow of £3,108 million for capital expenditure ~ Oblective is to manage risk af optimum cost.

ad financial lnvestment in the 1996 financial year malaly 73 Board sets the department’s policy and lts activities
compeises expenditure on plant, equipment and ProPerty  4re gubject 1o 8 set of controls commensurate with the
and compares with £2.820 million in the 1997 financlal year  pagninude of the Investments and borrowings under ks
#nd £2.500 millicn In the 1906 finaaclal yesr management. Counterparty credit risk Is closely monltored
The net cash outflow on acquisitions totalled £1,501 milin 204 managed within controls set by the Board. Derivative
in the 1998 financial year, the principal part of which was Instruments including forward foreign exchange contracts
the investment in Cegetel. are entered Into for hedging purposes only.

Equity dividends paid in the 1998 financial year totalied Capital resources and forelgn currency exposure
E3473 million and Included the special dividend of The directors have a ressonable expectation that the
£2.244 million In September 1997, In the two previous group has adequate resources Lo continue la operational
financlal years dividends of £1,217 million and existence for the foresecable future and therefore they
£1,138 million were paid. continue to adopt the going concern basis n preparing
The resulting cash ouflow, before liquid resources and ¢ Lnnclal stalements.

financing. of £4.052 million in the 1993 finsncla) year was At 31 March 1998, the group had cash and short4erm




unused committed short-term bank facilities, amounting The group is not significantly exposed to changes in

bank facilities. than £10 million. Apart from the potential proceeds from

The gearing or ratio of net debt (borrowings net of cash Hﬁnﬁiﬂc.rﬁshﬂﬁ”

S ShorbAaryt MY S SOy 00 o tuling 1o JACT lovestant & 105 cluinge b stesling

ainacity loteseriy ses SN 81 Bf Mesch 1900, conparnd agalnst major curreacies would cause the group's net assets

with 1.6% at 31 March 1997, The group had £3,977 millicn st 31 March 1998 to change by less than £150 millioa, with

net debt st 31 March 1998, an Increase of £3,801 million in lnsignificant effc:t oa the groog's prafit. Bacsses the

oo oer. 0 dot e et Aty dntag the foreign exchange contracts are entered into as a hedge of

course of the 1998 Snancial year primarily ss & result of the ankes ml puirhnsns, & chanige fa the B vohas 58 e hades

special dividend payment and the investment in Cegetel 1o o0t s everiipalig abikaid e the valib il

The majority of the group's long-term borrowings has underlying sale or purchase.

been, and is, subject to fixed interest rates. The group 1f market & & -l

has entered into Interest rate swap agreements with " l_ Iq.ﬂ!lnr_ .

commercial banks and other institutions to vary the & u 10 108 of the Sl it i

amounts and period for which Interest rates are fixed. ! ke - : I_E.-_EE_

g!:”‘”qaﬂgigrll meeting of shareholders to be held a July, Decislons oa
the amount of cash, If any, 1o be used In buying back shares

totalling 51,0 nien, and the precise timing will depend In part on market

Most of the group's current turnover Is lavolced In pounds  conditions and other opportunities that exist for the

sterfing, and most of its operations and costs arise within deployment of the group's cash resources.

the UK. The group’s foreign curreacy borrowings, which

totalled £2,316 million st 31 March 1998, are used tofiaance. 7 ©penditure

UK oprrations and to finance the groups' overseas

investments, including MCL, In order to reduce the o

currency exposure on the underlying assets. Cross

currency swaps and forward forelgn exchange coatracts m

have been entered into to reduce the foreign currency s #

exposure on the group's operations and the group's net 2 )

assets. The group also enters Into lorward forelgn

exchange contracts to hedge investment, interest expense,

purchase and sale commitments. The commitments hedged

are principally US dollars. As a result of these policies, the

group’s exposure Lo foreign currency arises mainly on the

residual currency exposure on oversess Investments and

on any imbalances between the value of outgoing, transit

and incoming international calls withoversess O & & W s

telecommunication operators. To date, these imbalances

have not been material. As a result, the group's profit

has not been materially affecied by movements in Capital expenditure on plant, equipment and property




with £2,719 million in the 1997 financlal year and % et en caplial
£2,771 million in the 1996 financial year, There has been
increased emphasis on enhancing the intelligence of u
the network o ensble customers to benefit from advanced 2 ¥
services and improving the network's capaclty for carying & 3
high-speed data. Additionally, Celinet has continued
expanding its digital cellular GSM network.
The group expects capital expenditure ia the 1999 financlal
year to be at o level similar to that of the 1998 inanclal year.
BT expects that future capital expenditure will be provided
from net cash inflows from operating activities
pplemented, If appropriate, by external financing.
Acquisitions and jointventurss @~ = M B ® ¥ =
The group has lnvested over £1,650 million ln the
1998 financial year on scquiring interests in associated Penslons
companies and other lnvestments and providing their further An actuarial valuation of BT main pension fund as at
funding. The most significant investment was the completion 31 December 1996 was completed during the 1998 financial
in September 1997 of the group's acquisition of » 26% year. This valuation revealed the fund to be In surplus to an
interest in Cegetel for a total of £1,029 million. Cegetel, amount of approximately £68 million, with assets of the
the second Freach telecommunications operatar, has an fund at £19,879 million at that date covering just over 100%
0% interest in SFR, a leading mobile provider in France. of the fund's liabilities, In contrast to an ssset coverage of
Over £400 million hus been invested in other Europesn 97% at 31 December 1993, The improvement In the funding
telecommunications companles In the year, primarily i posttion principally srose from the strong return on the
Germany, Spain and the Netherlands. The goodwill arising fund’s assets in the three intervening years more than
on all of these scquisitions amounted to £869 million out of  outweighing the Impact of redundancies on the fund.
a total of £937 million, which has been written off to reserves. The actuarial valustion took into sccount the effect of the
In the : som s i aidac Government's measures In July 1997 to end pension funds’
ability to reclaim the tax credit sssoclated with UK
Rijnhaave group, a Netherlands-based systems integration
companies’ dividends. Without this measure the surplus
business in April 1996 and, in March 1997, completed the in the fund would have been significantly higher.
formation of Telfort,  joint venture with NS, the Dutch
railways company, to offer telecommunication services in From 1 April 1997, the annual pension charge was based
that country. ln February 1997, BT agreed to acquire the on the December 1996 valuation and was £114 million lower
S0% interest In its Spanish joint venture it did not alresdy than the charge of £29] milkion in the 1997 financlal year.
own, thereby obtalning full control; this transaction was This revised charge took Into sccount the amount of the
completed in July 1897, The goodwill arising oo these pension provision which had been established over recent
acquisitions amounted to £166 million; the remalning years [n the group's socounts and which stood at
goodwill taken 15 reserves in the 1997 financial year of £1.224 millicn at 31 March 1998, Additionally, under UK
£33 million maialy related to BT's share of goodwill sccounting standards, the cost of providing incremental
arising on MCT's acquisitions, principally on M joint pension benefits for early leavers has no longer been
venture In Mexico. charged against the profit in the peried In which people
Return on capital empl g lesve, since the lstest actuarial valuation of the pension
The group made & return of 19.3% on the average capital 3 ndicates 8 surplus.
employed, on a historical cost basis, in s business In the The sctusrial valustion confirmed that the group's

year ended 31 March 1908, compared with returss of 18.9% contribution Into the fund should coatinue at 9.5% of




45% higher than the number of active members. telecommunications services provided by BT In the UK
Consequently, BT's future pension costs and contributions  will not be significantly affected and that customers will
will depend to a large extent on the lavestment returns of ceatinue to receive the current levels of service and care.
the pension fund and could fluctuste In the medium term. One of "T's current priorities Is to bulld the same level of
coafidence In international services which are
MClU/WorldCom merger . g e icath [-E._
On 1 October 1997, WorldCom sanounced its intention Bough BT docs net yot hove uflicient Inrination to
to offer shares in its company to MCl shareholders as an
wihe BT/MCI guarantee current levels of service 1o all International
B_uidl._tqﬂ._-_-l_ !s..!w_lr;-g.- destinstionn, it has been instrumental in & number of
BT agreed that it would support the proposed merger of Ld&ldhwﬁt”!&u;_ i
MCI with WorldCom to which the MC1 board had agreed Sodies ol ulh th _ g .
on the same day. Consequently, the proposed merger
between BT and MC, originally announced in November BT s also working actively with its customers, suppliers
1996, was terminated. and UK organisations to secure appropriate contingency
Under the WorldCom agreement, BT will sell ks holding of P Poth laternally and at & national level
136 million Class A common shares in MCI to WorldCom Impact of Inflation
for US§51 per share in cash ot the time the MCI/WorldCom  In accordance with a requirement of BT's main licence,
merger Is completed. WorldCom expects the merger, which  the group's annual accounts for the 1997 financial year
is subject to regulatory clearance, 1o be completed later prepared on a current cost basis were published In
in 1998. At that time, BT will account for the proceeds of September 1997. These accounts showed that the group's
approximately US$7 billion and the consequent profit on current cost profit before tax was £2.419 million, compared
the sale of its investment, which will depend on the with £3.203 million under the historical cost convention.
sterling:US dollar exchange rate. The group's current cost total assets at 31 March 1997
Also under the WorkdC BT bas agreed were £29,225 million, compared with £25,062 million
Ei!ﬂ.-!.li. PRI under its historical cost accounts. The current cost
¢ ications Services Joiat venture &t a price to accounts for the 1998 financial year are to be published
N tatad by 30 September 1998,
Year 2000 Environment
The BT Year 2000 Programme desls with all the issues Sieon sumoning oM sislogpes cndhngs oiplpunint o
arising from the inability of many computer systems and buildings, BT recycles the metal content and takes special
electronic devices o deal with the year 2000 date change care lo ensure that any hazardous materials are properly
and other critical eventeelated dates. BT takes the Year 7o Athough BT receives proceeds from the sale of
2000 Issue very seriously and has established s gﬂitr!'i_ﬂ?il
comprehensive ide busi which dealing with hazardous materlals, contracting and planning
Rored ioguiied lir.l.u._._l._ e ad e their removal and preparing the released site for further
total cost to be ia the reglon of £300 millia . development. BT believes that the total cost of dealing with
primarfly the sding of exiets . sad Inclodl these hazardous materials will not be significant.

internal costs. Current forecasts indicate that the




(FRS10). Under this standard, all goodwill arising on figures have been restated. However, there are no

and amortised over Its useful economic life. under the previous method. Cash flow Information under
‘The pet impact on the group's sccounts of this change will el aion is sles shoum In note 30,

made and the level of goodwill lnvolved. .
Bepmanted Information

BT essentially operates as 8 unitary business, providing
an integrated range of telecommunicstions products and
services. Accordingly, BT does not publish separately the
operating profit for the various sources of turnover
described above. In the 1998 financial year, approximately
96% of the group's turnover was generated by operations in
the UK, compared with 97% In the 1997 financial year snd
S8% in the 1996 financial year.

BT s required under its main Beence to publish
disaggregated financial information for various activities of
the group, which have been used ua the basis of charges
pald by other telecommunication operators in the UK for
the use of BT's network. The activities presented separately
in the regulstory financial statements do not necessarily
correspond with any butinesses separately managed,
funded or operated within the group. The results set out
in these s'atements for the 1997, 1996 and 1995 financial
years showed that the group's operating profit s derived
predominantly from local, national and International calls,
after taking account of an operating deficit arising on the
provision of exchange fines.

For its 1999 financlal year, BT will be providing
disaggregated financial information In sccordance with

the requirements of the US SFAS No 131 which requires
such information to be analysed in a similar manner to that
used by management in managing the business.

US QAAP

The group's net Income and ewrnings per share for

the three financlal years ended 31 March 1998 and
sharchalders’ equity at 31 March 1908 snd 1997 under
US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP)
are shown in note 30 to the financial statements.
Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP include




Board of directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS Bill Cockburn CBE, TD Growp Managing Director,
Sir lzin Vallance Chairman {d) 1 BT UK (@) 4 _
Sir lain was appointed & director in 1984. J.e served as Blll Cockburn Joined the company on 1 October 1997 as
Chief Executive from 1986 (o the end of 1995 and has Group Managing Director of BT's UK business and was
been Chairman since 1987, Sir lsin will become partdime  *PPoinied 1o the Board with effect from 1 April 1908, After
Chalrman from 31 July 1998. He Is also & non-executive 8 carcer in the Post Office, he became chief executive In
vicechairman of Royal Bank of Scotland, s non-executive 1692, In November 1995, Bill Cockburn joined WH Seith
director of Mobil Corporation and Scettish Enterprise, as a director, becoming chief executive in 1996. He ls a

of non-executive director of Centrica and Lex Service, &

| !

trustee of the Princess Royal Trust for Carers. Aged 55.

8ir Colin Marshall Deputy Chairman () (2} ) * 5



Dr lain Anderson @) (c) () (@) *
Dr Anderson was appolated to the Board in 1995, He lathe  CocvCola Amatll Australia. Aged 54.

has worked since 1965. Dr Anderson joined the Unilever Keith Dates was appointed to the Board in 1994. He Is deputy
board in 1988. He has post-doctorate qualifications In chairman and managing director of Marks and Spencer and a
microbiology from both Glasgow and Massachusetts non-executive director of Diageo. Keith Oatey’ International

Universities. Aged 50. experience includes working for IBM and Black & Decker.

Company Secretary from 1984 to 1984, Malcolm Argent English Sports Councll and a former governor of the BBC.

was appointed (o the Board ln 1989, retiring to 2 noo- Aged 55,

executive role in 1994. He is deputy chalrman of the Civil

Avistion Authority, chairman of Natlonal Alr Trafic ™~ COMPANY SECRETARY

Services and & non-executive director of Clerica’ Medical Colin R Green

Investment Group and Westminster Health Care Holdings. Colin Green, a solicitor, was appoinied Secretary and

Aged 62, Chief Legal Adviser In 1994. Aged

Sir Ewen Fergusson GCMG, GCVO (o) @ * 10 ¥

Sir Ewen was appointed & director in 1060, haviag retired /<27 #0 mombarship of principal Board committees:
as HM Ambassador to France after a 36year career in the W Cronp Evacutior Commition

Diplomatic Service. He is non-executive chairman of ) Audit Commitios

Coutts & Co and The Savoy Hotel. Aged 65. Remuneration Commiltes

: () Nomixating Committee

Neville lsdell irsland * 8 (@) Pensions Commi

Neville Isdell will join the Board on 1 July 1998. Formerty M Community Affairs “ommittes
president of The Coca-Cola Groug's greater Europe group,
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Report of the directors

The directors submit their report and the sudited financial
statements of the company, British Telecommunications ple,
and the group, which includes Its subsidiary undertakings,
for the yeor ended 31 March 1998,

Introduction

The business review on pages 6 to 14, the financial rodew
on pages 15 to 25, the discussion on corporate governance
on pages 30 to 32 and the report on directors’ remuneration
on pages 33 1o 40 form part of this report The audited
financial statements are presented on pages 45 to 79.

Principal activity

The group’s principal activity is the supply of
telecommunication services and equipment. [n the year,
96% of group turnover arose from operations in the
United Kingdom.

Directors

The names and blographical detalls of the directors of
the company are given on pages 26 and 27, All served
throughout the financial year, with the exception of
Bill Cockburn who was appointed o the Board as from
1 April 1998 and rielen Alexander and Neville Isdell who
will joln the Board on 1 June 1998 and 1 July 1998,
respectively.

In addition, Yve M Newbold, Dr Alan W Rudge CBE,
Gerald H Taylor, Bert C Roberts Jor and Birgit Breuel
scrved on the Board until their retirement as directors
on 30 June 1997, 31 Octuber 1997, 9 November 1997,
17 March 1998, and 31 March 1998, respectively.

In accordance with the articles of assoclation,

Bill Cockburn, Helen Alexander and Neville Isdell, having
been appointed Lo the Board since the last annual general
meeting, retire st the forthcoming annual general meeting
and will be proposed for election. Sir Colin Marshall and
Malcolm Argent retire by rotation and will be proposed for
reclection. Details of these directors’ service coatracts or
contracts of appolntment are included In the report on
directors’ remuneration on page 36 and the discussion

on corporale governance on page 30, respectively.

On 22 May 1998, BT soncunced that Sir Joha Weston, who
retires as Brilain's Ambassador to the United Nations at the
‘end of June, is to join the Board a3 8 non-cxecutive director
on 1 October 1998,

Substantia! shareholdings

At 26 May 1998, the company had recelved a notllication from
the Prudential Corporation group of companies under Part VI
of the Companies Act 1985 in respect of a holding

of 247 million shares representing 3.9% of the company’s
issued ordinary share capital

Policy on the payment of suppliers
BT's policy Is 1o use its purchasing power fairly and to pay
promptly and as agreed.

BT has a variety of payment terms with its suppliers. The
ternu for payments for purchases under major contracls
are settled when agreeing the other terms negotisted
with the individual suppliers. It s BT"s policy to make
payments for other purcliases within thirty working days
of the invoice date, provided that the relevant invoice

Is presented to the company In a timely fashion and is
complete. BT's payment lerms are printed on the
company’s standard purchase order forms or, where
appropriate, specified in individual contracts agreed
with suppliers. The ratio, expressed in days, between the
amounts invoiced to the company by its suppliers in the
year ended 31 March 1998 and the amounts owed to its
trade creditors at the end of the year was 29 days.

Auditors

A resolution to reappoint Coopers & Lybrand as the
company’s suditors and authorise the directors (o settle
their remuneration will be proposed at the annual
general meeting.

Annual general meeting resoclutions

The resclutions to be proposed st the annual general
meeting (o be held on 15 July 1998, together with
explanatory notes, appear in the separate Notice of 1998
Annwal General Meeting sent to all shareholders.

By order of the Board

C R Green

Secretary ond Chief Legel Adviser

26 MAY 1988

Registered office: 81 Newgate Street, London ECIA 7A)
Registered In England: No 1800000




Auditor@eport on corporate
governance matters

™0 T v

In addition to our sudit of the financial stalements, we
have reviewed the directors’ statements on pages 21, 30
and 31 concerning the company’s compliance with the
paragraphs of the Cadbury Code of Best Practice specified
for our review by the London Stock Exchange's Listing
Rules and their adoption of the golng concern basis in
preparing the financis] statements. The objective of our
review is lo draw aftention to non-compliance with
paragraphs 12.43() and 12.43(v) of the Listing Rules.

Basis of opinion
We carried out our review In accordance with guidance

issued by the Auditing Practices Board. That guidance
does not require us Lo perform the sdditional work
necessary (o, and we do not, express any opinion on the
effectiveness of elther the group's system of internal
financial control or its corporate governance procedures
nar on the ability of the group and company to continue ia
operational existence.

Opinlon

With respect to the directors’ statements on internal
financial control on page 31 and going concern on

page 21, in cur opinion the directors have provided the
disclosares required by the Listing Rules referred to
above and such stalements are not inconsistent with the
information of which we are aware from our sudit work
on the financial statements.

Based on enquiry of certain directors and afficers of the

company, and exam!nation of relevant documents, in our

opinion the directors’ statement on page 30 appropriately
reflects the cor.;2ay’s compliance with the other aspects
of the Code specified for our review by paragraph 12.43Q
of the Listing Rules.

Coopers & Lybrand
Chartered Accountants
London

20 MAY 1908




The directors consider that throughout the year BT has All directors are required by the company’s articles of

the best practice provisioas of the Stock Exchange Listing year. In effect, this means directors are re-clected every
Rules introduced following the publication of Directers” three years.

in respect of non-executive directors’ remuneration. This are reviewed by the Remuneration Committes. Information
directors’ remuneration.
The Board
focus s the overall direction and coatrol of the group. for directors, in furtherance of their duties, to take
Key matters, such as the group’s strategic plans, annual independent professional sdvice If necessary, at the
operating plan and budget and the company’s operating company’s expense. In addition, all directors have access
and financial performance, are reserved for the Board 0 the advice and services of the Company Secretary, the
: He advises the Board on appropriate procedures for
BT alms to have the Board comprise approximately two- the management of its meetings and duties and the
thirds non-executive directors. Four of the current non- implementation of corporate governance and compliance
executive directors are independent of the management in the group.
of BT either being free from any business or other
relationship which could materially interfere with the On appolntment, directors receive appropriste information
exercise of their judgement or not previously involved about BT, such as a description of the Board's role and the
in the management of BT. The three new non-executive powers which have been delegated to the company's senior
directors joining the Board are all independent. Between managers and management commitiees and latest financial
them the non-executive directors bring experience st s Information about the grou; This is supplemented by
senior level of international business operations, marketing, ~ meetings with members of the Group Evecwtive Commitise
doing business in the key markets in which the groupnow 254 other key senior executives, such as the head of the
operates and international affairs, department which manages and advises on BT's regulatory
obligations. Throughout thelr in office this
clement on the Board, with Sir Colin Marshall, Deputy structure or the regulatory environment in which it
Chairman, as the senlor Independent member. HoWeYer, ooerases changes. This can Inchede further meetings
the Board operates as & single team. with senior BT executives. Directors are also advised on
for three years. Towards the end of that period the Board ~ director of a listed company, both In writig and, If they
will consider whether to continue the appointment, which wish. through face-to-face meetings with the Company
will then become terminable on twelve months’ notice Secretary. They are remiaded of these obligations
trom either BT or the director. Appointments will be oach your
reviewed again by the Board before the end of the sixth
year. Normally, appoiatments wil be for s mecimu of !_””-Elti_-iil;
working days before each Board meeting.
ten yours. The Deputy Chelman's conteoct was moaomsd gy ooy comply with gubdelinss shout content
for & second threeyear term from 1 Apeil 1998, R maybe . ———
terminated on twelve months’ notice. Malcolm Argent's

1998. Helen Alexander’s, Neville lsdell's and The Group Ececutive Committes bs chaired by the Chief




Global, the heads of BT UK's customerfacing divisions and  The directors are responsible for the group's systems of

the network and systems division, the Secretary and Chief internal financial control. Such systems can provide oaly

Legal Adviser, the Group Personnel Direclor, the executive  reasonable and not absolute sssurance against material

responsible for devel~ning the group's strategy and plans financial misstatement or los=. Key clements are:

”?qpll?!waﬂulaﬁlj -l e o place,

Board approval, and oversees s implementation. | also 5% SNPURe oh sy s uhen g

finaises, before Board approval, snousl plans aod budgets, 0 oriewnaon of utharitics, which allow the

reviews operational activiies and agrees and moaitors lﬂnn?ll.“.qenlllri.lu?gr&
[F124

u.niun!_. policies, where these are not reserved to o Seperenced ond uiidly qeuliied sl ke
respoasibility for important business functions.

The Neminating Committes of the Chairman, Deputy Annual appraissl procedures have been established

Chairrnan and four other non-executive directors ensures to maintain standards of performance.

the Board has an appropriate balance of expertise and » Forecasts and budgets are prepared which allow

ability among the nonexecutive directors. For this management to monltor the key business and financial

purpose it has agreed, and regularly reviews, a profile activities and risks and the progress towards financial

of the required skills end attributes. This profile is used objectives set for the year and the medium term;

1o assess the suitability as nen-executive directors monthly management sccounts are prepared promptly

of candidates put forward by the directors and outside providing relevant, reliable and up-to-date financial

consultants. Candidates shortdisted for appointment and other information; significant variances from

are met by the Committee before i recommends an budget are investigated as sppropriate.

appointment 1o the Board. » All Investment projects are subject to formal
authorisation procedures. The Board conslders major

The Committee also asscsses candidates for executive Investment projects, with other projects being approved

directarhps befers R recommends i appeintmant. by the Growp Investment Committor (3 sub<ommittee

The Audit Commi jating solely of of t! ¢ Growp Executive Commilies) or senior

directors, Is chaired by Sir Colia Marshall. Its terms of Eﬂiﬂiluq}h&ii Whoriin sppnind

reference include reviewing BT s internal coatrols and

published Snanclal reports for statutory compliance and Tho Audls Coummitior roviows reperts fram

against standards of best practice, and recommending matagamend, froim the Internat snditors end frem

sppropriste disclosure to the Board. It also revk " the external suditors, to provide reasonable

the services and performance of the company’s suditors, HEEEFE

”Jrl.-giirsgthg o Pl . S S

recommends 1o the Board their fees. The Group Finance En”ﬂrhu.assgﬁl.aa!

Director and the Secretary and Chief Legal Adviser attend Wsaitied P

these meetings. Each year, the Commitice sets aside time  The Andil Committes has reviewed the effectiveness of

to seek the views of the company’s auditors in the absence  the systems of lnternal financlal control in existence in the

of executives. group for the year ended 31 March 1998 and for the period

The R tom G solely of up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

independent non-executive directors and is chaired by Relations with shareholders

Sir Colin Marshall. Further details sbout the Commitiee Senlor executives, led by the Chief Executive and Group




plana. Contact wih ot A report to the company by the auditors, Coopers &

The company’s policy s to give shareholders the

always be achievable, in normal circumstances this means
the chairman of the Axdit and Resuneration Commitiees is
at the AGM and Is svailable to answer questions referred 1o

BT s practice Is to post the Annual Report and Notice of

costeffective manner. We alm to give as much notice as
possible and at least 21 days, as required by our articles
of association.

Statement of BT Business Practice

BT's policy Is to achieve best practice in our standards

of business Integrity for all of our sctivities around the
world. To reinforee our determination to live up to these
standards BT has adopted a Statement of Businens Proctice
which sets out the principles the group will cbserve.

A copy s available to every employee. We also require our
agents and contractors to apply these principles when
representing BT,

Penslon fund

BT's main penslon fund ~ the BT Penslon Scheme - is
not controlled by the Board, but by trustees, who are
company and union nominees, with an [ndependent
chairman. The trustees Jook after the assets of the
pension fund, which are held separately from those of the
company. The pension scheme funds can only be used in




Report on directors’ remuneration

As recommended by the Greenbury and Hampel reports,
the Remuneration Commities s made up wholly of
independent non-executive directors. It also complies
with Section A of the best practice provisions of the
Stock Exchange Listing Rules as they relste to

executive directors.

The Committee’s role Is to agree the service contracts,
salarics, other benefits, including bonuses and participation
in the company’s share plans, and other terms and
conditions of employment of the executive directors and
members of the company’s Group Exscutine Commitiee.

It has been chaired since 1 January 1996 by Sir Colin
Marshall and its other members during the year were:

Dr lsin Anderson .
Sir Ewen Fergusson
Keith Oates

The Commitice met seven times during the year ended
31 March 1598. The Chairman and Chief Executive will
normally attend meetings to discuss senior executive
remuneration recommendations, except their own.

The Committee confirms that full consideration has been
given to Section B of the Stock Exchange best practice
provisions in framing its remuneration policy. Although the
full Board considers itself ultimately responsible for both
the frameworlk and the cost of executive remuneration, the
Board has delegated prime respoasibility for these Issues,
together with control of executive remuneration packages,
to the Remuneration Commitiee.

Remuneration policy
BT's executive remuneration policy Is in line with the
company's overall practice on pay and benefits, that Is to
reward employees competitively taking into sccount
performance, market value and competitive pressures In
the communications and IT sectors. The Commitiee does
not seek to maintaln any strict market position but rather
1o ensure that pay s set appropriately taking into sccount
pay levels for comparable roles in a range of appropriate
‘blue chip’ companies both within and outside the
telecommunications/hitech sectors. When making
comparisons, the Committee benchmarks not oaly with
companies in the telecommunications and IT sectors but
also the largest companies by market capitalisation, such s
the FT-SE 100 and, in particular, those organisations where
the complexity of roles and of the business and the extent
of international scope are similar. The Committee also

takes account of executive pay trends in the external
market and Increases in pay for other groups of employees
In the company. As BT continues to compete in a global
market for executives at this level, the Committee also
looks at the global, and particularly, US markets.

Packnages
The remuneration package for executive directors

comprises:

« Basic salary
Salaries are reviewed (although not necessarily
increased) annually. Salaries are Increased only where
the Committee believes that market adjustments are
appropriate to reflect performance, increased
respoasibilities and/or market pressures. Salary
adjustments were made during the year for a number of
key executives, including Sir Peter Bonfield and Robert
Brace. From 1 April 1998, fificen months after their last
Irmﬂrhlu!qlﬁd‘l-hﬂmwm
£570,000 to £617 500 and Robert Brace’s salary
Increased from £300,000 to £330,000. Bill Cockburn was
appolnted to the Board on 1 April 1998. His salary |s
£450,000. However, for the 12 months from 1 March
1998 It has, at his request, been reduced by £120,000
to £330,000. The company will during that period
make contributions of £120,000 to an unapproved
retirement benefits scheme transferred from
Bill Cockburn's previous employer. His bonus and
other relevant benefits will continue to be determined
on his base salary. Bill Cockburn received a payment
of £120,150 in consideration of the loss of potential
benefits from his previous employer.

+ Annual bonus
‘The annusl bonus plan Is designed to focus on annual

Targets are set at the start of the financial year based
on key corporale objectives - such as revenue growth,
profitability, quality of service, customer satisfaction and
people management. Specific weights are sttached to
each objective on the basis of the BT Corporate
Scorecard. For Sir Peter Bonfield, bonus swards are
based wholly, and for Sir lain Vallance, primarily, on the
wchievement of group-wide objectives and results.

Bill Cockburn's bonus to 31 March 1008 wis also
calculated on the achievement of group-wide objectives
and results. From 1 April 1098, his bonus, In common
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with Robert Brace and the other members of the Growp
Erecutive Committee, will be based on the achievement
of a mix of group, divisional and personal objectives.
The Committee retains the fexibility to enhance bonus
awards where exceptional circmstances make this
appropriate.

For Sir lain Vallance and Sir Peter Boaficld, for 1997/98,
the ‘on target’ bonus was 50% of salary subject to a
maximum of 100% of salary. As explained in the
Chairman's statement, Sir lain takes up a part-time role
later in the year. From that time he will not participate
in any annual bonus plan.

Robert Brace's ‘on target’ bonus for the year was 32.5%,
subject exceptionally to a maximum of 100% of salary
for this year only. Bill Cockburn's bonus arrangements
provide for an ‘on target’ bonus of 50% of salary subject
to a maximum of 75%

Bonus awards for executive directors for the year under
review ranged from 41% to 65% of salary.

Long-term remuneration

BT Long Term Remuneration Plan/

BT Performance Share Plan

The BT Long Term Remuneration Plan (LTRF) was
approved by shareholders at the 1995 AGM. It was
designed to ensure that BT's remuneration package
remains competitive, to encourage personal investment
in BT shares, to foster community of interest with
shareholders, 10 encourage key executives Lo stay
with BT and to link reward and longterm corporate
performance more effectively. Under the plan, shares
are awarded 1o participants conditionally on the
company meeting a pre-<determined corporate
performance measure and, normally, the participants
still being employed by the BT Group at the end of

a five-year period. The performance measure is

BT's total shareholder return (TSR) relative to the
FT-SE 100. The initial value of the awards granted
under the LTRP in 1997 as a percentage of salary
ranged from 25% to 100%. Sir lain Vallance has not

participated in the LTRP.

As Bill Cockburn joined the company too late in the
year to participate In the 1997 operation of the LTRP,
he has been granted an award of shares under the
BT Performance Share Plan (PSP to the value

of £150,000 at the date of the award.

Under the PSP, approved by shareholders at the 1995
AGM, shares are conditionally swarded to participants
on the basis that they will only be entitled to these
shares in full at the end of 8 three-year period (which
may be extended up to five years) if the company has
met a pre-determined corporate performance measure
and the participants are still employed by the BT
Group. The performance measure Is the same as for
the LTRP. The first potential vesting of awards under
the PSP will be in 1998/99.

The future

The Remuneration Committee keeps under review
remunerstion arrangements to ensure that they provide
an Incentive to executives and align performance and
reward with the interests of shareholders.

The Commitiee’s policy is over time to increase
the proportion of executives’ overall remuneration
packages which s performance-linked variable pay.

In furtherance of this policy, and to ensure BT's
packages remain competitive, a Deferred Bonus
Plan has been introduced. The deferred bonus will
equal one-half of the gross annual bonus. It will be
compulsorily deferred and applied to acquire BT
shares, which will be held in trust for three years.
Executives must continue to be employed for the
whole of the holding period for the shares to be

then transferred. Therefore, In addition to bonuses
continuing to be based fully on performance, the value
of the deferred bonus will now be aligned with the
future fortunes of shareholders. Existing shares will
be used for the deferred bonuses and the first deferred
award will occur this year,

To Increase the linkage with longerterm performance,
the LTRP has been modified, and will now be called the
Executive Share Plan. In previous years, part of the
sward was performance-linked oaly on grant and not
also on vesting. This year and in the future all the
awards will be subject to performance criteria over

a five-year period, which will continue to be TSR. The
level of the swards granted will continue to be based on
the individual performanne of the executives during the
preceding year thereby ensuring that both the grant
and vesting of awards will be performance-linked.
Awards will be between 20% and 100% of salary and




will not exceed the level posaible under the previous
LTRP arrangement. From and including this year, the
optional personal investment and the associated
matching grant under the pusn will no longer be
made available.

To improve the alignment of performance with BT's
business cycle, the performance period will now run
from 1 April to 31 March in line with the company’s
financial year, and not from 1 August &s in previous years.
However, swards will continue to vest on 1 August.

BT Share Option Schame
The BT Share Option Scheme for senlor executives was
not renewed afier its expiry in January 1995, The last
options were granted in December 1994,

Details of options exercised during the year ended
31 March 1998 and unexercised options are shown
on page 39,

¢ Pensions

For executive directors and other senior executives the
policy is to provide pension benefits of one thirtieth of
final salary for each year of service with a two-thinds
surviving spouse's penalon. The executive directors and
certain other senlor executives have undertakings of
pension benefits of two-thirds of final salary at normal
retirement age with a two-thirds surviving spouse’s
pension. On death in service a lump sum equal to four
times annual salary is payable together with a surviving
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spouse’s pension of two-thirds of the director’s prospective
pension. Pensions are based oo salary alone - bonuses,
other benefits and long-erm Incentives are excluded.

The primary means of providing pensions for the executive
directors and their dependants bs through the BT Pension
Scheme (BTPS). All the executive directors, except Sir
Peter Bonfield, are members of the BTPS. For members of
the BTPS the company contributed, on average, 9.5% of
salary to the scheme and the individual contributed 6% of
salary In the year ended 31 March 1998,

Where an L.dividual will not achieve the target level of
pension benefit at normal retirement age because of the
earnings cap, the company may make up the shortfall by
purchasing additional service in the BTPS and/or through
non-approved, unfunded arrangements.

On his retirement as fullime chairman on 31 July 1998
Sir lain Vallance will be entitled to receive retirement
benefits equivalent to two-thirds of his final salary. His
surviving spouse’s pension is two-thirds of his pension.

Sir Peter Bonfield's pension armangements are
unapproved and unfunded and provide for a pension of
two-thirds of his final salary at age 60, inclusive of any
retained benefits from his previous employment, and a
survivi~g spouse’s pension of two-thirds of his pension.
He is entitled to a pension of 52% of salary at age 55.
If retirement occurs between age 55 and 60, the
percentage of salary to calculate the pension will

noresse in sccnued Total sccrumd pansion

PN urng PeE OF o your ond or 0 Trangder vate of

‘1o date of retiremont date Of retiremant, creass I sccrued

n year ) ¥ sarter by e o

1998 1.7 1088 1.7 1908 1.7

£000 000 L] o000 000 o000

Sir lain Vallance ] ] 332 a2 160 ]
Sir Pater Bonfield ’ 18 18 i 2 are 184
R P Brace jo) 14 17 1] n 173 129
AW Rudge 10 24 193 179 | 207

fa) Tha increass in accrusd pendion during the year excludes any increase for inflation.
) The pension entitiement is that which would be paid annually on retirement at normal retirement age based on service to the

end of the year or date of retirement if garlier.

fc) The transier value has been calculated on the basis of actusrial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Nots GN11 and
exciudes directors” contributions. The transfer value represents a Rabllity of the company rather than any remuneration dus 1o the
Indevidual and cannot be meaningfully aggregaled with snnual remunaration & il s Not money the Individual ks entitied 10 receive

fd) Comparative figures have been restated on a comparsbie basis.




increase on a uniform baals from 52% at age 5510 Outside appointments
two-thirds at age 60. Bl Cockburn is a member The Committee believes there are significant benefits
of the BTPS and has an unfunded and unapproved to both the company and the individual from executive
arrangement to meet the shortéall resulting from directors accepting non-executive directorships of
the pensions cap. In addition he has a funded companies outside the BT Groug. The Committee will
unapproved retirement benefits scheme transferred cousider approving up to two external appointments for
from his previous employer to which the company is which the director may retain the foes.
making contributions of £120,000 over the 12 N tive &
months from 1 March 1998, Mr Cockburn's salary sration
Nos b L ot his by £120,000 The Board has delegated the determination of
duitng S perked. s remuneration for non-executive directors to the Chalrman
and Chief Executive. They seck external advice on
The table on page 35 shows the increase in the appropriate levels of remuneration. Section A of the best
accrued benefits to which each director has become practice provisions of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules
entitled during the year and the transfer value of the says that non-executives’ remuneration should be
increase in accrued benefit determined by the Board. As the intention is that two-thirds
of the BT Board are non-executives who could not vole on
Other benefits
their own remuneration, the Board does not consider it
Other benefits include car and driver, personal
telecommunications facilities, medical cover for sopeopriais for e white Beard to sndertzhe this rele
the director and immediate family and financial The basic fee for non-executive directors, which includes
counselling. In addition to his company car, Sir lain membership of one commitiee, is £25,000 per year.
Vallance has the use of a pool car in Scotland for Additional fees for membership of most other Board
occasional private use and pays tax sccordingly. committees range from £3,000 to £5,000 per year.
Committee chairmen receive an additional fee of £2,000
Service agreements
Itis the company’s policy that all the exscutive directors. 7> ¢ 0ach commkiee they chair. Sir Colln Marshall
received an ‘nclusive fee of £65,000 last year as Deputy
i aurvion apwoments o 8 ppsiad of e yeuc, it Chairman which increased to £75,000 with effect from
they contain provisions for the removal of a director 1 April 1998,
through poor performance and deal with payments to
which the director would be entitled if he was removed
from office, except for misconduct. The Initial three-
year term of Sir Peter Bonfield's contract was last year
extended, as part of the preparations for the merger
with MCL to 31 December 1999 after which time it can
be terminated by either party giving twelve months'
notice. Bill Cockburn has an initial two-year contract
effective from 1 October 1997 which can be terminated
&&&&& September 1999 by either party
giving 12 months’ notice. Sir lain Vallance's and Robert




. . REPORT ON DIAECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration
The remunerstion (excluding pension amangements) of the dvectons waa as follows:
Benefits

Salary and oos Annusl borus Defarmed bonus  exchuding pansicn fij Total

1908 1947 1998 9T 1998 a4 1900 1.7 1900 1997

Le00 0000 000 €000 £000 £000 <] 000 o0 €000
Sir lain Vallance 600 485 328 185 - - E 1 k- B8z 702
Sir Peter Bonfield 870 40 328 225 1834 - 43 0 1,11 754
A P Brace oo m 162 110 66 - 23 17 B4d 400
AW Rudge 208 206 10 18 - - 1" 15 200 417
Sir Colin Marshall &8s as - - - - - - 83 85
J | W Anderson ) Ny - - - - - - 30 3
M Argent a2 46 - - - - 1 1 B3 47
Sir Ewen Fergusson e 33 = - - - - - LT L]
J K Oates 35 30 - - - - - - as 30
B E Brauel ] 20 - - - - - = 22 20
¥ M Newboid [ ] 20 - - - - - - ] 2
B C Roberts = = - - - - - - - -
G H Taylor - - - - - = = B = -
Rt Hon Lord Tebbit - 18 - - - - - - - 18
Total remuneration 1,83 1815 88z 638 222 - 118 85 2,088 2,548
fa) Includes such benafits as described on page 36. 1097 The directors’ long-larm remuneration benelits, through the
figures have been restated. exarcise of share options, ware as follows:
{b) Payments to non-axecutive directors include fees paid x g
o their principal employer of £38,000 (1097 - £30,096). i —————
fc) This amount has been awarded, by way of a deferred :'FT g ": :
bonus, for the year ended 31 March 1988, This award will be AW a2 _
appiied In buying BT shares with a market value no greater o o . o
than the amount of the award. The executive wil receive e
those shares after three years only If he ls stil employed Tha figures in the above table are based on the amount by
by the company. which the market vaiue of the shares on the date of exercise

exceeded the oplion price. The figures for 1688 include the
employes compenaation for the special dividend (see note 3
1o the financial statemaents).

Under the lerma for his leaving the company, Michasl Hepher continued 1o receive his salary and contractual benefits until his
service contract axpired on § August 1897, The total salary payable during the year ended 31 March 1998 was £149,113 and he
received other benafits of £2.401. In the prior ysar, he received salary of £430,000 and £80,000 in fieu of benefits. Other benafits
for the year ended 31 March 1997 wers £14,239.

Yve Newbold retired on 30 June 1897, Dr Alan Rudge on 31 October 1997, Geraid Tayior on § November 1597, Bert Roberts on
17 March 1998 and Birglt Breuel on 31 March 1098, Gerald Taylor agreed 1o walve fess of £13,383 (1997 - £8,567) for the year
ended 31 March 1984. In the previous financlal year, Gerald Taylor joined the Board on 4 November 1096 and Lord Tebbil retired
on 2 Novemnbaer 1080, Sir Michael Bett, who retired on 31 January 1996, remains chalrman of Cefinet Group Uimited, a subsidiary
company for which he received fees of £15.000 (1997 - £15,000) during the year ended 31 March 1998, Yve Newbold remains on
the Community Aftairs Commities for whici) she received fees of £3,750 afier her retirement.




REPORT ON DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION . .

Directors’ interests .
The interests ol directors and their families in the company’s shares st 31 March 1098 and 1 April 1097 are shown below:

Beneficial holdings 1900 1997
Sir lain Vallance 208,308 105,758
Sir Petar Bonfield 9,220 0305w
R P Brace 20,103 2020w
Sir Colin Marshall 2,000 2,000
J | W Anderson 4,188 -
M Amgent 17,088 17,968
B E Breuel - -
Sir Ewen Fergusson - -
J K Ostes 3,810 3,764

fa) includes 9,004 shares (1007 ~ 6,305 shares) purchased and heid by Sir Peter Bonfieid and 21,841 ghares (1007 - 16,710 shares)
by Robert Brace in the Long Term Remuneration Pian (see nols 28 10 the financial statements).




. . REPORT ON DIRECTORS' AREMUNERATION

Details of share options heid &t 1 Aprll 1997, granted and exercised under the share option schemes during the year, and the
balance heid at 31 March 1998 are as follows:

Number of shares under Dption Option :‘: e

1 Apet 31 March  price per dale of  rom which Ususl
Tear Grarted  Exarcised 1908 shar eTise  easTmable  espiy date
Sir lain Vallance 65,189 - B5,186%y - 284p 602p 0770042 070049
100,207 - 100207gy - 280p 5a2p 07293 07112/00
67,957 - - B7,987 333p 090VES 080302
20770 - - 20,770 430p 040008 040D
3,760 - - 3,760 arsp 081297 081204
237,883 | - 155306 82,487
Sir Peter Bonfield 6,480 - - 8,460 20Tp 140801 1470202
R P Brace 136,890 - - 136,800 283p 060992 060D
18,680 - - 18,680 28%p 07123 0TH2/00
18,020 - - 18,020 333 200395 09002
24,890 - - 24,800 430p 040M8 040300
30,180 - - 30,180 460p 181196 151100
23470 - - 23470 arsp | 08/1287  08/12/04
2285 = = 2,265 320p 140608 141298
3878 - - 2,878 207p 140801 140202
258,271 - - 288,271
AW Rudge (c) 60,000 - 50,000/ - 264p S17p 070842 070099
' 65,622 - 856220 - 269p 517p  07M283 071200
M5 - 534 - X S17p O0R0VSS 090MD2
10,940 - - 10,040 430p 0406 04003
2,748 - 2,745 - 265p 458p 140897 141297
2480 - - 2,460 arep 0812797  0BN2D4
2,254 - - 2,284 300p 1406000  14M12/00
178,555 - 162,901 15,654

(a) All of the ebove options wers granied for nil consideration.

) Options exercised under the BT Share Option Schere on 9 January 1098,

c) Dr Rudge retired as a director of the company on 31 Oclober 1997,

(d) Options exarcised under the BT Share Option Scheme on 14 January 1998.

(e) Options exercised undar the BT Empicyse Sharesave Scheame, in which sl mployees of the company are sligibls 10
participate, on 18 Juna 1997,




REPORT ON DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION . .

an

Unreslised gains on the above share options at 31 March 1098, based on the markel price of the shares al that date, excluding
the empioyes compensation for the apecial dhvidend which ls discretionary in réspect of directons’ share options, were as lollows:

Options exsrcisatie Options nol exercisstis
Urveatised paing Unvesiised gaing

Hurrber 1998 T mow 1008 19T
of shares Lone Co00 of shares £000 000
Sir lain Vallance 82487 240 25 - - 3
Sir Pater Bonfielkd - - - 6,460 28 12
A P Brace 252,130 831 03 6,141 22 28
A W Rudge 16,584 0 252 - - 10

fa) Based on options outstanding at 31 March 1897 and the market price of the shares af tha: date.
mmmdumunM1ﬂwmnm—%mnwmhmmmuum1m
was 378.5p 1o 685p.

Details of the company’s ordinary shares provisionally awarded to directors, as participants under the Long Term Remuneration
Plan (note 28 to the financial statemants), ware s follows:
Total number of sward sharsafs)  Pangs of valus of swardity)

Dividencs 31 March Mirimum  Maximum

1A 18T Awarded  reinvesied 198 £000 oo
Sir Peter Bonfisid 125737 98,100 17,183 240,420 ane 1,563
R P Brace 169,181 B540 2348 208,900 am 1,670
AW Rudge 110,045 13,08 124,020 161 806

{2) Excluding shares purchased by each director under the plan (see page 38).

(b} Based on the market vaius of the company’s shares at 31 March 1806. The minimum figure represents those shares heid al
31 March 1998 which will transier 1o sach director af the end of year five of the plan (19w to 2002). The maximum figure
represants all shares held at 31 March 1008 which will transler to each director atf the end of year five of the plan (1099 to 2002)
provided the corporate performance measure has bean fully met. Normally shares will transter only if the individual is still
employed by the group. However, the plan gives discretion to preserve awards of shares after retirement. Under this discretion,
Dr Audge's awards have been prassrved until the end of year five of the plan,

1131 March 1998, Sir lain Vallance, Sr Peter Bonfield and Robert Brace sach had a non-beneficlal interest In 21,919 shares
(1997 - 62,691) purchased by BT Empioyse Shares Trustees Limited for afiocation 1o employses under the BT Empioyes Share
Ownership Scheme, and 10,487,987 shares (1997 - 8,208,481) hald In trust by tlord Trustees (Jersey) Limited for allocation to
participating empioyees under the Long Term Remuneration Plan and the Performance Share Plan.

No director had any interest in the debentures of the company o in the share capital or debentures of its subsidiaries,
mwnnh—um1msmnmhuammm.mmmnmm
the year ended 31 March 1898, he was awarded 32,620 shares under the Performance Share Plan (note 28 1o the financlal
statemaents). He will only be entitied 1o these shares in full at the end of a period ending on 31 July 1698 (which may be extended
h-mlihmhﬂMlem”mmhﬂmbyh
BT group.

There have been no other changes in the directors’ interests In the share capital or in the debentures of the company and s
subsidigries between 31 March 1988 and 26 May 1098,

Sir Colin Marshall
Deputy Chairman and Chairman of Remuneration Commiltes
26 MAY 1998
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Statement of directors’
responsibility

FOR PREFPARING THE FINANCIAL BTATEMANTS

The directors are required by law to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the
group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit
or losa, total recognised gains or losses and cash flows of
the group for that period.

The directors consider that, in preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 1998 on pages

45 10 79, the company has used appropriste accounting
policies, consistently applied ard supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates. The directors also
consider that all applicable accounting standards have
been followed and confirm that the financial statements
have been prepared on the going concern basis.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the
company keeps accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the company and which enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companles Act 1985.

The directors are also responsible for taking such steps
that are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The auditors’ responsibilities are stated In their report
to the shareholders.




Report of the M

TO ThE BHAREHOLOERE OF BAITIEN TELECOMMUNICATIONS pis

We have sudited the financial statements on page 45to 79.
We have also examined the amounts disclosed relating to
the directors’ remuneration, share options and pension
entitlements on pages 35 to 40.

Respective responsibllities of directors
and auditors

As described in the statement of directors’ responsibility,
the company’s directors are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements. It is our responsibility
to form an independent opinion, based on our sudit, on
those financial statements and to report our opinion

to you.

Basls of opinlon

We conducted our sudit in accordance with United
Kingdom Auditing Standards Issued by the Auditing
Practices Board which are substantially the same as
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by

. fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements.

Opinlon
In our opindon the financial statements referred to above:

+  give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and the group at 31 March 1998 and of the
profit, total recognised galns and cash flows of the
group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared In accordance with the Companles Act 1985,

= present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the group as at 31 March 1998 and
31 March 1997 and the results of their operations, total
recognised gains and their cash flows for the years
ended 31 March 1998, 31 March 1997 and 31 March
1896 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United Kingdom. The principles differ
in certain respects from accounting principles genenally
sccepted in the United States. The effect of the
differences In the determination of net income,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows Is shown in
note 30 to the financial statements.

Coopers & Lybrand

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditon
London

26 MAY 1098
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Five year summary

YEARD ENOED Bt

1984 1088 1990 mer 1000
tm tm tn om Em
Profit and loss sccount
Turmover 13678 13803 14448 14935 15,840
Other oparating income fa) 5 120 103 108 a2
Operating profit (b 2082 2,683 3,100 3,245 3,857
Group's share of profits fosses) of associated undertakings 10 (] -] 139 (253
Profit loss) on sale of group undertakings (4 241 7 [ [X]
Net interest paysble (230} @59 (1o (129 (249)
Premium on repurchase of bonds - s - (5] -
Profit on ordinary activities bofors taxation 2756 2882 3019 3200 3219
Tax on profit on ordinary activitiea:
Corporation snd similar taxes (@s1) w2t (1027 {1,100 (ore)
Windtall tax - - - - {510)
Profit on ordinary activities after Laxation 1,808 1,738 1,092 2,101 1,731
Minority interests (L] ) ) (24) (28)
Profit for the financlal ysar 1767 1,731 1,086 2017 1,708
Eamings per share 28.5p 27.8p ngp Rep 28.7p
Eamings per shave before exceplional Rems 28.5p 278 a.ep az.8p an7p
Fully diluted earmings per share 279 W2 Mo i 283
Fully dikted eamings per share befors exceptional ltems 2790 272p 31.0p 322 a1ap
Dividends per share (including 1997 special dividend of 35p] 16.7p 7.7 187p  B485p 198.0p
(&) Inchuding MC! merger break-up fee net of expenses - - - - 238
{b) Inchuding redundancy charges 817 820 a 67 108
Cash flow statement
Cash fiow from operating activities 4917 5119 5,834 6,192 8,070
Retuns on investments and senvicing of finance @o2) (348) {150y @20 (160)
Taxation (805) (1,775) (784) (1.045)  (1,004)

Capital expenditure and financial investment 123 @538 @500 8200 (3,108)

Acquisitions and disposals (482 (2.260) N3z @sy  (1,801)
Equity dividends pad @99 (088 (0.3® (1L.217) (473
Cash inflow [outfiow) before management of kquid resources

and financing 506 (2264 1,130 638 (4,089
Management of kiquid resources {ren 2,557 131N (504) 2,247
Financing Fis) 2o7) 28 @24) 1,704
Increase (decresse) in cash for the year (18 ] 8 (80 {11)
Decrease (increase) in net debt for the year 863 2148 1319 848 (3,860)




Five year financial Qmmm (continued) ®
AT 3 MARCH

1094 1998 1908 mer %08

£m Om om om [ ]

Balance sheet
Tangible fixed assets 15584 16012 10498 16802 17,282
Fixed asset investments 1312 1,082 1,087 1213 1,108
Net cument assets (labilities) 128 725 (108 @867 (2,837)
Total assats less current Eabilities 17421 10368 17447 15408 18,323
Loans and other borrowings falling dus after one year fes QI8N a2 Ry P
Provisions for labilities and charges o) ®™ (0280 (%) (1429
Minority interests (@5) ] (180 zom (223
Total assets less kabdnies 1,026 1997 12678 11,018 10,788
Total equity sharshoiders’ funds 13,020 11,907 12678 11,118 10,708
Total nssots 22565 21450 23538 25062 23,208
US GAAP
YEARS ENDED 31 MARCH
Income before taxes 233 2,580 2, 3328 2,700
Net income 1478 1,744 1,808 2049 1481
Basic samings per ordinary share 238p 28.0p 28.8p 3.9p 2a.Te
Dikted earnings per ordinary share 24p  2Mep  WAp  p  22Ap
Basic earnings per ADS £2.38 £2.80 £2.88 £330  c2a7
Diuted samings per ADS £2.34 £2.76 £2.84 £3.36  £2.24
&1 31 MARCH
Total nssets 23181 23870 20,183 27239 27,981
Ordinary shareholders’ equity 11511 12,188 13,010 11,588 12,818







are stated in the balance sheet of the company at cost using the projected unlt method. Variations from this

less amounts written off. Amounts denominated in regular cost are allocated over the average remalning
foreign currency are translated into sterfing at year-end service lives of current employees lo the extent that these
exchange rates. varlations do not relate to the estimated cost of providing
Investments in associated undertakings are stated In H.u&ﬁ&.gr?snﬂcﬂn
the group balance sheet at the group's share of their
net assets. Interest is accounted for on the provision in the balance
The group's share of profits less losses of associated Hljhls&kr ..;Ealol.__.._. rl.__.l_.ﬂ!..
undertakings is included In the group profit and The regular pension cost, variations from the regular
Toss account. pension cost, described above, and Interest are all
Investments in other participating interests and other charged with!~ staff costs.
investments are stated at cost less amounts written off

Xl Taxation
IX Stocks The charge for taxation is based o the profit for the year
Stocks mainly comprise items of equipment, held for and takes into account deferred taxation. Provision Is
sale or rental, consumable items and work in progress made for deferred taxation only to the extent that timing
on long-lerm contracts. differences are expected to reverse In the foreseeable
sl o e s bt it
lower of cost and estimated net realisable value, after

of whether they are expected Lo reverse In the
provisions for obsolescence, Sorsescable futars:
Work in progress on long-term contracts Is stated at cost,
after deducting payments on account. less provisions for Xill Financlal instruments

Debt instruments are stated at the amount of net proceeds
X Redundancy cos's adjusted to amortise any discount evenly over the term of
Redundancy costs erising from periodic reviews of stafi the debt.
levels are charged against profit in the year In which
employees leave the group. } Derivative financlal instruments

The group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce
If the most recent actuarial valuation of the group's exposure 1o foreign exchange risks and Interest rate
pension scheme shows a deficit, the estimated cost of movements. The group does not hold or issue derivative
providing incremental pension benefits In respect of financial instruments for financlal trading purposes.
employees leaving the group Is charged against profit in
the year in which the employees leave the group, within Criteria to qualify for hedge accounting
redundancy charges. The group considers its derivative financial Instruments

to be hedges when certain criteria are met. For foreign
X1 Pension scheme currency derivatives, the instrument must be related 1o
The group operates a defined benefit pension scheme, actual foreign currency assets or labilities or a probable
which Is independent of the group's finances, for the commitment and whose characteristics have been
substantial majority of s employees. Actuarial valuations identified. It must involve the same currency or similar
of the scheme are carried out as determined by the currencies as the hedged itern and must also reduce the
trustees at intervals of not more than three years, the risk of foreign currency exchange movements on the
rates of contribution payable and the pension cost being group’s operstions. For Interest rate derivatives, the
ES?&-{&?;E&; Instrument must be related to assets or liabilities or a
1o the results of these valustions. In any Intervening years,  probable commitment and must also change the nature
the actuaries review the continuing appropristeness of of the interest rate by converting a fixed rate to a variable



(b) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Accounting for derivative financial instruments

Principal amounts underlying currency swaps are revalued
at exchange rates ruling at the date of the group balance
sheet and are included In debtors or creditors.

Interest differentials, under interest rate swap agreements
used to vary the amounts and perlods for which interest
rates on borrowings are fixed, are recognised by
adjustment of interest payable.

The forward exchange contracts used to change the
currency mix of net debt are revalued 1o balance sheet
rates with net unrealised gains and losses being shown as
part of debtors or creditors. The difference between spot
and forward rate for these contracts is recognised as part
of net interest payable over the term of the contract.

The forward exchange contracts hedging transaction
exposures are revalued at the prevailing forward rate on
the balance sheet date with net unrealised gains and losses
being shown as debtors and creditors.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES




Gmuppmﬁtandl&accomzt

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1980

1088 1997 1996
Notra tm tm £m
Turnover 1 15,840 14835 14448
Other operating incoma (&) 2 a2 106 103
Operating costs (&) 4 (12,388  (1.,798)  (11.449)
Operating proft 3,087 3,245 3,100
Group's share of profits (losses) of associated undertakings (252) 129
Profit on sals of group undertakings ‘ 63 ] 7
Interest recehvable ] 168 206 20
interest payable [ (414) (338) @)
Premium on repurchase of bonds 7 - =) -
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3,210 3203 09
Tax on profit on ordinary activities: L
Corporation and similar taxes wre) (gm0
Windfall tax (s10) - -
1 (1,488) (1,102) (1,027)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxstion 1,731 2,10 1902
Minority interests (28) 24 6
Profit for the financial year 1,708 2017 1,888
Dividends: ]
Ordinary (12200 (1208  (1,184)
Special - R24 -
(1,220) @510 {1,184)
Retained profit (transfer from reserves) for the financial yesr a 480 (1,433 802
Earnings per share Io 26.7p Rep AN.ep
Esrnings per share before exceptions! lHems a.7p azsp aep
Fully diluted sarnings per share 28.3p 22p 30p
Fully diluted earnings per share before exceptiona! ltems a1.2p N2p 31.0p
fa) Including MC! merger break up fes net of expenses p~ "] - -
(b} Including redundancy chamges 108 a7 421
Group statement of total recognised gains and losses
Folm THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1804
1098 T 1908
tm om tm
Profit for the financial year 1,708 2017 1,986
Currency movements arising on consolidation of forsign subsidiary and
associaled undertakings (74) (L] 42
Total recognised gains and losses 1852 %001 2,020




Group &hﬂow statement

FOR THl YEAR ENOZD 31 MAACH 1008

1008 1997 1958
Heter im tm m
Het cash inflow from operating sclivities nu 6,078 8,182 5,834
Returns on Investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 168 1968 20
Interest paid, including finance costs [ B42) @37
Premium paid on repurchase of bonds - &0 -
Dividends paid to minoritiea - (14) e
Net cash outflow for returns on Investmants and servicing of finance (160) 220 (50
Taxatlon
UK corporation tax paid (1,028 (1032 (738
Windtall tax pald (288) - -
Overseas tax paid (8) (1% (48)
Tax paid (1,806 (1,045 7e4)
mwﬂ_mm
Puchase of langible fixed assata (3,020) @.823) R.547
Sale of tangible lixad assets 1ar 124 ]
Purchase of fixed asset investments (268) (172) (85)
Disposal of fixed ssset investrnents &0 51 ad
Nel cash outfiow for capital expenditure and financlal investment 3,108 (2.820) (2.500)
Acquisitions and disposals
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings, net of D8m (1997 - £2m, 1996 - £1m)
cash ecquined (121) (1289 26
Purchase of associated undertakings (1,3080) (148 (122
Sale of subsidiary undertakings - 1" 18
Sale of associated undertakings - 1" -
Het cash outflow for scquisitions and disposals (1,801) 252 (132
Equity dividends paid (3,473) (12170 (1,138)
Cash inflow [outflow) before management of liquid resources and financing (4,083) 638 1,130
Managemant of liquld rescurces IH 2,247 {504) namn
Financing
Issue of ordinary share capital 144 160 130
Minority shares lssued 48 81 L
New s 1,037 8 175
Loan repaymaents 338 @10 (1)
Net increass (decrease) in short-term borrowings 303 200 (16)
Net cash inflow (outfiow) from financing 1,704 224) 275
increase (decrease) In cash In the yesr () ®0) 28
Decresse (increase} in net debt in the year m (3880) B49 1319




Balance sheets ®

AT 30 MARCH 180
Group Comparry
pw _'em  'tm  ";m 't
Fized sasatls
Tangible assets " 17,282 18,002 14,000 14,483
Investments 18 1,708 1273 7,808 6,509
Total fixed assets 18,960 10076 22707 21,002
Current assets
Stocks 145 180 124 150
Debtors " 3,387 307 4,918 403
Investments ” ™ 2974 18 2909
Cash at bank and in hand &2 26 1 -
Total currant sssets 4,325 6,987 5,088 7,081
Creditors: amounts falling dua within ona year
Loans and other borrowings s 881 483 3,282 28
Other crecitors 0 0,081 AL ‘ 6,043 9,005
Tota! creditors: amounts faliing due within one yesr 6962 9,654 |L 0328 113
Net current liabllities (2,637) (867) (4.26T) (4.240
Tets! assets loss current liabilities 16,323 15,408 18,440 16,852
Creditors: amounts falling due aftor more than one year
Loans and other bormowings " 3,889 2683 4,120 3482
Provisions for lisbilities and charges 2 1,420 140 1,200 134
Minority intarests 223 208 - -
Capitsl and reserves
Called up share capital n 1,603 1,500 1,003 1.589
Share premium sccount B a2 a7s Be2 75
Other reserves n e T 740 750
Prolit and loss account n 7814 8,078 9,801 9,004
Total equity shareholders' funds n 10,785 11,118 13,048 12,018
16,323 15,408 10,440 16,852

Debtors include amounts nceivable after more than one year, group £97m (1997 - £546m) and company £213m (1897 - T741m).

The financial statements on pages 45 1o 70 were approved by the
board of directors on 28 May 1098 and were signed on its behal! by

Sir lain Vallance Chairmas
Sir Peter Bonfield CBE Chigf Executive
A P Brace Group Finance Director




@
Notes to ﬂw’nanaa! statements

1908 .7 1998
1. Tumeover £m tm tm
inland calls 4,924 4,874 4882
International calls : 1,883 1800 1,880
Exchange fine rentals 2,087 28 2,085
Private circuits 1,140 1,124 1,058
Mobile communications 1,089 949 858
Customer premisss equipment supply 800 w14 846
Yeliow Pages and other directories 458 438 408
Other sales and services 2,008 2.018 1,633
Total lurnover g 18,040 14,935 14,446

The group provides telecommunication services, prnCipally in the United Kingdom, essentially operating as 8 unitary business.
Its main services and products an local and national telephone calls in the United Kingdom, the provision of telephone exchange
lines 1o homes and businesses, intemational telephone calls made to and from the United Kingdom, the provision of private
circuits fo businesses, the supply of mobile communication services and squipment Lo businesses and individuals and the supply
of telecommunication equipment for customens’ premises.

Turnaver included incoma from UK and overseas telscommunications operators of £1,260m (1097 - £1,165m, 1696 - £1,168m).
Approximately 4% (1997 = 3%, 1006 = 29%) of lotal oparating revenues arose from operations butside the United Kingdom. There
wers no discontinued operations of acquisitions in the years ended 31 March 1898, 1997 and 1988 that require disclosure under
Financial Reporting Standard 3.

Unaudited information concerning the group's classified directony business in the UK is shown on page B3 of this annual report.

; 1908 1997 1998
2. Other opersting income (] om om
Merger agreement break up fee (@) am - -
Merger axpenses written off (38 - =
Other 154 108 103
Total other operating income arz 108 103

{a) The company received USS485 milion on 12 Novembaer 1897 from WorldCom, Inc as & break up fee and partisl reimbursement
of axpanses ("the MCI merper break up fee”) following the termination of the BT/MCI merger agresemani on § Novemnber 1097
(note 15 @)
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3. Opersling costs m fm
Staft costs:

Wages and salaries 3,200 3181 3,108

Social security costs 200 262 261

Pension costs jnote 25) 177 N 284

Empioyes share ownership scheme (&) 64 64 30

Empicyes share option scheme compensation for special dividend (b 120 - -
Total stafl costs 3,017 3,778 3,680
Own work capitalised (424) (399) (417
Depreciation jnote 14) 2,303 2,205 2,189
Pryments to telecommunication operators 1,600 1478 1,383
Redundancy charpes (o) 108 367 421
Other operating costs 4,761 4,300 4,183
Total operating costs 12,356 11,796 11,449
Operating costs included the foliowing:
Research and development 307 o - m
Rental costs relating 1o operating lsases,

including plant and equipment hire £18m (1897 - £10m, 1996 - £23m) 192 218 250

{a) Amount set aside for the year for allocation of ordinary shares in the company 10 eligible employees.
(b} Compensation flor employess holding share options on 15 August 1897 in respect of the September 1997 special dividend.

{c) Redundancy chorpes for the yesr ended 31 March 1897 included £258m (1996 - £268m) being the cost of providing
incremental pension banafits for employses taking early retirement. No charge or these pension benefits was made in the yesar
ended 31 March 1098 in view of the surplus in the BT pension scheme disclosed by the most recent actuarial valuation as at
31 Decamber 1808; the previous valuation had shown a deficil.

The directors believe that the nature of ihe group’s business is such that the analysis of opersting costs required by the
Companies Act 1085 Is not appropriate. As required by the Act, the director have thersfore adapted the prescribed format so
that oparating costs ane disclosed in a manner appropriate (o the group's principal activity. Other operaling incomae, previously
predentad within operating costs, is now shown separsiely on the face of the group profit and loss acoount because of its greater
materiality in the year ended 31 March 1998,

4, Profit on sale of group undertakings

in the years encied 31 March 1898, 31 March 1997 and 31 March 1096 the subsidlary underlakings disposed of had & negligible
effect on the group’s operating profit and cash flows and their nat sssets were immaterial to the group's financial position.

1098 197 TG
8. Interest recelvable £m £m tm
Income from Ested investments i1 12 29
Other interes! receivable 164 194 172

Total interest receivable 188 208 201




MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

1" 1T 198
€. Interest payable tm om £m
Interest payable and similar charges in respect of:

Bank loans and overdrafts 80 76 74
Other borrowings 34 250 207
Total interssl payable 414 15 n

7. Premium on repurchase of bonds

In August 1998, the company repurchased two of the three series of HM Governmant heid bonds then outstanding for CA22m at an

efiective premium of £50m. The final bond series with a face value of £140m was repaid on maturity on 31 March 1997,

1994 e 1996
8. Tax on profit on ordinary activities tm £m tm
United Kingdom:
Corporation tax at 31% (1087 - 33%, 1000 - 33%) 885 1,135 1,000
Deferred taxation charge (credit) at 30% (1967 - 3IW, 1900 - 33%) 17 {100y 20)
Taxation on the group's share of results of rssociated undertakings 1 - 1
Deferred taxation provision released due lo reduction in corporation lax rate (28) - -
Priof year adjustments (4] 1 [
Total UK taxation, exchuding windfall tax ore 1,008 280
Overseas taxatioh:
Current e 7 B
Taxation charge (credif) on the group’s shar of results of assoclated undertakings 4 49 kL
Total corporation and simia taes 78 1,102 1,027
Windfall tax 810 - -
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 1,488 1.102 1.027

The company’s charge to the UK windiall tax, imposed on certain privatised companies on 2 July 1097, is payabie in two equal
instaiments, the first of which was paid on 2 December 1997, The second instalment is payable on 1 December 1088. The charge
Is based on the group's profit for the financial years ended 31 March 1088 1o 31 March 1989.

Total tax on profit on ordinary activities, excluding the windiall tax, varied from the amount computed by applying the corporation
tax rate 1o profit on ordinary activities before taxation. The differences were aftributable 1o the following lactors:

1084 1.7 1998

% % (8

UK corporation tax rate 21.0 33.0 3.0
Non-deductible deprecistion 0.8 13
Non-deductible overseas losses 1.1 1.0 09
Unprovided deferred taxes on excess capllal alowances {0.9) (1.0)
Effect of reduction in UK corporation tax rate on deferred tax provision (0.8 - "
Lower affeciive lax on MC1 merger bresk up fee fo.m) - -
Non-deductible premium on bonds repurchased from HWM Government - 04 -
Other 0.1 0.1 0.
Eftective corporation tax raio 20.4 MaA MO0

Delerred taxation of £30m (1997 ~ £28m, 1996 ~ £30m) arising on excess capital aliowances and Cnil (1997 - £19m, 1996 - C11m)

on profits of associated undertakings was not provided In the ysar ended 31 March 1998,
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8. Tax on prefit on ordinary activities (continued)

The deferred taxation charge (credif) was mainly the result of the tax effect of timing differences as lollows:

1080 1.7 1998

tm om tm

Excess capital alowances 24 &2 78

Pension provisions 20 (103 (7]

Other timing diffarences - @n (59 {87

17 (100) 20)

Release due to reduction in corporation tax rate (28) - -

Prior year sdjustmants (&) (14) 21 ne

Total deferred taxation charge (credif) (22) 9 ]
() Reclassification between deferred and curment taxation on the profit on ordinary activities for prior years.

1090 1T 1996

penca pance pence 1990 17 1994

#. Dividends par share P share e ahare m m om

Interim dividend paid 758 780 T45 483 502 469

Proposed final dividend 1148 11.95 1125 737 TE4 715

Total ordinary dividends 18.00 18.85 18.70 1,220 1,268 1,184

Special dividend - 35.00 - - 2.244 -

Total dividends 18.00 64,85 18.70 1,220 aswo 1184

10. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year ended 31 March 1998, amounting to £1,706m
(1997 - £2,077m, 1698 - £1,988m), by 6,394 milion shares, the weightad sverage number of shares in lssue during the financial
yoar (1897 - 6,336 milion, 1998 - 6,283 million). The fully diuted sarnings per shar are based on share options cutstanding.

The exceptional tems in the calculation of the samings per share before exceptional iems in the year ended 31 March 1098 and

the individual eamings per share effects ane:

Pence per
share tm
MCI marger brask up fee received loss exponses 238
Less tax charge attributable 10 the MCI merger break up fee (80)
Net merger broak up lee after tax ' a.0 188
Windfall tax charge {8.0) (510)
Net charge (5.0) (322)
1990 1997 1990
11. Reconciliation oi operating profit to operating cash flows tm tm tm
Operating profit, inchuding share of results of associated undertakings 3,408 3,384 3,182
Depraciation 2,308 2,285 2,189
Share of losses (profits) of essociated undertakings net of
dividends received £5m (1997 - £7m, 1996 - £5m) 257 (133 m
Decreass in stocks 38 n k]
Increase in debton 29) (1em Pas)
Increass in creditors 44 478 493
Increase (decrease) in provisions (4n a2 309
Other 16 13 ar
Net cash infiow from operating activities 8,078 8,102 5,834
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1908 1.7 1900

12. Managemant of liquid resources tm om om

Purchase of shori-lerm investments and payments into shori-term deposits over 3 montha {1,109 2.242) 2.520)

Sale of short-term investments and withdrawals from shori-lerm deposits over 3 months  * 1,334 2,790 1,996
MNet movemnant of short-term inves mants and shor-term deposils under 3 months nNot

repayable on demand 2,018 {1,082 (7%3)

Net cash inflow {outfiow) from management of iquid resources 2,247 (504) (1,317

Maovemnents in all shori-lerm investiments and deposits nol repayable on demand are reporied under the heading of
management of liquid resources.

' Othes A
1 April Cash  noncash  Curency 31 March
1997 flow  charges  movement 1990
13. Net dabt £m om £m Om tm
Analysis of not debt
Cash in hand and st bank 26 ® - - €2
Overnight deposits 30 e - - 14
Bank overdrafts {11) 1) - - 42)
45 (11) - - M
Other current asset investments 2,944 2,247) m 4] nr
Ehort-term Investments and cash, less bank overdrafts 2,989 (2,268) (4] aNn 781
Debt due within one year, excluding bank overdrafts “ra (35 (334) 2 (8au}
Datit due afler one year @083 {1,587) s s&6 (3,8e9)
Total debt, axcluding bank overdrafta (3,188) (1,002) (41 ] Ba {4,728)
Net debt (178) (3.880) (20) L (3,977)
1088 197 1994
Reconclilation of net cash flow to movement in net debt tm tm tm
Increase (decreasa) in cash in the year {11) (o0) 28
Cash (inflow) cutfiow from (increase) decrease in debt (1,002) 435 ()]
Cash (inflow) outfiow from (decreass) increase In liquid resources (2,247 504 1317
Decraass (increass) In net debt resulting from cash flows (2,880) 849 1319
Currency and transiation movemaents 78 4n (609
Other Non-CaAsh MOVEMents {20) am (54)
Decrease (increase) in nat debt in the year (3,801) 2 1,205
Net debt at 1 April (17e) e48) 2.153)
Net debt at 31 March B.en nre (48)
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Assots in
Conriae
Landand  Plant and of con-

bulldings i) equipment  struction Total
14. Tangible fixed ussets m tm ] tm
Group
Cost
Balances st 1 April 1997 2,801 29,200 o9 22,088
Acquisitions of subsiciary undentakings - s - y
Additions 24 1,088 1,964 3,048
Transiers 148 1,786 (1.834) -
Disposails and adjustmants (L)) Barg 35} P52
Total cost at 31 March 1998 2062 20,070 074 22,818
Depreciation
Balances ut 1 April 1087 1,318 14,952 - 16,268
Acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings - 1 - 1
Charge for the year 95 2,300 - 2,395
Disposals and adpustments /2  Qa25) - 333y
Total depreciation st 31 March 1008 1320 14,002 - 1533
Net book value st 31 March 1098 1,53 e T4 17,184
Enginesring stores - - 68 2]
Total tangible fixed assets at 31 March 1998 1833 14077 1042 17,282
Net book value st 31 March 1997 1,485 14,254 979 . 16,718
Enginsering stores - - 84 B4
Total tangible fixed assets at 31 March 1097 1,485 14,264 1,083 18,802
Compeny
Cost
Balances ot 1 April 1997 T8 27384 M 28823
Additions 17 847 1,978 2,842
Translers 102 1,782 (1,684) -
Disposals and adjustments (149  P2sN “e  PIM
Totsl cost ot 31 March 1898 901 26,520 821 28,240
Depreciation
Balances at 1 Apel 1997 301 14,122 - 14,513
Charge for the yesr 2] 2,087 - 210
Disposals and adjustments (i} 3,188 - (3.206)
Total depreciation st 31 March 1008 a9 13,021 - 13417
Net book value at 31 March 1098 808 13,808 821 14,831
Engineering stores - - 68 68
Total tangible flued assets at 31 March 1908 B0S5 13,508 B89 14,800
Nat book value at 31 March 1997 T 13232 m 14,410
Engineering stores - - (5] 8
Total tangible fixed assets at 31 March 1997 408 13,232 -850 14,403
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Group Company
1990 mer 1908 1897
14. Tengible fixed sssets (continued) tm om tm om

fa) The net book value of land and buildings comprised:
Fraehold 1,281 1317 212 el
Long leases (over 50 years unexpired) o2 53 73 53
Short lasses 180 15 120 113
Total net book valus of land and bulldings 1,833 1,485 508 405
{3} Expenditure on tangible fixed assets comprised: Group
1998 1997
[ [

Plant and equipment:

Transmission squipment 1,219 1,131
Exchange eqguipment (1} ] a5
Other network equipment so2 503
Computers and office equipment a2 30
Motor vehicles and other 230 175
Land and buildings 211 143
Decrease in engineering stores (18) @
Total axpenditure on Langible flued sssets 3,030 .19
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Irfiarasts in assoclsied undertakings () i)
Ehara
of post
scquisiion | Othar
prolts  pamopating Other
Bhares Losrs fotsea) Farests  imvestmants | Tolal
15. Fixed asset investments om om o&m m om tm
Group
Cost
Balances at 1 April 1997 3,100 20 187 140 155 gz
Additions. 1281 135 - T0 108 1,682
Transfer of investment in
MCI Communications Corporation () (2,808) - @15 - 3,020 -
Share of iosses less retained profits for the year - - (254) - - 254)
Repayments, disposals and other transfiers. n 1 [~ ] (48) 24 @2
Currency movements "2 ) 12 - (75
Balances st 31 March 1098 1,833 181 (z88) 184 3381 4,843
Provisions and amounts written off
Balances at 1 April 1987 2333 - - = ® @35
Goodwill (528) - - - - (8286)
Transfer of investment in
MC! Communications Corporation (&) 2214 - - - 2214 -
Decreass (increass) in the year 42 - - - {10y k-
Balances at 31 March 1908 (1,008) - - - (22300 (3,238)
Not book value at 31 March 1988 528 181 (286) 104 1,181 1,708
Net book value st 31 March 1897 rer 20 197 140 149 1273
Subsidary undertaiurgs 3] Associsiedd Char
undorlaingt  palpaung Onhar
Ehares Loars [ intereats  Fveslmanits jof Total
tm tm om on tm om
Company
Cost
Balances at 1 April 1997 4,140 1 272 140 e 7.190
Additions 2,588 - 18 70 n 2,708
Transfer of investmant in
MCI Communications Corporation () - - RE13 - 2613 -
Repaymaents, disposals and other tranafers (68) - (16 (46) 213 (1.342)
Currency movements - m (1:10/] - - @)
Balances st 31 March 1988 6,688 10 a2 164 1,608 BATR
Provisions and amounts written off
Balances at 1 April 1897 “11) - @n - sy (591)
Increass in the year {B4) - - - o (74)
Disposals and transiers - - 12 - (1) 1
Balances st 31 March 1098 478) - s . (174} (664)
Net book value st 31 March 1998 6,183 10 i 164 1,434 7,800

Net book value at 31 March 1697 31 " 2,006 140 -3 6,599




15. Flxed ssset investments (continued)

{a) Subsidiary and sssociated undertakings
mdmmmmwwmnmummnmn.

(' MCI Communicationa Corporation

In September 1894, the company completed the acquisition of & 20% equity interes! in MCI (the second largest carrier of long-
dis'u oo lelecommunications services in the USA) representsd by a holding of 136 milion Class A common shares, whersupon
MCi became the group's most significant associated undertaiing. On 3 November 1896, the company entered into a merger
agreament with MCI wherebryy the group would scquire the entire share capital of MCI, not already owned. On 21 August 1997,
the terms of the marger sgreement were modified. On 1 October 1097, WordCom announced its inlention 1o offer shares in its
company lo MCI shareholders as an alternative to the proposed menger and, foliowing an Improved offer from WorkdCom on

9 November 1997, the company agreed that it would support the proposed maerger with WorldCom to which the MCI board had
agresd on the same day. On 11 March 1998, both MCI's and WorldCom's shareholders approved their merger.

The company has agreed with WorldCom and MCI to sell the group's holding of 138 million uniisted Class A common shares in
MCI to WorldCom for USS51 per share in cash at the time the MCLYWorkdCom merger is completed. The potential consideration

of US$6,936m was equivalent 1o £4,137m at the exchange rate ruling on 31 March 1998, The completion of the menger ls subject
to reguiatory clearance. The group also hoids 0.7 million listed common shares in MCI, most of which were purchased in November
1995. These shares will be exchanged for WoridCom common shares on complation of the marger. If fully listed, the market value of
the MCI shares held by the group at 31 March 1998 would have been £4,048m,

As a consequance of the larmination of the company's merger agreemant with MCI and the company’s agreemant with WordCom
and MCI, the group ceased treating MCI as an assoclats from 1 November 1807, The group's share of its associates’ results
includes a loss bafors tax of £27m for its share of MCI's results up to that date (1897 - £175m profit, 1968 ~ £101m profig).

AL 31 March 1898, the group’s Invesiment in MCl is stated at £813m (1997 - £834m). Goodwill amounting 1o £2,2 14m has been
written off to group neserves in prior years in espect of this investment and this goodwill will be accounted for st the completion
of the MCU/WorldCom marger in dalermining the profit on the sale of the shares which = group will recognise.

in the period 1 April 1997 10 31 Octaber 1997, the group’s turnover with MC1 amounted 1o £108m (1697 - £134m, 1098 - [92m)
and the group purchased £58m in the same period (1897 - £8Tm, 1998 - £77m) in services and products from MCL.

{c) Cegetel

On 24 September 1897, the group completed its acquisition of a 26% interest in Coegetel, a lsading French telecommunications
company. Of the cost of the investment In the assoclated undertaking of £1,029m, goodwill arising of £882m has been written off
BQAINST reserves.

The acquisition of the interest in Cegelal comprised:

£m
Group share of original book value of net assets 483
Fair value adjustment 10 schitve Consistency of accounting policies (318)
Fair value 10 the group 187
Goodwit [T
Total cost 1,029
{c) Other investments

mmmmmuhmm-mmmamum-mw-mmﬂ
£68m (1897 - £28m), held in trust for the Long Term Remuneration Plan and the Performance Share Plan (note 28). Also, in the
group balance sheet st 31 March 1998, listed Investments were held with a book value of £117m (1997 - £72m) and & market
value of £154m (1997 - £81m).

fe) Subsiciiary company scquisition

in February 1097, the group entired into an agreement 1o purchase from Banco Santander SA its S0% hoiding In the share capital
of BT Telecomunicaciones SA, a joint venture between a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company and Banco Santander 8A, for
the equivalent of £76m. The transaction was completed In July 1067,

{7 Other related party transactions with associaies
in the year ended 31 March 1098, the group's tumover with its other assoclated underiakings amounted to £74m (1997 - £23m)
and the group purchased £8m (1997 - £30m) in services and products rom thess undentakings. -
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Group Company
1088 1997 18090 1987
16. Dabtors L] tm e tm
Trade debtors fa) p 1001 T80 1670 1882
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 1,040 438
Amounts owed by associsted undertakings 118 72 87 2
Other deblors 249 304 201 180
Advance corporation tax recoverable @) - 458 118 851
Accrued income 1,048 1,084 1,014 1,058
Prepayments 173 134 202 ]
Total deblors 3387 3,807 4,018 4,013
Total debtors included amounts recelvable after more than one year:
Advanca corporation tax recoverable (b - 458 118 651
Accrued income o7 80 L 1 80
Prepayments - 0 - 10
Total o7 546 213 741

wmmsmm-m*mmmnm-mmummm-mwnnm
profit and loss account for doubtiful debts for the year snded 31 March 1598 was £218m (1997 - £188m, 1996 - £179m).

(b) Advance corporation tax recoverable
Advance corporation tax on proposed final dividend and, In 1997,
on special dividend 104 782 184 762
Amount offsel against delerred tax provision (nofe 21) (184) =o8) (L] (101)
Balance included within deblors - 458 118 a1
Group Compary
17. Current asset lnvestments T o & e
Listed investments 180 118 [} 16
Other shori-term deposits and investments sa1 2,856 10 2883
Total current assst investments T 2974 15 2900

Market value of isted investments 18 118 ] 18
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Averagn Oop Campany
Interist
rates ) 1990 1997 1598 1997
18. Loans and other borrowings * tm om tm tm
US dollar 8%4% guaranteed n les 1897 7 - 230 - -
US doltar %% guarantesd bonds 1998 ar 149 153 - -
US dollar 9%% guaranteed notes 1699 08 170 184 - &
US dollar 8%% guarantsed bonds 1099 7] 119 123 - -
Zero coupon bonds 2000
(ess unamartised discount £38m (1997 - £55m)) 88 182 145 102 145
US dollar 6%% notes 2002 (less unamortised discount £9m) 71 886 - 888 -
12%% bonds 2003 123 180 180 180 180
TW% bonds 2003 (less unamortised discount C3m (1097 - C4m]) T2 407 406 497 496
12%% bonds 2008 123 229 Fee) 220 229
US doliar 7% notes 2007 (less unamortised discount £3m) 71 593 - 583 -
US dollar %% guaranteed debentures 2018 08 19 122 - -
8%% bonds 2020 less unamortised discount £5m (1997 - £Smj) 1] 298 295 285 205
Total listed bonds, debentures and notes 3,408 FALY 2,842 1,045
Leaso finance 10 2 2 2
Bank loans due 1999-2009 8.0 To2 708 - -
Other loans 1.0 10 - - -
Bank overdrafts and othar short-lerm bormowings 7.1 74 1" 1,237 1,507
Commercial papar 71 478 210 470 210
Loans from subsidiary undertakings - - 2,851 2,655
Total loans and other borrowings 4,770 3are 7408 5,809

Apart from the lezse finance, all borowings are unsecured. Lease finance ks repayable by instalments.

Group Comparny
1900 1997 1009 1997
m [ tm om

Repayments fall dus ss follows:
Within one year, or on demand ' 881 48 3282 2316
Between one and two years 459 338 432 an
Betwoen two and three years 12 418 280 450
Batween thres and four years 2 - 1 T4
Betwoen four and five years 1,143 - 1,141 1
Alter five years 2273 1837 2,372 1,937
Total due for repayment afier more than one year 3,889 2,683 4,120 3483
Total loans and othar borrowings 4,770 3176  7.408 5,000

The group has an option 1o redeem the US dollar §%% puaranieed debentures 2010 exercisable from February 1999 ot a
maximum premium of 105%.,
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18. Loans and other borrowings (continued)

{a) Average effective interest rates
The average interest rates on page 81 take into account the effect of interest rate swaps. The interest basis of interest rats swap

sgreements usad. the notionsl mounts, their avarage maturities and weighted averaga nterest rates are shown below.

Averagm  Aversge

ierws! rdereal

Notonal  recoivable payabie

Aversge ot rabe rale

matrtty tm » %

Pay fixed interest and receive variable interest Ower 5 yoars 1,124 62 85
Pay variable interest and recelve fixed interest Undaer § ysars k] 05 T4

The rates of the variable rate portion of the swaps are based on quotsd rates. In calculating the average variable rates, the latest
rates agreed with the counterparty on sach swap have been used. Changes in interest rates will atlect the variable-rate
information disclosed above.

{b) Unused committed lines of crecit for short-term financing avallable at 31 March 1998 totafled approximately £786m, which was
in support of a commercial paper programma or other borrowings. These ines of credit are normadly available for Lp 10 one year.

19. Financial instruments and risk management

The group uses derivative financial instruments primarily to manage fta exposure to marke! risks from changes in interest and
foreign exchange rates. Thare has been no change in the risk profile between the ysar end and the date ol thess financial
statements.

The national amounts of derivatives summarised below do not necessarily represent amounts exchanged by the parties and,
thus, am nol & measure of the exposure of the group through its use of devivatives, The amounts exchanged are calculated on
the notional amounts and other terma of the derivatives which relate to intarest and exchange rales.

fa) interest rate risk managemant

The group has entered into interest rate swap agreemaents with commarcial banks and other instiutions to vary the amounts
and periods for which interest rates on bomowings are fixed. By swapping fixed rates on long-term borrowings into floating
rales, the group has obtained lower floating-rate borrowings than those avallable i bormowing directly at a floating rate. Under
interest rale swaps, the group agrees with other parties 1o exchange, ai specified intervals, the difierence between fixed rate
and fioating rate interest amounts caiculated by reference to an agreed notional principal amount.

Al 31 March 1998, the group had cutstanding inlerest rate swap agreements having & total notional principal amount of
£1,489m (1997 = £1,247m).

{b) Foreign exchange risk management

Cross curency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts have been entered into 10 reduce the loreign cumency exposure
on the group's operations and the group’s nel assets. The proup aiso enters into forward foreign exchange contracts 1o hedge
investmants, interes! expenss snd purchase and sale commitments denomenated in foreign curmencies (principally US dollars).
The terms of the currency swaps are up 1o 20 years and the terms of currency forward exchange contracts are typically less than
one year. The purpose of the group's foreign curmency hedging activities is 1o protect the group from the risk that the sventual
net infiows and net outfiows will be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates.

Al 31 March 1998, the group had outstanding foreign cumency swap agreements and forwand sxchange contracts having a
total notional principal amount of £4,476m (1997 - £2,541mj).

The fair values of foreign cumency contracts at 31 March 1998 wers £3,037m (1897 - £1,071m) for purchases of currency and
£892m (1997 - £683m) for sales of currency, These fair vaiues have been estimaled by calculating thelr present values using
the markast discount rates, appropriate 1o the lerms of the contracts, in effect at the balance sheet datos.

At 31 March 1996, the group had deferred unrealised gaina of Cnll (1997 - £21m) and losses of £36m (1997 = £7m), based on
cealer-quoted prices, from hedging purchase and sale commitments, At 31 March 1998, the group also had deferred realised
net losses of £12m (1997 = £36m net losses). These are included in the profit and loss sccount as pt of the purchase or sale
transaction when it is recognised, or as gains or lasses whan a hedged transaction is no longer expected 1o ocour.
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19. Financlal Instrumenta and risk management (continuad)

{c) Concentrations of credit risk and credit exposures of financial instruments

The group considers that i is not exposed 1o major concentrations of credit risk. The group, however, is exposed 1o credi-
related losses In the event of non-performance by counterparties 1o financial nstruments, but does not expect any
counterparties 1o fall to meet thelr obiigatic. 3. Basad on interest and exchange rates in effect st 31 March 1998, the group
had a maximum credit exposure of £118m (1697 - £113m) lo one counterparty under fomign cumency and interest rate swap
agreements. The group limits the amount of credit exposurs 1o any one counterparty. The group doss not normally see the need
o seek collateral or other security.

(< Fair vaiue of financial instruments

The following tabie shows the camying amounts and falr vislues of the group's financial instruments at 31 March 1968 and 1997,
The carmying amounts am included in the group balance sheel under the indicated headings, with the sxception of derivative
amounts related 1o borrowings, which ane included in debtors or other creditors as appropriate. The fakr values of the financial
Instruments sre the amount 81 which thi INSruments could be exchanged in & CUTENt UBNSACON between wiling partes, offer
than in a lorced or iquidation sale. F

Carrping amourt Fair vaiue
1898 1997 1000 1997
m m m Cm
Non-derivatives:
Assets
Cash at bank and in hand a2 e 82 28
Short-term investments ) T31 | 2474 731 24874
Liabiities b
Short-term borrowings (i) 550 21 680 b71]
Long-term borrowings, excluding finance leases (&) 4,210 2853 4,685 3,168
Derivatives relating to investments and borrowings (neq (v):
Assets 48 m - 1
Liabiliies - - 114 -

() Tha fair values of listed short-term investments were estimated based on quoted market prices for those investments. The
canrying amount of the other short-tenm deposits and investments approximated 10 their fair vluss due 10 the shorl maturity of
the instruments heid.

%) The fair value of shori-term borowings approximated to carrying value due to the shorl maturity of the instruments.

fii) The tair vaiue of the group’s bonds, debentures, notes and other long-term borrowings has been estimated on the basis of
quoted market prices for the same or similar issues with the same maturities where they existed, and on calculations of the
prasant value of future cash fiows using the appropriate discount rates in effect al the balance sheel dalea, where market
prices of similar issues did not exist.

{iv) Tha tair value of the group's outstanding lorsign cumency and inleres! rate swap agreements wiis estimated by calculating

the present value, using appropriate discount rates in effect af the balance sheet dates, of aflected future cash fiows translated,
where appropriate, inio pounds steriing st the market rates in effect st the balance shest dates.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

. Group Company
1088 1997 1888 1987
20. Other creditors Em £m £m tm
Trade creditors 1,971 1,858 1,880 1,483
Amounts owed o subsidiary undertaking: - = 8T0 898
Amounts owed 10 associaled undertakings a9 48 - -
Corporation and windfall taxes 033 1,774 589 1,503
Other taxation and social security 300 a2 208 a
Other creditors 1,068 1,134 S82 L]
Accrusd sxpanies w2 an 302 200
Deferred income T48 706 T3 658
Dividends fa) TaY 2,008 737 3,008
Total other creditors 8,n81 8.an 0,043 9,005
Total othar creditors included amounts due after more than one year:
Deterred income - 13 - 13
{2} Tha 1997 figures include the special dividend of £2,244m, paid in September 1997,
Owlerred Parsion Ottar
lagtion fsj  provsions  provisions Tota!
21. Provislons for llabliities and charges tm tm &m £m
Group
Balances at 1 April 1997 208 1201 100 1,687
Charged (credited) against profit for the year [7#4] T 25 180
Utilised in the year - R44) (L] @57
2n4 1.224 112 1,610
Advance corporation tax recoverable {184) - - (184)
Total provisions at 31 March 1998 (] 1,224 112 1420
Company
Balances at 1 April 1697 10 1201 50 1,442
Charged (credited) agains! profil for the yeer (= <] m (L] 123
Utiised in the year - @ - @38
es 1224 45 1337
Advance corporalion tax recoversble (68) - - 168)
Total provisions st 31 March 1098 - 1,224 48 1,200




21. Provisions for liabilities and charges (continued)

. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BTATEMENTS

{a) Deterrod taxation Gronp Company
The siements of deferred taxation provided in the Ppen 1007 1908 Spo
accounts at 31 March were as follows: tm m = o
Tax effect of iming diflerences dus 1o:

Excess capital allowances T2 78 sg8 ]
Pension provisions PeT) (426) (387 (426)
Other (r1) 1) (163 (142)
Total deterred taxation provided ars 290 6o 101
Advance corporation tax recoverabls {ia4) 206) (68) {101)
Total provision lor deferred Laxation w0 - - -

The lotal potential kabiity 1o deferred taxation at 31 March was as follows:

Tax sftect of timing differences due 1o

Excess capital aliowances 2,578 2,181 2,483 2,887
Pension provisions 87 (426} 287 {426)
Other ) “n (183) (142)
Total 2,138 2914 1,933 2,119
Advance corporation tax recoverable (184) (752) {1e4) (752)
Total potential kability for deferred taxation 1,804 1,562 1,740 1,367

22. Called up share capital

The authorised share capital of the company throughout the yeer ended 31 March 1998 was £2,825,000,001 divided Into ona
special rights redesmabie preference share of £1 and 10,500,000,000 ordinary shares of 25p sach.

The aliotted, called up and fully paid share capltal of the company was £1,603m &2 31 March 1008 (1997 - £1,580m), representing
8,411,214,670 ordinary shares (1997 - 8,355,115,816 ondinary shares and one special rights redesmabile preference share).

Certain special rights, sel out in the company’s arlicles of association, were attached 10 the special rights redeemabls preference
share issued 1o HM Government. The share, which camied no right 1o capital or profits beyond s nominal value, was redesmed at

par by HM Government on 10 Septlember 1097,

Of the authorised but unissued share capital at 31 March 1098, 201 milion ordinary shares were ressrved to meet options

granted under the empioyes share opiion schemes described in note 28.
Ordinary shares aliotied during the year wore as follows:

Homenal vk Consdenationtsj
Humber £ t
Savings related schemes 45,762,400 11,440,802 122,802,122
Other share option schemes 6,554,498 1,638,025 21,454,362
Scrip dividend 3,781,950 045,407 -
Totals for the year anded 31 March 1998 58,000,854 14,024,714 144,058,484

{a) Consideration exciudes contributions from group underiakings es described In note 23(d).

During the year ended 31 March 1990 & number of sharsholders slected 1o taks afl or part of their interim dividend in shares &t &
value of £18m. The nominal value of the shares issued has been funded out of the capital redemption serve &nd the amount of

the dividend has been added back 1o the profit and ioss reserve.

-




Shar Capaal Profit
Share premiam  redemplion O and ioss

23. Reconclliation of movement in capasl  sccourtgl) rererve relenven account Total

shareholders' funds Im om £m om m tm
Group
Balances at 31 March 1695 1559 418 750 18 9.255 11,097
Goodwill, arising on acguisition of subsidiary and

associated undertskings (b) - - - - @az) Poz)
Goodwill, previcusly written off lo reserves, taken

back to the profit and loss acoount - - - - 12 12
Employse share oplion schamaes - 57 million shares

issued (note 28) 14 116 - - - 130
Currency movemants (including £29 million net

losses in respect of foreign currency

borrowings) (c) - - - - 42 42
Transfer 10 other reserves - - - ] )] -
Prolit for the financial year - - - - 1,966 1,996
Dividends (18.7p net per ordinary share) - - - - (1.184) (1,184)
Other movemaents - - - - (1) (=]
Balances &t 31 March 1896 151 -] 750 27 9.787 12,6878
Goodwill, arising on acquisition of subsidiary and

associated undertakings () - - - - (199 (199)
Goodwill, previously written off 10 reserves, taken

back to the profit and loss account - - - = 5 5
Employee share option schemes - 84 million shares

issued jnote 28) 16 144 - = - 160
Currency movements (including £29 million net

pains in respect of lorsign curmency

bomowings) fc) -~ - g - e 78
Profit for the financial year - - - - 2,017 2017
Dividends (54.85p net per ordinary share) - - - - R.510 RS0
Other mavements - - - - (4] W]
Balances at 31 March 1997 1,589 675 750 ar 8,075 11,116
Goodwill, arising on acquisition of subsidiary and

assoclated underiakings (&) - - - - @an ®an
Goodwill, previously written off 1o reserves, taken

back to the profit and loss account - - - - 5 ]
Employes sham option schames - 52 milion shares

issued () (note 28) 13 217 - - - 230
Mavement relating to BT employes share ownership trust (@) - - - - (85) (85)
Currency movements (including £31 million net

gaing in respect of loreign currency

baormowings) (¢) - - - - 74 L]
Profit for the financial year - - - - 1,708 1,708
Dividends (19.0p nel per ordinary shars) - - - - (1220 220
Scrip dividend = 4 million shares issued (rote 22) 1 - {n - 18 18
Other movements : - - - & 26 »
Balances st 31 March 1098 1,803 [ 740 a7 7814 10,788

=
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23. Reconclllstion of movement In sharsholders' funds (continued)

Ghare Capitai Proft
Sha  premium  redemplion and loss
cepitel  pccount i) ey account Total
tm tm | tm tm om
Company
Balances i 31 March 1985 1550 415 750 9,890 12,614
Empioyse share option schemes - 87 milion shares
Issued (note 28 14 18 - - 130
Profit for the financial year fg) - - - 2339 2239
Dividends (18.7p net per ordinary share) - - - 1,184) (1,184)
Currency movements (including £28m net
losses In respect of foreign curmency bomowings) - - - 148 148
Balances at 31 March 1008 1,573 51 T80 11,184 14,048
Employee share option schemes - 84 millon shams
Issued fnote 28) 18 144 - - 160
Profit for the financlal year fa) - - - 1478 1,475
Dwvidends (54.85p net per orcinary sham) - - - P.510) ps10
Currency movemnents (inchuding £29m net
gain in respact of forsign curmency bomowings) - - - (155 (155)
Balances at 31 March 1997 1,589 875 750 9,004 12,018
Empioyee share option schemes - 52 milion shares
issued (d) fnole 28) 13 217 - - 230
Movement relating to BT's empicyse share ownership trust () - - - as5) 35}
Profit for the financial year fo) - - - 2,150 2150
Dividends (19.0p net per ordinary shars) - - = {1220 {1,220
Scrip dividend - 4 milion shares lssued jnole 22) 1 - [\]] 18 10
Curmency movemaents (including £31m net
gain in respect of foraign curmency bomowings) - - - o8 8
Balances st 31 March 1998 1,603 e Té0 0,801 13,045

mmmmm“ummmdmmhmmm are not
available lor distribution,

() Aggregate goodwill st 31 March 1098 in respect of acquisitions In the current and sarfier ysars of £3,8603m (1997 - £2,671m,
won-uﬂmunnunmuwmmmwmﬂhny-mai March 1998 mainly
ose In connection with the acquisition of the intarest in Cagetel; that written off In the year ended 31 March 1097 mainly arose in
mmmwuu—umwhnmuunmdwm
BV, that written off in the year ended 31 March 1096 mainly arose in connection with an acquisition macds by MCL

MhMWmmmmmmm-atm 1908, was £130 milion
(1997 - £56m decrease, 1994 ~ £20m Increass).

() During the year ended 31 March 1608 the company lssusd shares &t 8 market valus of £203m In respect of the exerciss of
options swarded under s principal savings-relaled share option schema. Empioyess paid £118m 10 the group for the kssue
ﬂmmuﬂhbﬁudﬂmowmunmmmmmm

group undertakings.

fe) The profit lor the financlal year, deaRt with in the profit and loss account of the company snd after taking into sccount dividends
from subsidiary undertakings, was £2,150m (1997 = £1,475m, 1996 - £2,336m). As permitted by Section 30 of the Companies
Act 19685, no profit and loss account of the compeny |s presentsd.

ar




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Group Company
1994 1997 1980 %97
24, Financlal commiiments and contingent Habilities tm Om Em m
Contracts placed for caphtal sxpenditure nol provided for in the accounts 1,047 1,125 963 1,008
Operating leass payments payabis within cne year of the
balance shest date were In respect of leas: » expiring:
Within one year ‘ L 10 a ]
Betwoen one and five §j _ars 39 n 21 1w
ARer five yoars 138 LT o4 "2
Total payable within one year 183 173 118 "7
Future minimum operating lease payments for tha group at 31 March 1998 were as follows:
Payable in the yedr ending 31 March:
1000
tm
1999 183
2000 67
2001 127
2002 122
2003 ' 18
Theraafler 1,205
Total hiture MiNiMUM oREFEtng lease payments 1,982

Operating lease commitmants wers mainly in respect of leases of land and bulidings.

Al 31 March 1090, there wers no conlingent Babilities or guarantess other than those araing in the ondinary course of the
group's business and on these no material iceses are anticipated. The group has insurance cover 10 certain mits for major
risks on property and major claims in connection with legal kabiities arising in the course of i~ operations. Otherwiss, the
group generally caries its own riske.

The company has guaranised certain bomowings of subsidiary undertakdngs amounting to £1,330m (1897 - £1,577m).

Satelite consortia, In which the company has participating interests, are organisations without limited liability, Al 31 March
1998, tha company’s share of the aggregate bomowings of these consortia amounted to £188m (1897 - £170m).

Outstanding at 31 March 1998 and 1997 were warmants entiting the holders 1o subscribe In 1999 for US dollar 8.785%
guaranteed bonds at par, repayable in 2009, 10 be ssued by the group with a total principal value squivalent to £119m
(1997 - £123m).

The company does not bebeve there an any pending legal proceedings which would have a material adverse sflect on the
financial position or results of operations of the group,

As explained in note 15{b), the company’s merger agreement with MCI (the BT/MCI merger) was terminated on § November 1897,
Individuals purporting 1o fepresent clasaes of MC! shersholders have now faed seventeen complaints in the Court of Chancery in
the State of Delaware (the "Delaware Sharehoider Class Actions”), asserting claims In connection with the original and
renegotiated lerms of the then-proposed BT/MC! menger. MC1 and carlain of its officers and directons, including officen of the
comparry who served as MCI directors, are named as delendants in afl seventsen Delaware Sharehoider Clasa Actions. The
company is named as a dalendant in fiesn of these cases. The original and amended complaints fled in thess Nteen cases
collectively aliege thal the company breached and alded and abetted breaches of fiduciary duties owed Lo MCI shareholders In
connaction with the then-proposed BT/MCI menger, In addition, amended complaints in five of the Delawars Sharshoider Class
Actions assert claims in connection with the pending WordCom/MC! menper, Including chalienges 10 the Menger Lermination fee
paid 1o the company and the company’s right 1o receive cash in exchange for iks Class A common shares in MCL. Four of these
amanded complaints name the company &s & defendant. The courl, having lssusd en order conaolidating fifteen of the Delawers
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24. Financlal commitments and contingent llabilities (continued)

Sharsholder Class Actions, subsequently directed the plaintifis 1o submit a proposed order vacating thal consolidation order and
o submit a new proposed order of consolidation. The perties have agreed that the defendants are not obligated to respond 1o the
complaints filed in these fifleen cases until the consolidation issue has been resolved and the plaintifts serve the defendants with
& consolidated and amended comp.aint. In the two Delaware Sharsholder Class Actions that were not included in the court's initial
consolidation order, neither the company nor s officers who served as MCI direciors have been sarved, and have therefore not
respondad 1o the complaints.

In addition, after the renegotiation of the terms of the BT/MCI merger, an MCI shareholder filed a derivative action on behalf of
MCl in the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware. The complaint names the company and certain officers and directors of
MCI, Including officers of the company who served as MCI directors, as defendants. Among the claims asserted in the complaint
is the allegation that the company sided and abetted breaches of fiduciary duty in connection with the proposed BT/MCI merger.
The complaint does not take into account the subsequent WorliCom/MCl merger sgresment. The partiss have agreed that
defendants naed not respond to the complaint until the plaintiffa serve an amended compiaint. No such complaint has yet

been served.

In sddition, individuais purporiing 10 represent & ciass of persons who purchased MCI shares during the period 11 July 1997 to
21 August 1097 have filed & consolidated amended class action complaint (the “Complaint®) under the caption in Re MCI
Communications Corp Securities Litigation, now pending in the federal district court for the District of the District of Columbia
The Complaint supersecss certain sarfier federsl securities class action complaints. The Compiaint aBeges that MCI, the company
and certain MCl officers and directors, including officers of the company who served as MCI directors, viclated the federal
securities lawa by faling timely to disclose that MCI was renegotiating the terms of the mergar with the company.

The company befieves that it will prevail in the foregoing sctions,

25. Pension costs

Tha total pension cost of the group expensed within staff costa was £177m (1897 - £201m, 1996 - £284m), of which £169m
(1997 - £281m, 1996 ~ £275m) related 1o the group’s main pension schems, the BT Pension Scheme (BTPS). The reduction in the
cost in the year ended 31 March 1998 was mainly aftributable 10 the greater than assumed return on the BTPS assets in the three
year period o 31 December 1096, Le. between the last two actuarial valuations. The increase in the charpe in the year ended

31 March 1997 was mainly atiributable 10 the increase in interest on the pension provisions In the balance sheet which had risen
by £311m 1o £1,201m in the year ended 31 March 1997,

mmmhhmmumwumhmamumunm-um1uu.n-p-r-tm
cost for the years ended 31 March 1998 and 1987 were based on the valuation of the BTPS at 31 December 1993, The
valuations, camried out by professionally quaiified independent actuaries, used the projected il method, The valuations were
determined, using the foliowing long-term assumptions:

Fates [por sy

1996 1993

% L

Return on existing assets, relative 10 market values 8.0 [ ¥ ]
Return on future Investments 8.4 8.7
Real equity dividend growth 0.78 0s
Average increass In retall price indax 4.0 5.0
Average future increases in wages and salaries 5.8 6.8

At 31 December 1096, the assats of the BTPS had a markst value of £19,878m and ware sufficient 1o cover 100.3% of the
mumwumwumﬁmhmmwhmmmmm
taking into sccount the Costs of providing Incremental pension benafits for smployees Laking early retirement Under «skese
schemes since that date. Thia cost, which amounted to £224m in the year ended 31 March 1998, will be Laken Into sccount al the
next planned actusrial valuation at 31 December 1999, The incremental pension costs of employess Laking sary retirement in the
years andec 31 March 1997 and 1996, £258m and £266m, respectively wers Include. in redundancy costs charged 1o the profit

I the year ended 31 March 1098, the group made reguisr contributions. of £238m (1997 - £232m, 1998 - £234m).
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To

25. Penslon costs (continuad)

Cartain activities of the BTPS are carried out at the comparny’s pension centre, & costs of which are borme by the company.
Thess costs have not been apportioned for Bccounting (wposes betwesn those attributable 1o the BTPS and those attributable
to the company becauss lunctions maintained for both entities cannot be meaninghully divided between them. The company
occuples eight propert »3 owned by the acheme on which an annual rental of E3m is payable.

The BTPS assets are invested in L7 and overseas equities, UK and overseas properties, fixed interest and index linked securities,
mmmmmnmu-mm&nmmmumnm-umumm
of the company with 8 market value of £270m (1087 - £250m).

26. Directors

Directors’ emoluments

Tha emclumants of the directors for the year ended 31 March 1098 and the gaina made by them on the exercise of share
optiona were, in summary, a8 follows:

1908 1997 1968

oo0 LO0CHs) E000M
Salaries 1,878 1,543 1471
Performance-related bonus 682 636 843
Deferred bonus 222 = i
Other benefits T » 114 o n

2,708 2N 2,085
Payments 10 non-axecutive dinectors () 2850 n s
Total emoluments 3,066 2548 2,466
Gain on the exercise of share options 847 " ]
{a) Comparative figures have boen restated.

{b) Payments to non-executive directors include lses paid 1o thee principal employer of £38,000 (1997 = £31,000, 1996 - £24,000).

More detalled information conceming directon’ remunenation, sharsholdings, options and long-term incentive plans is shown
in the report on directors’ remuneration on pages 33 to 40.

1090 1997 1990

Year and Aserage Year ond A wign Year and Average

27. Pecple employed 000 000 000 w00 000 ‘000
Number of employees in the group:

UK 1202 124.9 1233 1258 1278 1328

international 4.5 43 42 as 29 28

Total empioyees 124.7 120.2 12718 1206 130.7 1352
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28. Employee share schemos

The company has a share ownarship scheme used for employes share allocations (profit sharing), savings-related share option
schemaes for its employses and thoss of participating subsiciaries and Rurther share option schemes for sslected group
empioyess. It aiso has a performance share plan and a long-term remuneration plan. ‘

Bhsare option schemes t

The major share option schema, the BT Employes Sharesave Schema, is savings related and the sham oplions are normally
exsrcisable on completion of & thres or five-year Save As You Ean contract. A similar savings-relaied scheme exists for group
empioyees overseas. Under the other share option schemes, share options are normally exercisable betwesn the third and
tenth anniversaries of the date of grant. Options outstanding under these share option schemes at 31 March, together with thelr
axercise prices and dates, werm as follows:

Numiber of MNurmnber of
crdinary shares ordinary shares
Nomal | e Mormal _—
dates of Option price 1908 17 dates of Oiption price 1000 1997
sxarcise per sharn miilions ullona ST P Bhare miiliens rrdore
Savings-related schemes: Other sham option achemes:
1997 289 " rad 1992-1999 281p % 1
1988 320p 45 47
1999 Mip ar 2 3 o d § »
1969 300p 8 ] 1905-2002 3A3p 3 d
2000 404p s = 1996-2003 «0p 2 2
2000 300p ar 48
2001 267p P 70 1997-2004 3rsp 2 4
2002 358p B3 - Total options outstanding 281 263

During the yesr ended 31 March 1998, BT granted 60 million options (1997 - 79 milion, 1698 ~ nil) under the employee
sharesave schemes. The weighled average falr value of share oplions granted during the year ended 31 March 1908 has been
estimated on the dats of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing madel. The following weighted average assumptions were
used in that model: an expecied ie extending one month later than the first exercise date; estimated snnuslised dhvidend growth
rates of approximately 5%; risk free interest rates of 7% on options exarcisable three years after the dats of grant and B% on
options exercisable five ysars after the date of grant; and expected volatiity of approximately 18%.

The weighted average fair value of the share oplions granted in the year ended 31 March 1008 was B0p (1897 - B5p) for options
oxarcisable three yesrs after the date of grant and 120p (1997 - 107p) for options exercisable five years sher the date of grant.
The lotal value of share options granted by BT in the yeser ended 31 March 1998 was £70m (1997 - £83m) . In accordance with
UK accounting practices, no compensation expense ls recognised for the fair value of options granted. See note 30 for the
treatmant under US GAAP,




milions  milions | millons $ mange  price

Outstanding, 31 March 1908

Exercigable, 31 March 1698
Exsrcisable, 31 March 1697

Exercisable, 31 March 1998

. 1Bl3ze8ls238iz88

A long-term remuneration plan (LTRF) and a performance share plan (PSF) were Introduced for smployess of the group in

1994 and .;gifigiggaliiii and are

in company shares for the polantial benefit of the participants. Additional information

Value of range of possible future transfers: nll 1o

period,

ﬁiiﬂifill‘liﬁl?iii!-‘
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29. Auditors

The suditors’ remunaration for the year ended 31 March 1098 for tive group wis £2,306,000 (1897 - £2,135,000,
1996 - £2,138,000), including £1,216,000 (1997 - £1,167,000, 1996 - £1,170,000) for the company.

The fofiowing fess were paid or am payable 10 the company's auditors, Coopers & Lybrand, In the UK for the year ended
31 March 1698;

1998 1997 19968
£000 £000 £000
Audit of the company's statutory accounts 1,218 1,187 1170
Audits of the UK subsidiary undertakings' statutory accounts 810 06 e
Other services, including reguiatory audits and tax compliance work 4,724 4,620 4,004
Total : 8,450 6,183 8523

in addition, fecs of £1,265,000 (1997 - £1,888,000, 1096 - £1,305,000) wers paid or are payable 1o other members of
Coopers & Lybrand International for the year ended 31 March 1698 In respect of audit and other services to the company's
overseas subsidiary undertakings and in respect of other services 1o the group.

30. United States Generally Accepted Accounling Princlples

The group's consolidatert financial stalements are prepared In acoordance with sccounting principles generally accepted in the
UK (UK GAAP), which differ in centain significant respects from those applicabls in the US (US GAAP).

Differences between United Kingdom and United States generally sccepted accounting principles
The following are the main differences between UK and US GAAP which sre relevant to the group’s financial statements.

(a) Penslon costa

Under UK GAAF, pension costs are accountad for in sccordance with UK Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No. 24,
casts being charged against profits over empiloyees’working lives. Under US GAAP, pension costs are determined In accordance
with the requirements of US Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS]) Nos. 87 and 88, Differences between the UK
and US GAAP figures arise from the requirement 1o use different sctuarial methods and assumptions and a different method of
amortising surpluses or deficita.

{b) Accounting for redundancies

Under UK GAAP, the group generally charges 1o profit and loss direct severance costs, primarily severance payments snd
payments in ieu of natice, In the period in which employses leave the group. The cost of providing incremantal pension banefits
in respect of workiorce reductions are taken into account in determining curment and future pension costs, uniess the most
recent actuarial valuation under UK sctuarial conventions shows a defick. In this case, the costs of providing incremental
pension benefits are included In redundancy charges In the year in which the employses leave the group.

Under US GAAP, if empicywss are encouraged 1o leave voluntarly by the use of special tarmination benefits, then the termination
benefits, primarily severance payments, paymaents in lieu of notice and the associsted cost of providing incremental pension
benafits, are charged against profits in the period in which the termination terms are agreed with the employees. If staf!
terminations are likely to be enforced, then the termination benefits are charged against profits st the time when the group

Is commitied 1o the staff terminations and the sssociated costs can be reasonably estimated,

(c) Capitalisation of interest

Under UK GAAP, the group doss not capitaise interest in its financial statements. To comply with US GAAP, the estimated amount
of interest incurred whilst constructing major capital projects Is included in flxed assets, and depreciated over the lives of the
related assels. The amount of interest capitalised s determined by reference 1o the sverage interest rates on outstanding
bumnstmnmmmeWMdmnm-mmmmnw
and its subsidiary companies was subject 1o depreciation generally over periads of 3 to 25 years.

{d) Goodwiil

Under UK GAAP, the group wites off goodwill arising from the purchase of subsidiary and associated undertakings on acquisition
against retained sasnings. The goodwill ls reflected in the net incoma of the pericd of disposal, as part of the calculation of the
gain or loss on divestmant, or when necognising a permanent diminution In value. Under US GAAR, such goodwill is held as an
intangible asset in the Calance shee! and amortissd over s usetul e and only the unamortised portion Is Inchuded In the gain
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30. United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (continued)

() Goodwill (continued)
umwuumummmmu&mnummaumum £1,986m) was
subject to amortisation over pariods of 3 to 40 years. Goodwill relating to MCI has been unchanged since 31 October 1997 whan
the investment ceased 1o have sssociated company status. The value of goodwill is reviewed annually and the net asset value is
written down If a permanent diminution in value has occurmed.

(e) Moblle cellular telephone licences, software and other intangible assets
Certain intangible fixed assats recogrised under US GAAP purchase accounting requinements arne subsumed within goodwill
under UK GAAP. Under US GAAP thess separstely identified intangibie assels are valued and amoriised over their useful lves.

(N Investmaents

Under UK GAAP, investmants are held on the balance sheet at historical cost. Under US GAAP, trading securities and svalable-for-
sale securities ane carmied st market value with appropriate valuation adjustments recorded in profit and loss and sharsholder’s equity,
respectively. The net unmealised holding gain on avallable-for-sals securities for the year ended 31 March 1998 which related primarily
1o the investment in MCI was £1,315m (1997 - Onll, 1896 - Enlj).

{g) Deferred taxation
Under UK GAAP, provision flor deferred taxation s generally only made for liming differences which are expected to reverse.
Under US GAAP, deferred taution s provided on a full Eability basis on all lemporary differences, as defined in BFAS No. 109,

A 31 March 1898, the adjustment of £2,008m (1997 ~ £1,042m) reconciling ordinary sharsholders’ equity under UK GAAP o the
approximate amount under US GAAP included the tax effect of other US GAAP sdjustmants. This comprised an adjusiment
decreasing non-current assets by £76m (1897 - £138m decreass); an adjustment increasing cument assels by £88m

(1997 - £408m decrease); an adjustment decreasing curment labilities by £184m (1997 - £191m decrease); sn adjustment
decreasing minority interests by E3m (1987 = £nll) and an adjustment increasing non-current dafermed tax liablities by £2,.274m
(1897 = £1,587m increase).

{h) Dividends

Under UK GAAP, dividends are recorded In the year in respect of which they are declared (in the case of inlerim or any special
dividends) or proposed by the board of direciors 1o the sharsholders (in the case of final dividendas). Under US GAAF, dividends
are recorded in the period in which dividends are declared.

Mot income and sharsholders’' equity reconciliation stataments
The following statements surmmarise the material estimated adjustments, gross of thelr tax eflect, which reconcile net income
and sharsholders’ equity from that reported under UK GAAP 10 that which would have been reportsd had US GAAP been applied.

Mok Sanme. 1088 1997 1996
TIAR ENO4D 31 MAACH [©] om om
Net income appilicable 10 sharehoiders under UK GAAP 1,700 2,017 1,086
Adjustments for:
Pension costs (06) 8 1]
Redundancy charges (253) 158 (152)
Capitalisstion of interest, net of related depreciation (38) (P& ]] @2
Goodwill amortisation [th)] 3 T4
Mobile licences, software and other intangible asset capitaiisation and
amortisation, nat 42 m 38
Investments 5 - @
Delerred taxation 163 (148) [
Other ltams an - -
Net income as adjusted for US QAAP 1,481 2,149 1,806
Basic earnings per Amarican Depositary Bhare s adjusted for LIS GAAP (a) c£2.87 .99 £2.88
Diluted sarnings per Amaerican Dapositary Share a3 adjusted for US GAAP (a) £2.24 £3.38 £2.84




HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (continued)

Shareholders’ equity
AT 31 MARCH
isa 197
[ om
Sharsholders' equity under UK JAAP 10,788 1,116
Adjustments for:
Pension costs (1,34  (1.057)
Redundancy costs (41) k]
Capitalisation of intersst, net of related depreciation 200 337
Goodwill, net of sccumulated amortisation 2,118 2,146
Mobile Ecences, software and other intangible asset capitalisation snd amonisation 030 260
Irrvestmonts 1,260 24
Deferred taxation (2,008 (1,942
Dividend declared efler the financial year end 737 764
Other hems an -
Sharshoiders’ equity as adjusted for US GAAP 12,018 11,588

(=) Each American Depositary Share is equivalent 1o 10 ordinary shares of 25p each.

Minarity Interests

Under US GAAF, the mincrity intersst charge would have been reduced by £5m (1997 - nd, 1696 ~ Cnil) after adjusting for
goodwill amortisation. Net assets attributable 1o minority interests would have been £81m higher (1997 - Enlf) after adjusting
for goodwill, investments and other ltems.

Accounting for share options

Under UK GAAF, the company does not recognise compansation expanse for the fair value, at the date of grant, of sham options
granted under the empioyes share oplion schames. Under US GAAP, the company cdopted the disclosurs-only option in BFAS
No. 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” in the year ended 31 March 1807, Accordingly, the company sccounts
for share options in accordance with APB Opinion Mo. 25 *Accounting for Stock lesued 1o Employess”, under which no
compensation expenss ls recognised. Had the group expensed compensation cost for onfions granted in sccordance with GFAS
No. 123, the group's pro forma net income, basic samings per share and diluled samings per share under US GAAP would have
been £1,436m (1097 - £2,126m, 1998 - £1,000m), 22.5p (1997 ~ 33.8p, 1990 - 20.7p) and 22.1p (1697 - 33.2p, 1996 - 28.4p),
respectively. Ths SFAS No. 123 method of accounting doss not apply 1o share op*ons granted before 1 January 1098, and
mccordingly, the resulting pro forma compensation costs may not be representative of that (o be sxpected in future years.

See note 28 for the SFAS No. 123 disclosures of the fair value of options granted under empioyes sharesave schemes &l date
of grant.

Consolidated statements of cash flows

Under UK GAAP, the Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiows are pressnied in accordance with UK Financial Reporting Standard
No. 1 (FRS 1). The statements prepared under FRS 1 present substantially the same information s that required under SFAS
No. 85,

Under SFAS No. 85 cash and cash squivalents include cash and short-lerm investmaents with original maturities of three months
or less. Under FRS 1 cash comprises cash in hand and at bank and overnight deposits, net of bank overdrafts.

Under FRS 1, cash flows are presented for opersting sctivitios; returna on investmonts and servicing of inance; taxation; capital
expendilure and financlal investments; acquisitions and disposals; dividends paid 1o the company’s sharshoiders; Management
of liquid resources and financing. SFAS No, 85 requires a clasalfication of cash flows &8 resulting from operating, investing and
financing activities,
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Cash fiows under FRS 1 in respect of interest received, interest paid (net of that capialised under US GAAP) and taxation would
be included within operaling activities under SFAS No. §5. Cash fiows from purchases, sales and maturities of rading securities,
whils not separalely identified under UK GAAP, would be included within operating activities under US GAAP. Capitalised interest,
while not recognised under UK GAAF, would be inciuded in nvesting activitiss under US GAAP. Dividends paid would be included
within financing activities under US GAAP,

The loliowing statements summarise the statements of cash flows a3 If they had been presentsd in accordance with US GAAP,
and include the adjusiments which reconclle cash and cash equivalents under US GAAP 1o cash & bank and in hand reported
under UK GAAP.

1098 1967 1008

tm om tm
Net cash provided by operating activities 3047 5008 502
Net cash used in investing activities @100 @S p287)
Net cash used in fnancing acthvitiss (1,847) (1.517) m7s)
Net increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents T 960 794
Eflect of exchange rate changes on cash 21 (4 4
Cash and cash equivalents under US GAAP at beginning of year 2343 1397
Cash and cash equivalents under US GAAP at end of year 36 233 1397
Short-term investments with original maturities of less than 3 months @04 @3N (127
Cash at bank and In hand under UK GAAP at end of year o 26 12

Current sssst lnvestmants

Under US GAAP, investments in debl securities would be classified as either trading, avallable for sale or held-to-maturity. Trading
investmants wouid be stated at fair vakues and the unrealised gaina and losses would be included In Income. Securities classified
as avaiable-lor-sale would be siated at fsir values, with unvealised gains and kosses, nel of deferred taxes, reported in
sharehoiders’ equity. Debl securities classified as heid-1o-maturity would be stated at amortised cost. The folowing analyses do
not include securities with original maturities of less than three months.

Al 31 March 1998, the group held trading investments at a Carrying amount of C384 (1997 = £173m) with fair values totaling
£389m (1697 ~ £173m). Held-to-maturity securities st 31 March 1997 and 1998 consisted of the following:

UK Government securities and other UK Ested investments 25
Commercial paper, medium lerm notes and other investments 18

Total at 31 March 1908

UK Government securities and other UK listed investments
Commercial paper, medium lerm notes and other investments

43
44
439
Total at 31 March 1097 - 483
Cost
om

Tha contractual maturities of the heid-to-maturity debt securities at 31 March 1998 wero as follows:

Maturing on or befiore 31 March 1099 "
Maturing after 31 March 1999 5

Total st 31 March 1988 <

tixzisk|gleslalanls
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30. United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (continued)

Pension costs
mmmunmmmumnmmmmmm nies under
SFAS No. BT and SFAS No. 88, the effect of which is shown In the above reconciliation stalements.

The pension cost determined under SFAS No. 87 requirements for the year ended 31 March 1994 was caloulated by reference
to an expected long-term rate of return on schems sssets of 8.2% (1997 - 9.2%, 1996 - 0.6%). The components of the pension
cost for the main pension schemy comprised:

1008 w7 1998

[ £m om
Cost of benefits sarned during the year a7 268 2608
Interes! cost on projected benefit obligation 1,084 1,845 1,543
Actual return on schame assels B404) 00§ .76
Net amortisation and deferral 1,848 n 1,244
Additional cost of termination benefits 204 258 208
Pension cost for the year under US GAAP 457 456 520

The projected benef obligation for the main pension scheme was determined using the foliowing assumptions at 1 January 1697
and 1 January 1698:

1000 1997

por BAnUm  par anvum

w L]

Discount rate T2 1.7
Rate of huture pay Increases 5.8 58

The determination also took into account requirements in the scheme as 10 luture pension Incraases.

mwmuhmhmwmmnmnwmanmmu
31 March 1897 and 31 March 1998, based on the valustions at 1 January 1897 and 1 January 1998, respectively, ls given balow.

1990 1997
m m

Actuarial present valus of sccumadated benefit obligation due
o past and present ampioyees {all benefits vested) 21,200 18,823
Projected benafit obligation 23,513 20,13
Scheme assels ot lair vakee 22,088 19878
Projected benefit cbiigation in excess of scheme assats (847 B54)
Unrecognised net obligation at date of initial application of SFAS No. 87 fa) 202 34
Unrecognised prior service costs by 223 247
Other unvecognised net peins (2,189) (2.062)
Accrued pension cost under US GAAP a881) [Ra3s5

fa) The unfecognised net obligation at the date of initial appiication is being amortised over 15 years from 1 April 1988,

(&) Unrecognised prior service costs on schems benefit Improvements, are being amortised over periods of 15 or 16 ysars
mhnmdhmuhm
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otherwise siated, ware as follows:

h.lt:h-
Subsidiary undertskings Activity -l:ll-: Country of operstions ()
BT Australasia Pty Limited @) Communication relsted services 100% ordinary Australa
and products provider 100% preference
BT (CBP) Limited f&) Financlal masiaet telecommunication 100% ordinary Inlemational
equipmant provider
BT Cableships Limited {a) Cabieship owner 100% ordinary International
BT Communications Telscommunication 100% ordinary International
Managemaent Limited fy sorvices provider
BT France SNC ) Communication related services 100% equity France
and products provider
BT Limited (&) Communication related services 100% ordinary Iinternational
and products provider
BT {(Hong Kong) Limited {a) Communication related services 100% ordinary Hong Kong
and products provider 100% preference
BT Network Information Communication related services 51% ordinary Japan
Services Company (@) and products provider
BT North America Inc fig) Communication related services 100% common usa
and producta provider
BT Property Limited {8 Property holding company 100% ordinary United Kingdom
BT Subsea Cabiles Limiied Cabile maintenance and repair 100% ordinary United Kingdom
BT Telecomunicaciones BA () Communication related services 100% ordinary Spain
; and products provider
BT (Worldwide) Limited () International telecommunication 100% ordinary International
network pystems provicer
Call Connactions Limited ) Cefular telecommunication 60% ondinary United Kingdomn
servicen provider 80% preferonce
Celinet Group Limited ja) Holding campany for the Celinet group 60% ordinary United Kingdom
Calinet Sciutions Limited fs) Messaging sarvice provider for 60% ordinary United Kingdom
cellular lalephons systems
Concert Communications Telscommunication services and TE% ordinary Infernational
Company fa) natwork syslems provider
Europe Informatique SA &) Sysiems integration and 100% ordinary France
application developrmant
First Gtate Computing Unit Trust fi) Systems integration and 100% equity Australa
application development
Marx Telecom Limited fs) Telecommunication services supplier 100% ordinary lste of Man
Syntegra Groep BV f) Systems integration and 100% common Netherlands




SUBSIDIARY AND ASBOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

Group intarest
Subsidiary undertakings In allotied
(continued) Actvity capital ty Country of operations (o)
Telecom Securicor Maobile cellular telephone G0% ordinary United Kingdom
Celiular Radio Limited fu) system provider and operator
Westminster Cable Cabie lelevision service provider 100% ordinary United Kingdom
Company Limited
Yellow Pages Sales Limited (i) Yetiow Pages sales contractor 100% ordinary United Kingdom

fa} Held through intermaediate hoiding compary.
{b) The propartion of voting rights held comesponds 10 the aggregate interest percentage held by the holding company and
subsidiary undertakings, unless otherwise stated.
{c) Al overseas undertakings are incorporated In their country of operations. Subsidiary undertakings operating Intemationally

are all iIncorporated in England end Walss.

Assoclated undertakings

Share capital

Percaniage
‘owrad

Country of operstons £

Alzacom SpA

Communication Lire 1,273 bilion

related services and
products provider

Matde cetiular
talephone system
provider and cperstor

Rs1.,05 bilion

Cegetal SA

Communication
related sarvices and

products provider

FFr 9.55 billion

20%

France

Clear Communications Limited

Communication
related services and

products provider

NZ3101m

25%

New Zealand

Communication
related sarvices and
products provider

SFr 10.Tm

Internat sarvice
provider

Communication
related sorvices and
products provider

Communication
related services and
products provider

NLO 0.1m

Viag interkom
GmbH & Co

Communication
related services and
products provider

45%

{a) lssued share capital comprises ordinary or common shares, uniess otherwise stated. All investments are heid through

intermediale holding companies,

fb) Al overseas undertakings are incorporated In thelr country of operations.




Quarterly M}ms’bmwrand profit

IUNAUSTTED) YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1908

ot 2nd 3d & Total
[ om o om tm
— 3788 3951 333 3952 15,840
Other operaling income (i} 25 20 m 42 arz
Operating profit ) (] 813 1,149 804 3,857
Group's share of profits (lossea) of assoclated undartakings [ @) 0 m (252)
Profit loss) on sale of group undertakiegs 20 @ 45 - 63
Interest recoivable 50 T2 20 14 165
Interest payable 05) {104) (108) (10) 414)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 881 680 1,019 (] s,219
Tax on profit on ordinary activities:
Corporation and similsr taxes 278 @16 (285) (196) (o78)
Windtall tax - 510) - (s10)
Profit (loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 603 ] ™ 432 1,71
Minority interests ) 6 (14) 3 (285)
Profit (loss) for the financial period 500 (<7,] 720 419 1,708
Eamings (oss) per share G4p 10.5p) 112p 85p 28.7p
' Earings per share before exceptional ems 24p 15 B83p 6.5p M7
Fully diluted earnings per share 9.2p na 11.0p 85p 26.3p
Fully diluted samings per share before
exceptional ems 9.2p 73 8.2p 6.5p 31.2p
{8) Including MC! menger break up fee net of expenses - - 238 - 238
b} Including redundancy charpes 16 1 15 74 108
URAUDITED) YEAR ENDED 21 MARCH 1997
Cuarters ist and ad 4th Total
£m £m on om tm
Turnover 3641 aras 3,783 2808 14,838
Other operating income ET] 17 1} 24 100
Operating profit (a) 870 170 @10 608 3,245
Group's share of profits of associated undertakings 38 4 2 20 130
Profit on sale of group undertakings 4 - 4 - ]
interest receivable 44 60 63 49 200
Interest payable ®n ®4) (] ] (338)
Pramium on repurchase of bonds - {60} - - (80)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 869 730 ] 085 3,203
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (206) (261) (30%) @ (1,709
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 673 460 800 450 2,101
Minority interests (U] ] m (1) (24)
Profit for the fnancial period 569 481 509 448 2,077
Earnings per share 0.0p 790 04p T.1p a1.ep
Fuily dilsted earnings per share 890 T2p B.2p 6.9p 32.2p
fa) Including redundancy charges 62 183 % -] 87
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Financial statistics

Financial retios
TEAR EmDED 31 MARDH

. 1994 98 1998 1897 1643
Eamings per share - pence 285 278 316 28 20.7
Growth in net dividends per share % () 71 8.0 58 6.1 oA
Retumn on capital smployed % (b) 171 158 183 10.9 19.3
Gearing - net debt 1o equity % {c) 83 178 74 18 36.1
Intarest cover ) 130 10.3 182 252 147
Dividend cover (8] fa) 1.7 18 7 17 1.8

N‘Iﬂ?l.ﬂ 1998 figures excluded the effacts of the special dividend of 35p per share paid in September 1997,

(b} Tha ratio ls based on profit before tax and interest on long-lerm borrowings, 10 Bverage capital employed. Capital employed is
represented by lotal assets leas curment labilties, exciuding corporale laxes and dividends payable, and provisions other than
those for deferred taxation. Year-end figures are used In the computation of the average, except in the case of short-lerm
investments and borrowings where average dally balances are used in their place.

{c) Tha ratio is based on borrowings net of cash and short-Lenm investments 1o capital and reserves and minority interests.

(c) The number of times net intarest payable is coversd by operating profit. In 1995 and 1997, net interest exchudes the premiums
paid on the repurchase of bonds. .
(&) The number of times dividends are covered by eamings. The figure for 1998 excludes the effect of the windisll tax charge.

Expenditure on ressarch and development
YEAR EwBED 31 MARDH
1994 1995 1996 w97 1998
£m m om om tm
Total expenditure 205 mn 282 0 207
Expanditure on tangible fixed assats
TUAN ENOED 31 MARCH
Plant and equipment
Tranamission equipment [ 1,060 1,114 1,131 1,219
Exchange equipment 493 805 566 445 B12
Other network equipment 338 ara 491 600 so2
Computers and office equipment 219 343 ] 350 ara
Motor vehicies and other 153 214 198 178 230
Land and bulidings 51 7 87 143 211
increase {decrease) in engineering siores 24 “ (18) ] (18}
Total expenditure on tangible flxed sasets 217 28T 2m 2.7me 3,030
Decrease (increase) in crecitons (10 (33} 224) 104 {10

Cash outflow on purchase of tangible fixed sssets 2,181 2,630 2,547 2823 3,020




Operational statist®

Cali yrowth )
TEAR ENOAD 31 MARCH
194 1998 1999 a7 1080
% Growth in fixed network call volumes Over the Previous year. )
Intand 7 T
international fa) 5 T ]
fa) Outgoing. incoming and transit.
Exchange line connections
AT 31 MARCH
Business ((000) 6,129 8,450 6,708 7,160 7,521
% growth over previous year a 54 5.2 583 8.0
Residential (000) 20471 20613 20500 20383 20,130
% growih (reduction) over previous your 18 07 o) [ 1] (1.5
Total exchange ine connections ("000} 26,600 ar.or 27,268 27,553 27,681
9 growth over previous yeer 29 18 os 09 0.4
Network modernlsation
AT 31 MARCH
% customer lines served by type of telephone exchange:
Digital T49 a7 ary 026 100.0
Semi-electronic 248 172 123 TA -
Electro-mechanical 05 0.1 - - =
Total 1000 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Optical fibre
AT 5% RAARCH
Fibre - kilometres in the network {000} 2517 2,782 3,043 3302 3,891
Celinet (Cellular telephones in the LI
AT 37 WARCH
Digital GSM ('000) - 7] s 1,125 2,303
Analogue ('000) 1,019 1,700 2,006 1573 TT4
Total 1019 1,734 2389 2,008 3,017
Payphones
AT 31 MARCH
Total public payphones in the UK (000) 124 129 133 138 138
People employed
AT 3V MARCH
Tolta! empioyees [000) 186.0 1375 130.7 1275 124.7
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Regulatory statistics and information

Price control

Under the company’s licence, there are restrictions on the prices it may charge for its main switched tslephone services.

The company’s performance agains! this price constraint, which ls knked 10 the annual movemaent in tha retall price index (RPY,
is shown below. b

VEAR COMMENCING | AVOUSTY 1w 1994 1995 1998 1907
% RP1 movement for the relevant period ) 122 282 182 214 2.94
RP1 formula in effect (&) (7.50) (7.50) .50 .80 (4.50)
% required reduction in prices (c) {6.04) (e.00) (135 .52 (158
% reduction in prices overal (.85} (135 (1.68 (4.62) (1.58) ()

fa) Annual increase In RPI 10 previous June.

&) From 1 August 1967, the RP1 formula covers the main switched telephons senvices provided 10 the lowest 80% by bill size of
BT's residential customens. The previous formula coversd such services supplied to all residential and business customens.

fc) After permitied carry forward of any unused aliowance or shortiall from previous vears.
{c) Price changes implemented 1o 26 May 1908.

Exzchange line disconnections lor non-payment of bills
VAR EnDED 31 MARCH TH00

rort May Jure Sty Ay S0
Business (000) 21 18 18 1 15 18
Residential (000) 96 7 7 84 56 7
Total disconnections (1000) "r T 8 103 101 89

Oect Mow Dec Jan Fab Mar
Business (1000) 18 17 9 10 13 "
Residential (000) 72 80 48 87 [ 85
Total disconnections (000) 90 ” &7 67 78 ™

BT's policy is not 1o disconnect customers for non-payment of reguiar bils uniess 28 days have slapsed from the dispatch of the
reievant bill, except in cases of suspected iraud. Generally, customens who are late in paying recelve af least two reminders lrom
BT, one of which is normally given by telephone, before the company considers disconnection. BT takes this action only s & last
resort, aflar reatricting the service to incoming calls only and giving customers an opportunity 1o agres revised paymaent plans.

Classified direclory business In the UX

The company is providing the loflowing Information with respect 1o its classified directory business in the UK in sccordence
with undertakings made with the Office of Fair Trading In July 1995. For the year ended 31 March 1098, the classified directory
business of BT made an operating profit of £170m (1997 - £168m) on wumnover of £420m (1997 - £386m) and, &t 31 March 1998,
it employed nat assets of C136m (1997 - £151m). Since the classified directory business is integrated with the company's
mmummmhmummmmuw
and assels.

BT is required 1o submit annual sudited accounts in espect of the classified direciory business 10 the Director of the Office of
FHMMMMGHWHWN.Mdemm.mh
oblained free of charge from the Financial Director, Yeliow Pages at Oueens Walk, Reading, RG1 7PT,

ﬂmmmwmmmwwmumwcymu
presentation of the 1098 figures.




Additional informd®n for shareholders

Analysis of sharsholdings g7 Ao
S0 o S Numtar of  Percentage nu:-"n:

AT 31 MARCH 1808 sharshoioens. of 1o [ ] of lotal
1-389 912,968 4.7 198 31
400 - T899 588978 203 n 8.0
800 - 1,509 358,200 178 392 e
1,600 - 9,999 166,001 8.1 LE ) 69
10,000 - 99,999 3645 02 " 14
100,000 - 599,909 1,405 o1 s02 78
1,000,000 - 4,999,999 423 0.0 4 146
5,000,000 and above fajbic) 172 [14] 350 551
Total 2030977 100.0 641 100.0¢

mwnﬂmmmrnﬁunmmmwmnu-mnmhmnw

of contingent awards of shams which have been granted 1o 870 participants in the two plans.

f) Under the BT Employse Share Ownership Scheme 30 milion shares were held in trust on behalf of 131,870 participants

who ware beneficially entitied 10 the shares.

(c) Approximately 110 milion shares were represented by American Depositary Receipts and a further 12 million shares
were heid by & nominee of the Tokyo Stock Exchange on behall of investors. Analysis by size of holding is not avallable
for these holdings.

{c) 20.4% of the shares were in 1,896,310 individual holdings, of which 178,248 were joint hoidings, and 79.6% of the
shares were in 41,658 institutional hoidings.

Listings
BT has a listing on the Stock Exchanges In London, New York and Tokyo.

MMnWmhMMMMHNMdMMMW.MM
fepresents len ordinary shares. Trading on the New York Stock Exchange ks under the symbol *BTY*,

in Japan, BT shares are traded on the Tokyo Stock Exchange under the code “B484°,

mmmmmw
The company's ordinary shares are settied in CREST, the computarised system for settiing sales and purchases of shares.

cmrhammmmmmnwmumumummmm

rather than by paper. Sharsholders who wish 1o retain thelr certificates are able 10 do so.




. l'1'l’l9ﬂll. INFORMATION FOR BHAREHOLDERS

Personal equity plans (PEPs)
Details of BT single company PEPs and BT corporate PEPs offered by the Halifax may be obtained from: Hailfax investment

Services Limited, Trinity Road, Haltax HX1 2RG, Tel. Freafas 0800 371 789, Other PEP managers offer similar products.

Results announcements

Expecied announcements of results:

18 quarter 29 July 1998
2nd quarier and hall year 12 November 1098
3rd quarter and ning Months February 1099
dth quarter and hull year May 1069
1959 annual report and accounts published June 1999
Dividends

mm1HMMﬂhﬁdmaWhmmmmm1M|M
The expected dividend payment dates in 1999 are:

1999 inferim dividend payable February 1099
1999 final dvidend payable Seplember 1999
Dividend mandate

Any sharsholder wishing dividands 10 be paid directly into a bank or building society account should contact the Registrar for
& dividend mandate form. Dividends paid In this way will be paid through the Bankers Automated Clearing System (BACS).

Scrip dividends

in the year ended 31 March 1898, the group introduced the BT share dividend plan to aliow sharsholders to elect to receive
additional shares in lieu of & cash dividend. The price per share of the scrip dividend paid on 18 February 1008 was 480.35p.
This election for scrip dividends will aiso be avallable to ordinary shareholders in respect of the 1098 final dividend to be paid
on 21 September 1998, The last date for lodging mandates for the BT share dividend plan in respect of the final dividend Is

7 August 1998,

ADRA Shareholder SBervices Programme

Details of the Morgan Guaranty Trust sharsholder services programme, including reinvestment of dividends, are available from
Morgan Guaranty Trust Ca. of New York on 1 800 749 1687 (1ol free in the USA) or +1 781 575 4328 (from outside USA), or on
writlen request to the ADR Deposilary.

Form 20-F

The company will fiie s annual report on Form 20-F with the Securities and Exchange Commission in the USA by

30 September 1998,

Regulatory financlal statements

The company will publish historical cost Financial Statements for the Businesses and Activities for the year endied 31 March 1998,
&3 required by Oftel, by 31 July 1998. BT will also publish current cost Financlal Statements for the Businesses and Activities for
the year including long-run incremental cost information for the Network Business by 30 November 1098,

Copies of the Form 20-F, the Financial Statements for the Businesses and Activities, the Current Cost Financial Statements and
detalls of quantery results announcements, when available, mey be obtained on request from the BT Bhareholder Helpline
provided by the company's Regisirar, see page 86 for detalls.




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR lll.llllﬂ.i

The Reglstrar BT Shareholder Helpline -
Lioyds Bank Registrars (450) Tel Freafas 0808 100 4141
The Causeway Fax (01903) 833062
Worthing, West Sussex From overseas:
BN99 DA, England Tel +44 1903 833950
Fax +44 1003 833062
BT North America Ing., ADR Depositary
Investor Relations Morgan Guaranty Trust Company
40 East 52nd Stroet of New York
New York, NY 10022, ADR Sarvice Center
usa PO. Box 8205
Tol 1 800 331 4568 Baston, MA 02266-8205
(ol free within USA and Canads) UsA
or +1212 418 7787 Tel 1 800 634 BIGS (1ol free)
{from cutside USA and Canada) or (781) 575 4328
Fax +1212 418 7788
e-mail adr@jpmaorgan. com
BT (Japan) KK Share Handling Agent In Japan Qsska Office:
ARK Morl Building The Toyo Trust & Banking Co. Lid. 6-3 Fushimi-machi 3-Chome
12-32 Akasaka 1-Chome Tokyo Office: Chuo-Ku, Osaka 541-8502
Minato-Ku, Tokyo 107-6024 10-11 Higashisuna 7-Chome {Corporate Agency Department)
Tel (03) 5582 6000 Koto-Ku, Tokyo 137-8081 Tl 06) 222 3111
{Corporate Agency Department)
Tel (03) 5883 5111
Shareholder enguiries General enquiries Internat
Lioyds Bank Registrars maintain BT British Telecommunications plc This report is available on the
share register and the separate BT BT Cantre BT web sito at
Emplayee Share Ownership Schems 81 Newpate Street http://www.bt.comiworld/corpfin/
regisier. They also provide a BT London EC1A TAJ shareholder/Index.hitm
Sharshoider Helpling service. England
Sharehoiders should contact the Tel ([0171) 356 5000 ““~dh:;|ﬂh:.:.::ﬂﬂ
Regrstrar (details above) ¥ they Fax (0171) 356 5520 ot tpe// et soniol
have any enquiries about their From overseas:
sharshoiding. Tl +44 171 356 5000

Fax +44 171 358 5520




Giossar’

Term used in UK report and sccounta

Advance corporation tax (ACT)

Creditors: amounts faling due within cne yoar
Creditors: amounts faling due after more than one year
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Employment costs

Finance lease

Fixed asset investmants

Freshold

Intand calls

Interests in assoclated undertakings

Loana 1o associsted undertakings

Me! asset value

Other dablors

Own work caplitalised

Tangible fixed ssssts
Trade deblors

US equivalent or definition

Fingncial statements
No direct US equivalent. Tax payabls on company distributions
recoverable from UK taxes due on income

Equity investees

Tax depreciation

Other additional capital

Accounts payable and accrued Rabilities
Current kabilities

Long-term Rablities

Other non-curent assets

Payroll costs

Capital ioase

Non-current investments

Ownership with absolute rights in perpatuity
Local and long-distance calls
Securities of equity investess
Indebledness of equity investees not current
Book value

Other current sssets

Costs of group's employees engaged in the construction
of plant and equipment for own use

Income
Incoma stalement

Retsined earnings

Net income

Gain on disposal of non-curment assets
Allgwance for uncoliectable recelvables

Long-term Rabilities other than debt and specific
sccounts payable

Early reloase scheme expenses
Sharsholders’ equity other than paid-up capital

Additional paid-in capital or paid-in surplus (not distriutable)
Sharsholders’ equity

Inventories

Property, plant and equipment

Accounts receivable (net)

Revenues

7
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Concert Communications Sales LLC

Exhibit F
Key financial figures from
British Telecommunications ple
“Nine Months Results to December 31, 1998"
Press Release Issued February 11, 1999
Tumover (Revenues) including share of ventures 3 22,121,000,000.16
Exceptional income (costs) (69,000,000.72)
Operating profit 4,686,000,000.18
Profit on sale of fixed asset investments 1,837,000,000.62
Profit before tax 5,741,000,000.94
Windfall tax charge 0.00
Profit after tax 4,025,000,000.50
Eamnings per share 0.62
Eamings per share before exceptional items 0.43

Exchange rate: £1.00 = $1.66
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News release

February 11, 1998

NINE MONTHS RESULTS TO DECEMBER 31,
1998

BT's results for the third quarter a~d nine months to December 31, 1998 are summarised in the table below.
Sir lain Vallance, Chairman of BT, said:

*Demand for our products and services has been buoyant in the , stimulated both by

the datawave and strong growth in mobile sales. Our trading performance in the UK has been

good and our European ventures are growing fast.

This quarter saw two major investments in mobile companies in Malaysia and The Republic
of Korea where we foresee significant growth.

Our balance sheet remains strong with low gearing which gives us flexibility for further

development.”
THIRD QUARTER AND NINE MONTHS TO DECEMBER 31, 1998
Third Quarter Nine Months
1998 1997 1998 1997
£m £m £m im
Tumover, including share of ventures 4,684 4,083 12,326 11,930
Exceptional income (costs) (8) 238 (42) 238
Operating profit 1,012 1,149 2,823 2,853
Profit on sale of fixed asset investments - 45 1,107 63
Profit before taxation 858 1,019 3459 2,584
Windfall tax charge - - - (510)
Profit after taxation 592 734 2,425 1,296
Eamings per share 92p 11.3p 37.5p 20.1p
Eh:nr?h:ﬂ per share before exceptional 9.3p 8.3p 25.6p 25.2p
5
Results

Earnings per share for the nine months to December 31, 1998 were 37.5 pence based on a profit before
taxation of £3,459 million. Of these camnings, 11.9 pence represented exceptional income mainly relating to
the sale of the group's investment in MC1 Communications Corporation in September. Eamings before
exceptional items, of 25.6 pence per share, compare with an equivalent 25.2 pence in the corresponding
period of the prior year.

At the operating level, group profit before exceptional items for the nine munths increased by 9.6 per cent
over the prior period compared with group tumover growth of 6.7 per cent.

Earnings for the third quarter were 9.2 pence per share net of 0,1 pence exceptional charges. On the same
basis, eamings per share were 11.9 per cent h compared with the corresponding quarter of the prior year
and group operating profit was 12.0 per cent higher on group tumover growth of 8.5 per cent.

Turnover

Total tumover, which includes BT's share of its ventures’ tumover, grew by 11.7 per cent in the nine months
to £13,326 million, and by 14.7 per cent in the third quarter to December 31, 1998. BT's new ventures in
Europe and Asia-Pacific accounted for two-fifths of these increases in tumover. Both mobile and fixed
network calls in the UK made strong contributions to the growth in the group's activities.

The rapidly expanding use of the internet and a significant increase in calls tc mobile phones have been the
main factors behind a sharp increase in inland calls over BT's fixed network in the third quarter. Volume
growth on a 12-month moving average basis to December 31, 1998 rose to 8 per cent compared with

6 per cent in the 12 months to September 30, 1998. After taking into account the effect of continuing price

hutp://www.bt.com/World/news/newsroom/document/nr99 14 htm 32499




decreases, inland :snmergrew by 3.5 per cent to £3,838 millk& the nine months and by 6.5 per cent

in the quarter.
Excl. :nge line turnover increased by 4.8 per cent in the nine months to £2,490 million, wﬂemnm:lnly the
growth in business lines. ISDN line resulted in the number of business line conn

ing
by 5.8 per cent in the 12 months to December 31, 1998. Residential lines at 20.1 million increased sl in
the quarter helped by the large number of BT customers installing second lines.

International call tumover continues to be adversely affected by competition and significant price reductions.
The continuing strong volume growth of 9 per cent on a 12-month moving average basis contrasted with a
turnover decrease of 5.8 per cent in the nine months. Transit call volumes continue to be healthy.

Celinet had an impressive quarter adding 658,000 to its customer base which exceeded 4 million at
December 31, 1998, The majority [ the additions were "pre-paid™ phones, many of which were sold through
new channels to market developed by Cellnet in the period. Cellnet's customer base increased by 35 per cent
over the 12 months to December 31, 1998 and resulted in BT's mobile communications turnover growing by
23 per cent in the nine months after taking into account significant price reductions.

Receipts from other licensed operators in the UK grew by 19.6 per cent reflecting the growing level of
interconnection activity between both fixed and mobile network operators.

Syncordia, Syntegra, multimedia and advanced services were the main contributors to the 34 per cent
increase in other UK sales and services to £1,252 million in the nine months. These services mainly consist of
outsourcing, data and multimedia products.

BT's share of its ventures’ tumover totalling £852 million for the nine months and £410 million for the quarter
include for the first time contributions from the group’s new investments in Malaysia and The Republic of
Korea. The principal contributors in the quarter were Cegetel in France, Airtel in Spain and Viag Interkom in
Germany.

Operating costs

Excluding £42 million of exceptional costs (primarily relating to Concert expenses) explained below,
operating costs increased by 6.0 per cent to £9,711 million in the nine months to December 31, 1998.

After adjusting for the £120 million one-off charge in 1997 relating to employee compensation for the special

div costs increased by 1.2 per cent in the nine months. Depreciation rose by 6.2 per cent reflecting

the higher level of capital expenditure. Payments to telecommunication operators increased by 23 per cent as

a consequence of the growing number of calls made to mobile operators and other fixed networks in the UK.

Other operating costs grew by 7.3 per cent, partly due to increased expenditure on com syslems,

::cludmg wmwth:‘{w 2000 issue, and higher costs in mobile communications reflecting the growth in
¢ customer base.

Associates and joint ventures

BT's share of operating losses in our ventures totalled £101 million for the third quarter and £235 million for
the nine months in line with ex ions. The two main contributors were Viag Interkom and Telfort which
launched their new mobile in Germany and the Netherlands, respectively, in Autumn 1998,
Goodwill amortisation of £9 million is included in the nine months' results.

MCI Communications Corporation and Concert Communications

Following the completion of the MCI-WorldCom merger on September 15, 1998, BT sold its holding in MCI
to WorldCom. As mhnly reported, the proceeds loulled £4,159 million on which an exceptional pre-tax
profit of £1,133 m

On the same day as the sale of the MCI shares, BT acquired from MCI its 24.9 per cent interest in Concert
Communications for £607 million. Now that Concert is wholly owned by BT, work is being undertaken to
ensure that the group's business will be fully independent of MCI. The costs involved in this work are
estimated at £150 million over the two years to March 2000, of which £42 million has been incurred to
December 31, 1998. These costs are shown as exceptional items in the profit and loss account.

The net proceeds from the MCI shares have been invested mainly in US dollar investments on a short-term
basis. During the quarter a currency translation gain of £58 million has been made on these investments
which has been included in the results as a reduction in other operating costs.

Interest and taxation

The group's net interest charge for the nine months increased by £25 million to £236 million but declined by

http:/fwww bl.com/World/news/mewsroom/document/nr99 14 htm 32499




£41 million hmsm.mmmmunlmh%mw 1997 special dividend
payment, offset in the third quarter by the interest received on the proceeds from the sale of the MCI shares.

The effective tax rate for the current financial year is expected to be 31.0 per cent of pre-tax profits,
excluding the g tin on the MCI shares which attracts a slightly lower rate of 28 per cent.

The tax charge for the nine months to December 31, 1997 included BT's full charge for the windfall tax of
£510 million. The final instalment of this tax amounting to £255 million was paid in December 1998.

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure on plant, equipment and property totalled £2,097 million in the nine months, 2.1 per cent
higher than in the i padodog::rvhu year. Work continues on enhancing the intelli of
the fixed network to le customers to from advanced services and improving the capacity
carrying high-speed data. Cellnet has continued improving the quality and capacity of its digital cellular GSM
network.

BT has recently announced an agreement with lmanrmp!::liu' for the development and supply of the next
generation exchange equipment to handle the rapid growth in UK data traffic. The first of these
leading edge exchanges is due to be in service by Summer 1999.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

During October 1998, BT made two significant investments in the Asia Pacific region. The first was the

acquisition of a 33.3 per cent stake for £269 million in Binariang Bhd, a major Malaysian

telecommunications group operating a successful mobile communications business an providing fixed and

international gateway services in Malaysia. The second related to the acquisition for £229 million of an

il:_.:tefestofjuslomﬂ per cent in LG Telecom, a leading mobile telephone operator in The Republic of
orca.

During the nine months, BT has continued to share in funding the development of its ventures, principally
Viag Interkom and Telfort, 10 a total of £530 million.

Cash Mow and net debt

Net cash flow from totalled £4,099 million in the nine months. In addition, net cash inflow from
investing activities of £2,032 million principally consists of the proceeds of sale from the MCI shares of
£4,159 million less the group's expenditure on tangible fixed assets. The net cash outflow on isitions
totalled £1,710 million, the ipal part of which was the purchase of the minority interest in Concert, the
equity investments in Bi Bhd and LG Telecom and the additional funding of ventures, described
above. Equity dividends paid in September 1998 totalled £700 million and windfall and other tax

amounted to £561 million. Virtually all of the resulting cash inflow of £2,908 million, before liquid resources
and financing, has been invested and is shown in current asset investments in the balance sheet.

The proceeds of the sale of the investment in MCI caused net debt to fall in the nine months to £937 million
at December 31, 1998, Balance sheet gearing was 6 per cent at that date.

Proposed global venture with AT&T

On July 26, 1998, BT and AT&T announced the formation of a 50:50 global venture for their trans-border
telecommunication activities to serve the needs of multinational companies and the international calling needs
of individuals and businesses. BT will be transferring its cross-border international network, its international
wraffic, its business with selected multinational customers and its international products for business
customers together with Concert into the global venture, the formation of which is subject to, amongst other
things, regulatory clearances.

Evc p{;lulngi;u;ry announcement of B1's results for the year ending March 31, 1999 is expected to be made on
ay 19, 1999,

http://www.bt.com/World/news/newsroom/document/nr99 14.him 324199
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. Com:‘wnmunluﬂom Sales LLC

Application for Local Exchange Authority
Attachment E

Applicant is well-qualified technically and managerially to provide the
competitive local exchange service requested by this Application. Although Applicant
will be reselling the end-to-end service of other carriers and therefore must, in most
instances, rely upon the technical quality of its underlying service providers, Applicant
will be managed by persons with substantial experience in the communications industry.
Applicant is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Concert Communications Company
(“Concert”), which is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of BT. BT and its operating
subsidiaries have provided a wide array of high-quality telecommunications services
worldwide for over 100 years. In the U.K. alone, BT serves 27 million exchange lines
and provides international direct-dial telephone service to more than 230 countries and
other overseas territories. Concert provides service today to nearly 3,800 companies
via its own intelligent network platform in more than 50 countries. Applicant will draw on
the expertise of BT and Concert in providing the services for which authority is sought in
this Application. Applicant will be managed by persons with extensive experience in the
telecommunications industry. The biographies of the key management and operational
personnel responsible for Applicant’s services are appended immediately hereafter.

DCOHUGHR/T4370.1




Concert Communications Sales LLC
Biographies of Key Management Personnel

PETER MACLEOD, Chief Executive Officer, Concert Communications Company

Peter MacLeod is the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") of Concert Communications
Company (“Concert”). As CEO of Concert, Peter has overall responsibility to Concert’s parent
company, British Telecommunications ple (“BT"), for Concert's sales and operations. Peter was
appointed CEO of Concert in February 1999.

Peter's background is in sales, marketing, and strategic planning. Most notably, Peter
spent 21 years in various senior level sales, marketing, and strategic planning positions with
Unisys. Peter joined BT in February 1988 as Director of IT Systems and has held a number of
positions in BT, including UK Sales Director; Business Communications Sales Director;
Director, Global Customers; Director, Global Sales and Service; and most recently, Director
Multi-National Sales and Service.

Peter has an honors degree in mathematics from St. Peters College, Oxford England. He
was President of St. Peters College in 1964.

LLL LT

NANCY B. GOFUS, Chief Operating Officer, Concert Communications Company

Nancy Gofus is Chief Operating Officer (“COO") of Concert. As COO, Nancy has
overall responsibility for the day-to-day operations and performance of Concert. Nancy was
appointed COO of Concert in February 1999. Prior to her appointment as COO, Nancy was
Senior Vice President of Marketing for Concert. As Senior Vice President of Marketing, Nancy
was responsible for all product management and sales support activities for Concert managed
data and voice products.

Nancy Gofus came to Concert via MCI, where she served as vice president of MCI's
Strategic Global Services organization, which was chartered with formulating and executing
MCI’s international alliance strategy. Previously, she was MCI vice president of product
management, where she set product strategy, defined new product requirements, and launched
new products for the business market customers, Prior to joining MCI in 1991, Nancy worked
for AT&T, where she held a variety of sales, marketing, engineering, and operations

assignments.

DCOLGRIFINSI6L.




Concert Communications Sales LLC
Biographies of Key Management Personnel
(continued)

STEVE CLUTTON, Chief Financial Officer, Concert Communications Company

Steve Clutton joined Concert as Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") in October 1998. He
has primary responsibility for the financial plans and policies of the organization, including
establishment and maintenance of fiscal controls, and preparation and interpretation of financial
reports. Steve also has responsibility for Concert’s information systems, revenue services, and
taxation.

A KPMG Peat Marwick-trained chartered accountant, Steve joined Concert from BT,
where he was head of the Group Mergers and Acquisitions team. He also served as Finance
Director for BT's Internet and Multimedia Services businesses in the UK. Steve's experience
prior to BT includes a lead advisory role in Mergers and Acquisitions at the investment banking
arm of Barclays Bank.

LR LA L]

MIKE CONSIGLIO, Vice President — Network & Systems Development, Concert
Communications Company

Mike Consiglio is the Vice President — Network & Systems Development for Concert.
As Vice President — Network & Systems Development, Mike is responsible for delivery of end-
to-end network service to Concert customers, as well as customer provisioning, network
management, network security, process engineering, technical and complex bid support, network
change control and direct support to Concert's distributor customer service centers. Mike has
over 25 years of experience in large-scale sysiems development, network operations, and
customer service.

LI LA L] ]

STEVE EDWARDS, Vice President — Concert Service Delivery, Concert Communications
Company

Steve Edwards is Vice President — Concert Service Delivery and is responsible for the
provisioning and service of all Concert networks. He previously served as president of
Tandberg, Inc. of Hemdon, VA, where he was responsible for product and service packages for
the visual conferencing business catering to the business, government, and public sectors.

Steve has more than 23 years of experience in telecoms and has held a number of
management positions within BT and its subsidiaries. Among other positions, Steve served as
president of BT Visual Images, where he was responsible for day-to-day operations and strategic
planning for all BT videoconferencing endeavors in North America.
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